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Statutory Bodies

Shareholders' Meeting

Chairman Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A., 
represented by José Lourenço Soares

Secretary Companhia de Seguros Mundial Confiança, S.A.,
represented by José Filipe de Sousa Meira

Secretary Gerbanca, S.G.P.S., S.A.,
represented by Salomão Jorge Barbosa Ribeiro

Board of Directors

Chairman Vítor Ângelo Mendes da Costa Martins

Board Member Jorge Humberto Correia Tomé

Board Member Alcides Saraiva de Aguiar

Board Member Vítor Fernando da Veiga Castanheira

Board Member José Joaquim Berberan Santos Ramalho

Board Member Vasco Maria de Portugal e Castro d’Orey

Board Member Mário Cristina de Sousa

Board Member Alberto Manuel Sarmento Azevedo Soares

Board Member António Luis Neto

Sole Auditor

Acting Deloitte & Associados, S.R.O.C.

Deputising Carlos Manuel Pereira Freire, R.O.C.
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Summary of Consolidated
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Year
Net interest income 10,908  9,594 8,383
Income from securities 301 257 406
Net revenues generated by trading activities 424 1,258 6,672
Commissions (net) 35,043 22,665 21,671
Net operating income 46,676 33,775 37,132
Structural costs (general adm. costs + depreciation) -19,444 -17,848 -17,729
Provisions (net) -3,047 4,789 -9,436
Other costs and income 1,755 2,750 9,554
Income before taxation 27,259 23,466 19,521
Provision for income tax -5,707 -3,359 -378
Net income 21,552 20,107 19,143
CASH FLOW 31,449 19,756 30,169
Year end
Lending (net) 408,421 314,088 325,899
Provision for general credit risks 4,861 3,515 3,512
Provision for other risks and liabilities 4,142 5,088 4,927
Overdue credit (and interest) 8,802 8,888 8,962
Provision for overdue credit  10,591 10,179 9,006
Bonds and other fixed-income securities 488,190 319,769 322,342
Shares and other variable-income securities 1,281 1,997 935
Provision for losses on securities 829  975  5,186
Customer deposits 80,271 63,094 119,285
Net assets 1,097,348 812,605 868,646
Share capital 81,250 81,250 81,250
Shareholders’ equity (prior to appropriation of net income) 179,735 159,903 141,033
Solvency ratio
Solvency 16.15% 20.15% 17.27%
Performance ratios
ROE 11.99% 12.57% 13.57%
ROA 1.96% 2.47% 2.20%
Structural costs/net operating income 41.66% 52.85% 47.75%
Adjusted structural costs/net operating income (*) 37.81% 47.14% 43.65%

(*) Adjusted by income generated from employees on loan

2004
€ thousand

2003
€ thousand

2002
€ thousand





Relevant Events

There was a significant 38% growth over the preceding year in CaixaBI's net interest income to €46.7m.

A large component part of such growth was the level of commissions, reflecting a major
commercial commitment to customers, providing them with products and solutions catering
for their operational needs, notwithstanding the poor economic climate.

The bank, in strategic terms, continued to internationalise its operations, with the aim of
expanding its non-resident customer base. This particularly included:

• the opening of a branch office in Madrid;

• the beginning of international cover, supported by the group's branch office network,
headquartered in Luxembourg, including a fixed-income specialism;

• CaixaBI's membership of ESBG - European Savings Banks Group;

• beginning of formalisation of a partnership with the Seng Heng Bank of Macao.

In terms of corporate debt, reference should be made to the primary bond market in which
CaixaBI was the joint lead manager for Parpública's initial international issue of € 500m with
a maturity of 10 years;

The bank reinforced the commercial paper programme led and agencied by it in 2004 (several
of which programmes jointly) with a further 7 programmes totalling € 2.44bn.

CaixaBI consolidated its lead position in terms of principal corporate share market operations,
particularly including the share capital increase and 5th stage of the EDP privatisation and
the Semapa takeover bid for Portucel.

In the financial advisory area and according to the league table published by Bloomberg,
CaixaBI led the Portuguese bank ranking in terms of its volume of trading in the M&A sector
in Portugal, in which it was involved in a total of 7 operations, with an aggregate value of
USD 2.75 bn.

Principal examples includes the completion of the 2nd Portucel - Empresa Produtora de Pasta
e Papel, S.A. ("Portucel") reprivatisation stage and Semapa Group's consequent acquisition
of 30% of its share capital, in addition to CGD Group's acquisition of Seguros e Pensões'
non-bancassurance business.

In project finance, reference should be made to the level of commissions earnings and volume
of credit under management, particularly the wind farm operations in Pampilhosa da Serra
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with Enersis and Brisa's Central Coastal Concession.

CaixaBI is the largest Portuguese banking institution in this business area, according to the
ranking published by the highly regarded "Project Finance International" magazine, coming
50th and 30th, respectively, in world and EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) terms and
4th in Iberia.

In financial market innovation terms, CaixaBI started to operate as a Euronext Lisbon market
maker in 2004. The bank was the first Portuguese institution to enter into liquidity provider
contracts on Portuguese stockmarket listed shares with Euronext . 

CGD's medium and long terms ratings of AA - were reviewed and maintained by Fitch-IBCA.
These are the highest Portuguese banking sector ratings and are identical to those of the
principal Spanish banks. CaixaBI, in centralising Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group's (CGD)
investment banking operations also benefits from the importance of this rating in terms of
its credibility and financial strength, which facilitates the sustained development of its business
operations with large and medium-sized enterprises. 

In the brokerage area, CaixaBI commenced its operations as a "remote member" of the Paris,
Amsterdam and Brussels stockmarkets, completing the migration process on the Euronext
cash market.

22 March 2004 witnessed the migration of the Portuguese derivatives market to the pan-European
Liffe connect platform. 

CGD Group's venture capital area invested € 18m in companies in various operating sectors
this year, of which special reference should be made to its intervention in the renewable
energies cluster. In terms of its new business research activity, reference should also be made
to CaixaBI's involvement in a series of entrepreneurship-associated initiatives and most
notably its organisation of a National Entrepreneurship Competition.

In tandem with commercial growth, the bank continued to control its structural costs,
improving its adjusted cost-to-income ratio to 37.8%.

With the aim of furthering best corporate practice, CaixaBI has prepared a Social
Responsibility and Sustainability Report, adopting internationally approved principles. The
document is now a component part of in-house bank regulations as is its Corporate
Governance Report, both of which are included in this Annual Report. 
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Operating Context

International Economy

Overview

2004 saw world economic growth of more than 4% as opposed to the preceding year's 3.5%.
Contributory factors were higher US activity rates and significant growth in several emerging
markets and countries such as China, Brazil, Russia and India which are going through a major
development stage.

The signs of recovery, which cooled down somewhat in second half, appeared in a context of
major hikes in oil prices which reached all-time highs of USD 55.67 in October. This derived from
political and military instability in Iraq, tensions in major oil producing countries and huge
demand from China.

There were large differences in terms of the evolution of the principal geographical areas.
Growth was higher in the US and Asian economies, particularly China, and moderate in the
Eurozone.

15

European Union (25) 0.9 2.3  2.1 2.2 9.1 9.1
Eurozone  0.5 2.0  2.1 2.1 8.9 8.9
Germany  -0.1 1.6  1.0 1.7 9.6 9.7
France 0.5 2.5  2.2 2.3 9.4 9.6
United Kingdom  2.2 3.0  1.4   1.4 5.0 4.9
Spain  2.5 2.7  3.1 3.1 11.3 11.1
Italy 0.3 1.1  2.8 2.3 8.6 8.3

US   3.1 4.4  2.3 2.6 6.0 5.5
Japan   2.4 2.6  -0.3 -0.2 5.3 4.8
Russia   7.3 7.1 12.0 10.5
China   9.1 9.2 3.2 5.0
India   7.2 6.4 3.8 4.7
Brazil   -0.2 4.0 14.8 6.6

Source: EC, Economic Forecasts for October 2004; Eurostat Euro-Indicators, Perspectives Economiques de l´OCDE Moody´s Investors Service.

2003    2004

GDP

2003    2004

Inflation

2003    2004

Unemployment

% change
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US GDP growth has been estimated at 4.4%, as against the preceding year's 3.1%. This was largely
sustained by a 13.4% increase in private consumption and investment, offsetting the moderate
contribution made by net external demand, particularly in second half. Budget policy remained
expansionist, with external and public deficit increases. The increase in economic activity and
intensifying of inflationary pressures forced the FED to implement a new cycle of interest rate
increases in the second half of the year, with its reference rate having increased on five occasions.
Owing to successive interventions the FED's reference rate closed the year at 2.25% as against 1%
at the end of the preceding year.

Asian economic performance as a whole was particularly marked by the 9.2% increase in growth
in China. A combination of external market buoyancy, investment and private consumption
were determining factors in sustaining growth, with the Chinese authorities having introduced
a series of administrative measures designed to prevent economic overheating, notably
restrictions on investment project credit approvals, pursuant to which the principal reference
rate (with a maturity period of one year), which had remained unchanged since 1995, was
increased from 5.31% to 5.58% at end October 2004.

Japanese GDP grew 2.6%, impacted by corporate investment and the expansion of exports
which took advantage of favourable world economic conditions, particularly in the US and
countries in the region.

European Union

Ten new member states joined the European Union in May 2004.

GDP growth in the 25 EU countries hit 2.3%, signifying an increase in the rate of economic
activity over the preceding year, albeit at a lower rate than that of the principal world
economies.

Eurozone GDP growth was around 2.3%. Its recovery was also mainly based on higher
exports benefiting from marked growth in world trade. There was a slight increase in
domestic demand and investment, largely translating low business confidence although
inflation and unemployment remained stationary as did the public sector to GDP deficit of
around 2.9%.

Growth rates in non-Eurozone countries, particularly the new member states, were relatively
high in 2004.
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European Union and Eurozone Economic Indicators

European Union Eurozone

2003     2004 2003    2004Rates of change (%)

GDP  0.9 2.3 0.5 2.0
Private consumption                       1.3       1.7 1.0 1.2
Public consumption 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5
GFCF (capital investment) -0.1 2.3 -0.5 1.3
Domestic demand 1.5 2.3 1.2 1.9
Exports 0.9 6.2 0.2 6.0
Imports 2.3 6.6 2.0 6.3

Inflation Rate 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 

Ratios
  Unemployment rate 9.1 9.1 8.9 8.9 
  General government deficit to GDP percentage -2.8 -2.8 -2.7 -2.9

Source: EC, Economic Forecasts for October 2004; Eurostat Euro-Indicators.

( %)
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Domestic Economy

Overview

Real GDP growth in Portugal, in 2004, was 1.1 %, as against the preceding year's fall of
1.3%. This was sustained by a 1.9% increase in domestic demand, resulting from an upturn
in private consumption, reflecting increased business confidence associated with improved
international economic conditions. Domestic demand expansion generated an increase in
the economy's financing requirements from 3.6% to 5.4% of GDP and a fresh estimated
reduction in individual savings from 11.7% to 11% of disposable income.

Another contributory factor to GDP growth was the moderate real 15% growth rate in
investment (GFCF), in comparison to significant retraction of around 15% in real terms over
the last two years. Reference should, however, be made to the highly favourable contribution
made by corporate investment, particularly construction, as opposed to retraction in public
investment.

The upturn in activity was particularly visible in the first half of the year. This reflected a
combination of one-off events and the impact of the Euro 2004 Football Championship and
more permanent developments such as improvements in world trade. Although export
growth was appreciable at 6.8%, the commercial balance, as opposed to previous years,
was negative owing to the marked 8% increase in imports of capital goods and consumer
durables, particularly deriving from domestic demand expansion.

Average inflation was 2.5% as against the preceding year's 3.3%. Inflationary trends derived
from a combination of the euro's appreciation against the principal currencies in foreign cur-
rency markets and its effect on the cost of goods imports and a general climate of mod-
eration in terms of wages/salaries which, to a large extent, made it possible to offset 2004
energy product price increases.

Budget consolidation was a dominant issue in 2004, owing to the difficulty involved in
reducing the structural deficit which required extraordinary measures such as the transfer of
CGD Employee Pension Fund liabilities and other funds to the Caixa Geral de Aposentações
(National Pensions Scheme) to achieve the Public Sector to GDP deficit of 2.9% with the aim
of complying with the 3% maximum established in the SGP (Stability and Growth Pact).
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(%)Domestic Economic Indicators

GDP (Real Rates of Change) 0.5 -1.3 1.1 
Private Consumption  0.5 -0.7 2.2
Public Consumption 2.2 0.5 0.6
GFCF (Investment) -5.5 -9.6 1.8
Domestic Demand -0.5 -2.5 1.9
Exports 2.4 4.1 6.8
Imports -0.7 -0.5 8.2

Inflation Rate 3.6 3.3 2.5

Ratios
Unemployment 5.1 6.3 6.7
Current and capital balance to GDP percentage  -5.6 -3.6 -3.7
General government to GDP deficit percentage -2.7 -2.8 -2.9
Government debt to GDP percentage 58.4 60.0 61.6

Source: INE and Bank of Portugal.

2002 2003 2004



Deposits and Credit Aggregates

Eurozone monetary and credit aggregates were impacted by the maintenance of low interest
rates and greater economic activity. Growth of the M3 liquidity aggregate, excluding
currency in circulation, in Portugal, was higher than last year as a reflection of economic
buoyancy, albeit moderate.

A determining factor in the year-on-year growth in banking system deposits growth of 3.2%
was the 2.9% increase in individual customers' deposits (including emigrants) as against last
year's retraction of 0.2%.

The growth rate of total domestic credit, in 2004, was down from 7.6% to 6.2%. This reflects
a certain attenuation of the rates of change in terms of mortgages and corporate lending
which are the most significant credit aggregates.

The credit aggregates analysis included securitised credit of € 16.1bn, representing around
8% of domestic banking system credit, at year end.
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(%)
Monetary Aggregates in Portugal
Annual growth rates

2003 2004

M3, excluding currency in circulation 3.4% 5.5%
Total Deposits 1.0% 3.2%
Individual Customers’ Deposits -0.2% 2.9%

Total Domestic Credit (a)  7.6% 6.2%
Corporate Lending (a) 4.6% 1.3%
Mortgages (a) 13.8% 11.1%
Lending to Individual Customers – Other (a) -1.0% 7.2%

(a) Includes Securitised Credit.

Source: EMF

Currency and Credit in 2004
(year-on-year)%
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Interest Rates

Euribor rates, in 2004, for the shorter maturity periods, remained relatively stable
at an average of around 2.08% for 1 month maturity periods, accompanying the
maintenance of the ECB reference rate of 2%. 

There was a fall in longer maturity period rates in first quarter, accompanied by a
fall in short term rates, in line with market expectations of ECB's lowering of its
reference rate, with the aim of stimulating Eurozone growth. The said expectation
was not confirmed and led to a return of the former rates.

The amplitude of the change in Euribor, during the year, was very small at only
5 bp for 12 month and 3 bp for 1 month maturity periods. This was very different
from last year's situation whose rate reduction for the same maturity periods was
44 bp and 80 bp, respectively. This nominal stability was reflected in banks' lending
and borrowing rates which were very similar to last year's. 

Foreign Exchange

The euro also appreciated against the dollar in 2004, translating the imbalances
existing in the US economy's external and government deficits.

After a year start in which the euro maintained its upwards trajectory, hitting an
all-time first quarter high against the US currency, the two currencies were affected
by a certain element of volatility deriving from one-off increases in the dollar's
worth associated with expectations of FED fund rate increases. The euro, after the
said period, continued to appreciate to USD 1.36 at year end in comparison to
the end of 2003 figure of 1.26.

Operating Context
Domestic Economy
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In average annual terms, the euro increased in value by 10.0% and 2.7% over the US dollar
and Japanese yen, respectively, while depreciating 1.9% against sterling.

Capital Market

Shares

Evolution on the principal stockmarket indices in 2004, was modest, in comparison to
2003. The increase in the US Dow Jones Index was only 3% and no more than 9% for
Nasdaq with the Nikkei achieving 8%. Increases in the Paris, Frankfurt and London
indices were also less than 10%. The best European performers were Madrid and
Milan, with 17% increases. Lisbon came third with a 12.6% increase in the PSI-20.

After a first quarter with large increases, mainly owing to investors' confidence
in world economic recovery, economic confidence, in the coming months, was
significantly eroded by a combination of factors such as the Madrid terrorist
attack, continued political and military instability in Iraq and oil price hikes.
Most markets only evidenced recovery in the last quarter of the year, fuelled by
good US economic performance, continued low interest rates and better corporate
results.

The Portuguese PSI-20 index, fell from a March peak through to August and recovered
in the last few months to end the year with gains of 12.6%. Only one of the shares
listed on the PSI-20 closed the year with losses, with eight recording gains of more
than 30%. Secondary share market dynamism was also evident in the 46% growth in
trading and respective 24% stockmarket capitalisation.

The primary market saw two new entrants - Sacyr Vallehermoso and Media Capital -
the latter as the result of an initial public offering (IPO).

Bond Market 

There was a significant downturn on the bond market, both as regards the 5% reduction of
the Special Public Debt Market and particularly stockmarket trading which fell by half.
Reference should, however, be made to the dynamism of treasury bonds with a more than
fourfold increase in volume, although last year's data refer only to the half of the year in
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which they were reintroduced on the market. Although there was a first half oscillation in
long term yields on Portuguese government bonds, the second half trend was clearly
downwards, with a reduction of almost 1 pp between end 2003 and end 2004. The
differential of around 15 bp with German rates in the first half of the year, narrowed to
around 5 bp by year end.
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Activity

Business Areas Structure

To gear bank operations to a customer-driven approach, strengthening its position as a benchmark
domestic financial system operator, based on competitiveness, high ethical standards and
financial solidity.

CaixaBI, in accordance with the above mission statement, continued to develop products
and services targeted at the requirements of its market of large and medium-sized enterprises,
public institutes and local councils, institutional investors and major domestic and regional
project promoters, in the following areas in 2004:

• Credit

• Structured finance

• Corporate debt finance 

• Corporate equity finance

• Securities investment and trading portfolios 

• Project finance

• Brokerage

• Venture capital

• Research

Consolidated Performance

In consolidated management terms, reference should be made to the following evolution of the
principal balance sheet and financial statement headings and most relevant economic-financial
indicators:

Activity
Consolidated Performance
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There was a 35% increase in consolidated

net assets, in 2004, to € 1,097,349
thousand as against the preceding year's
€ 812,605 thousand. Significant growth was
recorded in credit and securities portfolios.

In line with the increase in assets, there was
a 30% increase in the credit portfolio

from € 314,088 thousand at the end of
2003 to € 408,421 thousand at the end of
this year. The bank has a fully provisioned
overdue credit and respective interest level
of 2.1%.

There was also a significant increase of
around 52% in the securities portfolio

to € 489,471 thousand at the end of this
year in comparison to the preceding
year's € 321,766 thousand.
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The following charts provide an assets structure comparison for the close of the last two years: 

The solvency ratio fell from 20.2% in 2003
to 16.2% at end 2004.

Reference should be made to the following items in an analysis of year 2004 results:

There was a 7.2% increase in consolidated

net income from € 20,107 thousand in
2003, to this year's € 21,552 thousand.
The growth does not translate the evolution
of net operating income, owing to the 1%
reinforcement of provisions for the credit
portfolio in addition to the increase in
the size thereof and the effective increase
in IRC from 16% in 2003 to this year's
21% (which increase also derived from
the higher provision for general credit
risks, which, under current legislation is
not tax deductible).
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Assets structure 
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Return on equity (prior to the appropriation
of net income for the year), was slightly
more than half a percentage point down
from 12.6% in 2003 to 12.0% in 2004 as
a result of the bank's retained earnings policy.

Return on assets, owing to the substantial
increase in credit and securities portfolios
was also half a percentage point down
from a ratio of 2.5% in 2003 to 2.0% in
2004.

CaixaBI achieved impressive growths of more than 50% in several account headings. This is
shown in the breakdown of net operating income by type (following table), the proportion
of commissions in the said total (75%) was, once again, up on the 2003 proportion of 67%.
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Information on the bank's major business areas is set out in the following charts:

There was a 59% increase in the bank's
consolidated cash flow from € 19,756
thousand in 2003, to € 31,448 thousand
in 2004, reflecting activities and provisions
increases.

Net interest income grew for the third
year running, this year by around 14%, as
a result of the management and volumes
of the credit and securities portfolio.
There was a 13.7% increase in net interest
income from € 9,594 thousand in 2003
to € 10,908 thousand at the end of the
year in question.
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Net interest income has remained
relatively stable at around 20% of
CaixaBI's net operating income:

There was a 17% increase in the income

from securities account heading to € 301
thousand in 2004 as opposed to the year
2003 figure of € 257 thousand.

Net revenues from trading activities

were also inexpressive, falling from € 1,258
thousand in 2003 to € 424 thousand at
the end of this year.

Activity
Consolidated Performance
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Net commissions confirmed their role as
the bank's main income source, with a 54.6%
growth from € 22,665 thousand in 2003
to € 35,043 in 2004.

Net provisions were increased in a trend
reversal to the previous year in which
income of € 4,789 thousand was recorded.
Costs of € 3,047 thousand were posted
in 2004, in line with the growth in bank
lending and new Bank of Portugal regulations.
Caixa Desenvolvimento set up a provision
of € 1,287 thousand for its financial
investments in the venture capital area.

Credit

The principal corporate missions of DCC (Credit and Customers Division) within Caixa -
Banco de Investimento's structure is to leverage the bank's relationship with customers and
identify opportunities in all investment banking areas based on a proactive market approach,
in addition to the origination, execution, booking and management of CaixaBI's credit
portfolio, while also being responsible for agencying all operations originated and executed
by CaixaBI.

In market relationship terms, Caixa - Banco de Investimento has succeeded in strengthening
its "tradename", as an organisation providing complementary products and services to those
provided by Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group to its customers and notably products and services
whose specific nature and complexity requires the added value of team specialism.

DCC endeavoured to increase growth consistency in the public sector companies and
institutional customers segment, in which Caixa - Banco de Investimento's market share has
been traditionally smaller, in securing lead mandates for around € 700m of several operations
currently in progress.

Caixa Banco de Investimentos has provided CGD's commercial branch network with training
on principal products and services, organising joint meetings with medium-sized customers
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whose specific needs require CaixaBI's involvement. Such commercial actions have
demonstrated the segment's currently existing business potential and emphasised CGD's
branch offices’ network as an investment bank operations originator, based on the principle
of complementarity of offer and continuing to retain the loyalty of existing customers.

Last but not least, work continued on transversal operations origination for the bank, in
collaboration with product areas, particularly concentrating on capital market operations
(commercial paper and bond loans), corporate equity finance (takeovers, financial restructuring
operations, M&A) and foreign exchange and interest rate risk management.

DCC continued to develop and consolidate its credit operations origination activities in 2004
in furthering operations involving highly complex lending and credit facilities. This endeavour
led to a lead role in operations worth more than € 1.4bn of which the most emblematic, both
in terms of amount and their relevance to the domestic economic environment are set out
below:

• Semapa, Sociedade de Investimentos e Gestão SGPS, S.A. financing operation led by
CaixaBI, for the maximum amount of € 850m, with CGD Group having underwritten
50% of the amount, as part of the reprivatisation of 30% of the share capital of
Portucel - Empresa de Pasta e Papel, S.A. and subsequent takeover bid;

• EGREP - Entidade Gestora de Reservas Estratégicas de Produtos Petrolíferos, E.P.E.
financing operation with the aim of acquiring strategic oil product reserves, for the
maximum amount of €210m led by CaixaBI, in which CGD Group underwrote 50%;

• SGAL - Sociedade Gestora da Alta de Lisboa, SA, financing operation for furthering
its investment activity and the requalification of the Alta de Lisboa intervention zone,
for the amount of € 45m, led by CaixaBI, in which CGD Group underwrote 50% of
the amount.

• Investec, SGPS, SA, financing operations for equity investments, for the amount of
€ 25m led by CaixaBI and fully underwritten by CGD Group.

• Simtejo - Saneamento Integrado dos Municípios do Tejo e Trancão, SA financing
operations for supporting its service provision-related activity, for the amount of
€ 25m, fully underwritten by CGD Group.

DCC's credit portfolio remains diversified in terms of both companies and sectors.

CGD Group managed and agencied 59 commercial paper issue programmes, through DCC.
This year's programmes involved 393 issues comprising accrued placements of € 14bn.
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PPTV

Financiamento à Aquisição

de Participação Financeira

€ 25,000,000

Junho 2004

Empréstimo Sindicado

de Longo Prazo

€ 850,000,000

Junho 2004

Empréstimo de Longo Prazo

€ 17,000,000

Maio 2004

Julho 2004

Empréstimo Sindicado

de Longo Prazo

€ 210,000,000

Empréstimo Sindicado

de Longo Prazo

€ 45,000,000

Agosto 2004

Apoio ao Investimento

€ 25,000,000

2004

Refinanciamento de Dívida

€ 18,666,666

Setembro 2004

Organização, Liderança e Participação

Organização, Liderança Conjunta e Participação Organização, Liderança Conjunta e Participação Organização, Agenciamento e Participação

Organização Organização, Liderança Conjunta e Participação Organização e Agenciamento



International / Fixed-income

DCI (International Customers Division) was created in 2004. It operates in two business areas
for leveraging cross-border platforms to generate CaixaBI business - International Investment
Banking Business and Fixed-income Business Areas. 

I. International Investment Banking Business Area

DCI's objective is to promote CaixaBI's role as one of the principal Iberian players i) in the
triangulation of investment banking opportunities between Portugal, Spain and Brazil; and
ii) the distribution of Portuguese fixed-income business in the European market, allying
capacity and expertise in respect of Brazilian fixed-income business distribution.

In terms of institutional relationships, DCI has been making contacts with several fundamental
entities in terms of consolidating CaixaBI's status as an investment bank with an international
intervention capacity. Special reference should be made to other banking entities in the
Brazilian and Spanish markets in addition to multilateral institutions with an intervention
capacity in both Brazil and Lusophone Africa.

A CaixaBI branch office, headquartered on Banco Simeón's premises, has been set up in
Spain. It aims to operate as an enabler for CaixaBI's development of its investment banking
operations as one of the principal Iberian market players in the sector and in triangulating
business opportunities between Portugal, Spain and Brazil. 

Activity began at end 3rd quarter 2004. The branch office's operations in Spain are based
on securing opportunities in three core business areas: i) corporate finance comprising the
Portugal, Spain and Brazil triangle; ii) infrastructures and PPPs project Finance in Spain for
exploiting all of the know-how acquired in the Portuguese market and iii) leverage acquisition
finance on the Portugal/Spain axis. The following operations were originated, completed
and announced in 2004:

Project Finance Operations

• EHN - Becosa – Becosa Alijar Wind Farm  - € 21,712,000 – as co-arranger;

• Autopista Madrid Levante – Ocaña La Roda Concession - € 547,850,000 – as co-arranger;

• Metro de Tenerife (underground railway) – € 126,733,000 – as arranger;

• Biocarburantes de Castilla y Leon - € 162,396,000 – as senior lead manager;

• Aumancha Autovía de la Mancha – Autovia de los Viñedos - € 134,000,000 – as
manager;

• Corporación Eólica Cesa – Parque Eólico Piedras del Alto - € 31,813,000 – as
co-arranger;

• Hidrocantábrico Genesa – Las Lomillas Wind Farm - € 50,100,000 – as lead arranger.

Leverage Finance

• Grupo Auna Amena – Syndicated Loan - € 4,500,000,000 – as lead arranger;

• Globália – Medium/long term € 40,000,000 financing operation for a 50.1% equity
investment in SPdH Sociedade Portuguesa de Handling, S.A. pursuant to its privatisation
by the Portuguese state, as lead arranger;

• Coranzuli (Dinamia/Corpfin) – Medium/long term financing operations of
€ 62,500,000 for the acquisition of the full amount of the share capital of
Segur Ibérica, S.A., as lead arranger.
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Although the focus in Brazil continues to be based on the partnership with Unibanco -
União de Bancos Brasileiros, without jeopardising the said partnership, the bases have been
launched for expanding Brazilian market relationships to other entities with which CGD
Group already enjoys an interbank relationship and, accordingly, leveraging the range of
potential development opportunities in the said market. The following operations were
originated, completed and announced in 2004:

Corporate Finance

• Embraer – Advisory services for the acquisition of a 65% equity investment in OGMA
- Oficinas Gerais de Material Aeronáutico, S.A. under the terms of the Portuguese
state led privatisation process as joint adviser (mandate successfully completed);

• Votorantim Group – Advisory services for the acquisition of 41.06% of SECIL -
Companhia Geral de Cal e Cimento, S.A. as joint adviser (mandate successfully completed);

Project Finance - Advisory 

• Abengoa – Advisory services for ANEL-Agência Nacional de Energia's organisation of
the privatisation process for the Colinas-Ribeiro Gonçalves - São João do Piauí -
Sobredinho 1,000 km long 500 KV Transmission Line (in the Brazilian States of Bahia,
Tocantins and Piauí) as joint financial advisor (contract awarded, financing process
currently being structured).

Structured Finance - Multilateral Agencies

• Bandeirante Energia (Grupo EDP) – Usd 100,000,000 IDB B Loan as joint lead
arranger and book-runner

The following chart provides a statistical and aggregate summary of DCI activity:

In terms of prospecting for new markets, work began on formalising a partnership with the
Seng Heng Bank of Macao to develop investment banking business opportunities in the
Portugal, Spain and Brazil triangle and People's Republic of China.
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II. Fixed-income Business Area

Fixed-income operations began in May, since when the following activities have been performed:

1) commercial paper placements;

2) primary market placements;

3) regular liquidity guarantee service;

4) private placements structuring;

5) syndicate participation;

6) participation in treasury bond auctions and syndicates and respective relationship
with the IGCP;

7) participation in the ESBG organisation.

The level of service provided to investor customers has been improved on and expanded
since launch:

1. the creation of Bloomberg and Reuters pages to enable our market counterparts and
customers, domestic or other, to view our operations; 

2. co-ordination with the bank's research team to produce information in line with our
customers' needs. All new market launches of commercial paper issues or programmes
are accompanied by flash notes;

3. a shift towards an investor/issuer solutions enabler concept, making direct contact
with issuers for their production of investor-customised issues.

Commercial Paper

The bank's last quarter approach to this instrument comprised:

1) Active market participation to correct eventual market efficiency problems deriving
from occasional offer surpluses;

2) Concentration on non-collateralised commercial paper;

3) Daily offer of secondary and liquidity guarantee payments - Bloomberg and Reuters pages.
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This new approach has led to across-the-board reductions in spreads, increased participation
in terms of customers and volumes subscribed. Another development comprised commercial
paper placements and issues based on investors' interest.

Primary Bond Market

€ 500,000,000 Parpública 4.181% 04/10/2014

Placement Results:
Direct placement by CaixaBI: € 225m;
Allocation: 68% to non-residents and 32% to domestic investors;

Private Placements 

€ 5,662,514 CGD - Inflation linked Zero coupon 04/09/2012

€ 24,000,000 CGD - Fixed-rate  4% 04/10/2012

€ 5,000,000 CGD - Inflation linked Note 04/11/2011

€ 6,000,000 CGD - Fixed-rate  3,6325% 04/12/2012

International Distribution 

After guaranteeing the continuity of the service provided to domestic investors, work
began on broadening the non-resident customer base. Reference should be made to
CaixaBI's membership of ESBG-European Savings Banks Group and implementation of
international cover supported by group subsidiaries and the Luxembourg centre.

Corporate Debt Market

DCD (Corporate Debt Division) specialises in originating, structuring and organising structured
finance and capital debt market operations. 

The following structured finance operations were completed in 2004:

• Explorer 2004 Series 1: the bank operated as joint lead manager for the Portuguese
state's first securitisation operation for the amount of € 1,663 m, involving fiscal credit
and social security;

• UCI 10: the bank operated as the co-manager for a residential mortgage securitisation
operation originated by the Unión de Créditos Inmobiliarios (Spain), for the amount of €700m.
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Reference should also be made to Structured Finance International Magazine's February 2004
award of its important "Consumer Finance Deal of the Year" prize to the Caixa Geral de Depósitos
consumer finance securitisation operation, completed at end 2003 (Nostrum Consumer Finance).

Year 2004 structured finance operations, however, were negatively impacted by the following:

• alterations to US fiscal legislation which decided to "close" the US cross-border leases
market. This prevented the bank from continuing to consolidate its position as the
only domestic banking institution with an effective level of competence and expertise
in this type of structured solution and also made it impossible to fulfil the four portfolio
mandates;

• for reasons totally unconnected with the bank, the impossibility of fulfilling two
securitisation mandates - National Health Service debts to ANF (National Association
of Pharmacies) and the securitisation and sale of state property - involving a high
allocation of funding resources over several months.

The bank focused its activities in four principal capital debt market areas: bond issues,
Schuldschein bonds, rating advisory and commercial paper.

The following major operations were performed in the 2004 primary bond market:

• Joint lead manager of Parpública's initial international issue, for the amount of € 500m
with a maturity period of 10 years;

• Joint lead manager for an international private placement for ANAM, guaranteed by
ANA, for the amount of € 50m with a maturity period of 10 years;

• Co-manager of Cimpor's initial international issue, for the amount of € 600m with a
maturity period of 7 years;

• Organiser and joint leader of a bond loan for Modelo Continente, for the amount of
€ 100m with a maturity period of 5 years;

• Organiser and leader of a bond loan for SGAL, for the amount of € 14.6m with a
maturity period of 10 years; 

• Organiser and leader of a bond loan for Mota-Engil, for the amount of € 15m with
a maturity period of 5 years. 
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Nostrum Consumer

Finance Plc

Abril 2004

Explorer 2004 Series 1

Titularização de Créditos do Fisco

e da Segurança Social

€ 1,663,000,000
Secured Floating Rate Notes

Joint Lead Manager

Maio 2004

UCI 10

Titularização de Créditos

Hipotecários Residenciais

€ 700,000,000
Secured Floating Rate Notes

Co-Manager

Novembro 2004

Titularização de Créditos ao Consumo
da Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

€ 400,000,000

Secured Floating Rate Notes
due 2015

Joint Arranger and Joint Lead Manager



The bank acted as an arranger for a Schuldschein loan
for the Instituto Nacional de Habitação (National
Housing Institute), in 2004, for the amount of € 50m
with a maturity period of 10 years.
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MODELO CONTINENTE, S.G.P.S.,S.A.

€ 500,000,000

4.191% Notes due 2014

Outubro 2004

Joint Lead Manager

€ 50,000,000

5.34% Notes due 2014

Julho 2004

Joint Lead Manager

€ 600,000,000

4.5% Notes due 2011

Maio 2004

Co-Manager

Empréstimo Obrigacionista

€ 100,000,000

Março 2004

Organização e Liderança Conjunta

Empréstimo Obrigacionista

€ 14,586,450

Março 2004

Organização e Liderança

Empréstimo Obrigacionista

€ 15,000,000

Dezembro 2004

Organização e Liderança

Empréstimo Schuldschein

€ 50,000,000

Novembro 2004

Arranger



Ratings awarded by internationally recognised agencies currently comprise a fundamental
instrument to enable domestic, particularly larger domestic companies, to increase the
flexibility of their funding alternatives and competitiveness. The sensitising of customers to
the advantages of rating is another of the bank's priorities in the capital debt market. The
following comprised the bank's major operations in 2004:

• completion of two international rating advisory operations: Parpública, in which the
company was awarded the same rating as that of the Portuguese Republic (AA/Aa2
from S&P and Moody's, respectively) and ANA (A2 from Moody's);

• advisory services to another important domestic corporation in obtaining an international
rating (currently in progress).

The bank reinforced the commercial paper programmes portfolio led and agencied by it in
2004 (several of which jointly) with a further 7 programmes totalling € 2.44bn.

New programmes in 2004 particularly included, on the basis of their dimension, Parpública
(€ 1.7bn) and Sonae SGPS (€ 350m).
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Assessoria no Processo

de Obtenção de Notação

de Rating pela Moody’s (Aa2)

e S&P (AA)

Setembro 2004

Joint Rating Advisor

Assessoria no Processo

de Obtenção de Notação

de Rating pela Moody’s (A2)

Junho 2004

Joint Rating Advisor

Programa Grupado

de Emissões de Papel

Comercial

€ 20,000,000

Abril 2004

Organização e Liderança

Programa de Emissões

de Papel Comercial

€ 150,000,000

Junho 2004

Organização e Liderança

Programa de Emissões

de Papel Comercial

€ 50,000,000

Julho 2004

Organização e Liderança
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Corporate Share Market

Capital Market

DCA (Corporate Finance - Shares Division) successfully completed the following domestic
capital market operations in 2004: 

• Organisation and structuring of a public share subscription pursuant to the 5th reprivatisation
stage.

• Organisation and structuring of a public share subscription.

• Organisation and structuring of a public offer for the sale of Portucel - Empresa
Produtora de Pasta e Papel, S.A. shares.

• Joint lead company in the combined public offer for the sale of Media Capital, SGPS,
S.A. group shares.

• Organisation and structuring of the public subscription offer for the Abbott Laboratories,
Inc.'s rights issue.
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MODELO CONTINENTE, S.G.P.S.,S.A.

Programa de Emissões

de Papel Comercial

€ 350,000,000

Agosto 2004

Organização

Programa de Emissões

de Papel Comercial

€ 163,000,000

Setembro 2004

Liderança Conjunta

Programa de Emissões

de Papel Comercial

€ 1,700,000,000

Dezembro 2004

Organização e Liderança

Programa de Emissões

de Papel Comercial

€ 2,500,000

Dezembro 2004

Organização e Liderança
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CaixaBI accordingly consolidated its lead position in the capital market area, participating in
such major operations as the capital increase of the 5th privatisation stage of EDP and
Semapa's bid for Portucel.
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Financial Advisory

According to the Bloomberg league table, CaixaBI topped the Portuguese banking ranking
in terms of M&A trading volume in Portugal, in which it was involved in a total of 7 operations,
with an aggregate value of USD 2.75bn.

DCA successfully completed the following projects in 2004:

• Financial advisory services for Embraer - Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica, S.A.'s equity
investment of 65% in the OGMA - Indústria Aeronáutica de Portugal, S.A. privatisation.

• Financial advisory services for Cabelte Holding SGPS, S.A.'s equity investment in
Indústrias Cunha Barros.

• Financial advisory services for the financial restructuring of Cabelte Holding, SGPS group.

• Financial advisory services for Caixa Seguros SGPS, S.A.'s acquisition of Seguros e
Pensões' non-bancassurance business.

• Financial advisory services for Semapa Group's 30% equity investment in Portucel's
2nd reprivatisation stage.

• Financial advisory services for A. Silva & Silva Group's disposal of its equity investment
in Emparque - Empreendimentos e Exploração de Parques, S.A. 

• Financial advisory services for Sociedade de Empreitadas Adriano, S.A.'s equity investment
in Indáqua - Indústria e Gestão de Águas, S.A. 

• Financial advisory services for Sportinveste, SGPS, S.A.'s equity investment in Sport TV, S.A.

• Financial advisory to REN - Rede Eléctrica Nacional, S.A. for assessing the value of the
land used by Public Electricity Service power generators.

• Financial advisory services for the Autonomous Region of the Azores' economic and
financial assessment of EDA - Electricidade dos Açores, S.A.
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Portuguese League Table - 2004

Rank# Advisor Value (US$ MM) #Deals

1 Morgan Stanley 6.727 3
2 Rothschild 6.154 3
3 Merrill Lynch 3.882 2
4 UBS 3.744 3
5 Citigroup 3.527 2
6 CaixaBI 2.746 7
7 BES Investimento 2.618 10
8 PwC 2.164 3
9 BSCH 1.270 4
10 Deutsche Bank 1.060 3

2004 League Tables

1st Portuguese Investment
Bank in M&A Financial
Advisory in Portugal
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Reference should be made, in 2004, to the completion of the 2nd reprivatisation stage of
Portucel - Empresa Produtora de Pasta e Papel, S.A. ("Portucel") and Semapa Group's consequent
acquisition of an equity investment of 30%, with the assistance of CaixaBI's advisory services.
Reference should, similarly, be made to CGD Group's acquisition of Seguros e Pensões'
non-bancassurance business, together with CaixaBI's involvement as financial advisor. Year
end saw the acquisition of 65% of Ogma - Indústria Aeronáutica de Portugal, S.A. pursuant
to its privatisation, by a consortium led by Embraer - Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica, S.A.
to which CaixaBI provided financial advisory services.

CaixaBI's reinforcement of its lead position in the financial advisory area is demonstrated by
its first place in the Portuguese M&A banking league published by specialist organisations.
DCA continued to develop cross-border operations pursuant to CaixaBI's internationalisation,
particularly in Brazil and Spain. Special reference should also be made to the referred to
financial advisory services to Embraer - Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica, S.A. and various
endeavours to secure mandates in conjunction with CaixaBI's International Customers
Division.

Project Finance

Project finance operations in 2004 were a particularly positive area and, for DPF (Project
Finance Division) the best ever year in terms of commissions earnings and volume of credit
under management. 

This being start-up year, particular reference should be made to activities in the Spanish market
during the course of the year, which we consider to be highly successful owing to the fact
that Spain is recognised as being a particularly competitive market.

Special reference should be made to the following projects, accompanied by DPF during the
period in question:

a) Structuring of financing operation for ENERSIS's acquisition of assets formerly owned
by RES in Portugal;

b) Structuring of financing operation for a 78 MW wind farm in Serra dos Candeeiros
wholly owned by ENERSIS; 

c) Structuring of financing operation for a 96MW wind farm in Pampilhosa da Serra
wholly owned by ENERSIS, in partnership with Caixa Capital;
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d) Financial consultancy for INDÁQUA's bid in the open international tender for the
operation and management of the municipal public service's water supply and
sanitation facilities to the municipal district of Matosinhos. INDÁQUA was
notified, at year, end of the provisional award of the contract for the
Matosinhos and Vila de Conde concessions, which latter contract also benefited
from CaixaBI's financial consultancy services. The bank also secured financial
structuring mandates for both projects;

e) Structuring of financing operations for the Águas da Figueira concession, holder
of the municipal district of Figueira da Foz's water distribution and sanitation
concession;

f) Financial consultancy and financial structuring of the HPP/Teixeira Duarte consortium,
one of the groups bidding for the open tender for establishing a PPP for the
future Loures Hospital;

g) Financial consultancy and financial structuring for EPS - Gestão de Sistemas de
Saúde, CGD Group, in terms of the open tender for establishing a PPP for the
design, planning, installation, financing, operation and transfer of the SNS -
National Health Service Health Call Centre to the Contracting Public Entity;

h) Financial consultancy to FERTAGUS for renegotiating its concession contract
with the state;

i) Financial consultancy to one of the consortia bidding for the open tender for
the construction, financing and operation of toll roads comprising the DOURO
LITORAL concession;

j) Joint financial consultancy mandate for Auto-Estradas de Atlântico, S.A. ("AEA")
for refinancing all of the company's medium and long term liabilities, involving
the organisation of a bond loan under a monoline guarantee in lieu of the current
banking syndicate for EIB-European Investment Bank;

k) Structuring of financial operation of € 548m for financial vehicle BRISAL which
holds the toll concession for the Litoral Centro (Central Coastal Region) road
concession;

l) Structuring of financial operation of € 300m for financial vehicle VIAEXPRESSO
for the shadow toll operating concession of road-related investments in
Madeira;

m)Maintenance of support for the development of the bank's internationalisation
strategy, pursuant to which we were directly involved this year, inter alia, in (i)
co-guaranteeing finance for the OCAÑA - LA RODA road concession , (ii) lead-
arranging the financing operation for the PALMA - MANACOR road concession
(in progress), (iii) participation in the financing of the AUTOVIA DE LOS
VIÑEDOS road concession, (iv) participation in the financing of a bioethanol
power plant and (v) participation in financing a series of wind farms in Spain of
which reference should be made to the securing of a mandate for structuring a
series of HIDROCANTÁBRICO wind farms.

n) Financial consultancy for ABENGOA Brasil's bid in two electricity line concession
auctions in Brazil. Reference should be made to the successful outcome of the
second auction, in which ABENGOA Brasil was awarded the largest part of the
year 2004 auction in the form of the Colinas/Sobradinho transmission line for
an estimated investment of R$1bn. 
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The following is a list of project finance tombstones:
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Metro de Tenerife

€ 126,733,000

Abril 2004

Arranger

Aquisição da RES Portugal

€ 30,100,000

Abril 2004

Lead Arranger

Parque Eólico de Ribamar

€ 4,331,600

Abril 2004

Lead Arranger

Parque Eólico
da Serra dos Candeeiros

€ 89,755,292

Junho 2004

Lead Arranger

Concessão do Douro Litoral

Parceria Público Privada

Junho 2004

Financial Advisor

Parque Eólico
da Pampilhosa da Serra

€ 122,000,000

Julho 2004

Lead Arranger

Parque Eólico Becosa Alijar

€ 21,712,000

Julho 2004

Co-Arranger

Hospital de Loures

Parceria Público Privada

Julho 2004

Financial Advisor

Concessão Ocaña La Roda

€ 547,850,000

Agosto 2004

Co-Arranger
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Centro de Atendimento
do SNS

Parceria Público Privada

Setembro 2004

Financial Advisor

Concessão
do Litoral Centro

€ 547,488,929

Setembro 2004

Lead Arranger

Biocarburantes
Castilla y Leon

€ 162,396,000

Novembro 2004

Senior Lead Manager

Linha de transmissão
Colinas - Sobradinho

(Estados da Bahia, Tocantins e Piauí)

Parceria Público Privada

Novembro 2004

Financial Advisor

Autovia de los Viñedos

€ 134,000,000

Dezembro 2004

Manager

Distribuição de água
e saneamento básico da

Figueira da Foz

€ 30,700,000

Dezembro 2004

Lead Arranger

Concessão da
VIAEXPRESSO

€ 286,809,211

Dezembro 2004

Lead Arranger

Parque Eólico
Piedras del Alto

€ 31,813,000

Dezembro 2004

Co-Arranger

Parque Eólico Las Lomillas

€ 50,100,000

Dezembro 2004

Lead Arranger



Project Finance International Magazine considered CaixaBI the best Portuguese bank in the
project finance area in 2004. The table, construed on a purely objective basis, also made
reference to the group's fourth position in Iberia. This distinction was publicised in the
domestic media on the date of announcement.

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, was the most highly classified Portuguese bank in Project
Finance International's ranking. This specialised annual publication announced its 2004
league tables at the end of January. CaixaBI came 50th and 30th worldwide and in EMEA
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) terms, respectively, and 4th in Iberia.

Medium Sized Enterprises

The bank's business operations in this area essentially consist of providing financial advisory
services to medium-sized enterprises with a turnover of up to € 100m, particularly encompassing
the preparation of investment projects, including current incentives systems applications,
corporate reorganisations, financial restructuring, company assessments and prospecting for
strategic or financial partners, corporate mergers, demergers and acquisitions and structuring
of their respective financial operations. This area worked in close co-operation with CGD's
Empresas e Soluções offices and its Major Enterprises Division for companies with registered
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Project Finance 2004 - MLA Iberian League Tables

Rank# Bank Value (US$ MM)

1 BBVA 1,819.0
2 Santander Central Hispano 1,609.0
3 Caja Madrid 1,093.9
4 Caixa - Banco de Investimento 594.9
5 Espiríto Santo Investimento 449.8
6 BCP Investimento 418.6
7 Instituto Oficial de Crédito 145.9
8 Banco de Sabadell 135.4
9 BPI 112.9

10 Caixa Catalunha 77.6

Project Finance
2004 League Tables

1st Portuguese

Mandated Lead Arranger

Project Finance
2004 League Tables

4th Iberian

Mandated Lead Arranger

Project Finance
2004 League Tables

1st Portuguese

Financial Advisor



offices in the northern and southern regions.

The bank also prospected for business in its other operating areas, particularly medium-sized
companies segments, in the referred to regions.

The following is a list of principal project awards for the year:

• Grupo Solouro Vinhos, SA - financial restructuring advisory services and securing
of group development funding;

• Sociedade Textil A Flôr do Campo, SA - financial restructuring advisory services
and securing of corporate development funding;

• Aldamar, Lª - corporate assessment and prospecting for a purchaser;

• Imperpar, SGPS - reassessment of group companies, in addition to prospecting for
strategic and/or financial partners willing to join the group through an acquisition
operation;

• Manuel Rodrigues Gouveia SA - corporate reorganisation, negotiation and struc-
turing of associated financial operations;

• Moara Textil, Lª - financial advisory services for the preparation of a corporate
development project associated with the definition of new investment projects, their
financing structure and the respective financial operations structuring;

• Barcelcom SA - financial restructuring advisory services and securing of corporate
development funding;

• Resende Actividades Turísticas, SA - financial advisory services for the assessment
and acquisition of a transport sector company;

• Quorum, SA - financial restructuring advisory services and securing of corporate
development funds.

Securities Investment and Trading

In DFI (Financial and Investments Division) reference should be made to the increase of operations
deriving from project finance interest rate risk hedging operations, mainly comprising
Corporate Risk Advisory Management activities. 

Reference should also be made to the greater commitment to high level advisory and added
value services to specific sectors and areas, such as copper and oil commodities, in which
CaixaBI's level of know-how is highly unusual in Portugal. The fact that two advisory service
projects were realised in these areas is a clearly positive development, indicative of a new
source of potential income to be built upon.

Advisory services were once again fundamental in securing a regular flow of operations
deriving, this year, from foreign exchange hedging operations.

For Irish subsidiary Caixa Ireland, this was a strategy assessment year followed by portfolio
reorganisation and prospecting for alternatives to increase business and optimise fiscal benefits.
Although work began in 2004, this is a medium term operation which will continue
throughout 2005.

2004 was marked by CaixaBI's start-up as a Euronext Lisbon market making operator. The bank
was the first Portuguese banking institution to enter into liquidity provider contracts with
Euronext on Portuguese stockmarket listed shares. Worthy of note is the high visibility and
pioneering characteristics of this operation's start-up, together with the financial benefits
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accruing from this new DFI business area.

The first agreement on COFINA shares was followed, in 2004, by another on NOVABASE
shares. A further three or four contracts are expected to be entered into, in 2005, from
when CaixaBI will have a highly satisfactory portfolio for this type of service in addition to
benefiting from the recognition afforded to its expertise.

DFI's activities during the year were, however, subject to the following major constraints:

1. Business operators were forced to contend with a permanently, highly charged political
situation. Eurozone macroeconomic prospects are still weak and there is no sign of
a clearer definition of consumer and investor confidence as regards employment and
investment;

2. Notwithstanding the fact that it is more or less generally accepted that Eurozone
interest rates are unlikely to fall over the short term, the possibility does exist, owing
to the euro's strength. This not only makes it extremely difficult to manage portfolio
interest rates but also makes it difficult for company managers to gauge interest rate
hedging operations;

3. The constant narrowing of spreads, deriving from the abrupt drop in volatility and,
therefore, risk premium and scarcity of market issues, has reduced average investment
portfolio spread, eventually compensated by the volume effect. Financial margin
management was extremely difficult owing to the high level of reimbursements and
difficulty in finding valid replacement alternatives.
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Investment Portfolio by Sector and Weighted by Amounts   

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
   TOTAL  TOTAL EXC/ IRELAND HEADQUARTERS  IRELAND
PUB.D/SUPRANATIONAL   27.18% 23.85% 44.06% 9.19% 49.58%
CORPORATE DEBT   72.82% 76.15% 55.94% 90.81% 50.42%
SECTORS
FINANCIAL    16.49% 18.94% 4.51% 29.41% 0.00%

CONSTRUCTION     0.86% 0.99% 2.36% 0.00% 0.00%

UTILITIES    5.06% 5.81% 3.68% 7.35% 0.00%

TOBACCO    2.53% 0.64% 0.00% 1.10% 15.26%

RETAIL    13.16% 13.38% 24.05% 5.63% 11.68%

INDUSTRY    0.97% 1.12% 2.66% 0.00% 0.00%

AUTOMOBILE   14.12% 12.73% 2.19% 20.38% 23.48%

TRANSPORT/AUTOMOBILE   2.84% 3.26% 7.74% 0.00% 0.00%

MOTORWAYS   5.2% 5.92%  1.8% 8.9% 0.0%

TELECOMS   11.63% 13.36% 6.91% 18.05% 0.00%

MADEIRA
OFFSHORE

PROPORTION



The following is a list of the principal corporate advisory and risk management and structuring
services:

Operation Type of Operation

Via Expresso Interest rate hedging 
EGREP Exchange rate hedging on oil reserve
Sonae Interest rate hedging
Portucel Sale with a 4% Put Option - Ence
Ribamar Interest rate hedging 
Indáqua Interest rate hedging 
EDM Advisory services on sale of copper call option
Cofina Liquidity provider agreement
Novabase Liquidity provider agreement

Brokerage

CaixaBI in completing the Euronext cash market migration process, began to operate as a
remote member of the Paris, Amsterdam and Brussels stockmarkets, in 2004. 22 March
2004 saw Portuguese derivatives market migration to the pan European Liffe connect
platform. CaixaBI became a member of this market although it has not, as yet, been
directly connected.

CaixaBI sponsored the Paris "next event" in September 2004 in association with Euronext.

It simultaneously consolidated the relationship with its European ESN Partners, reinforced by
CaixaBI's presence in different committee meetings, in addition to participation in ESN
sponsored events.

DCV (Brokerage Division Sales Area) was involved in the share placements for Media Capital's
initial public offer and EDP's capital increase. 

DCV's stock exchange intermediation of € 6.6 bn in 2004 was 29% up over the preceding year.

There was a 36% overall increase in intermediation volume to € 7 bn over 2003.
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The following chart provides information on intermediation volumes:

Euronext Status

CaixaBI had a 6% market share of Euronext Lisbon, which represents 51% of DCV's global
intermediation, coming 7th out of the ranking of 40 market members.

Commissions

Gross commissions were 44.33% up over the preceding year, as follows:

Annual Report 2004

Activity
Brokerage

51

8,000

7,000

6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

0
2002 2003 2004

Intermediated Volume

€ 
th

ou
sa

nd

Years

Euronext Lisbon

Euronext Paris, Amst., Brussels

External stockmarkets

OTC

7,000

6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

0
2002 2003 2004

Commissions

€ 
th

ou
sa

nd

Years

Euronext Lisbon

Foreign stockmarkets

Placements



Customer Profile

CaixaBI's Brokerage Division provided services to a wide range of customers ranging from
small retailers to major international institutional customers, involving a variety of different
channels and media.

The following graph provides information on customer profile, in terms of brokerage
commissions:

Venture Capital

CGD Group's 2004 venture capital operations continued to be provided for by Caixa Capital
- Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. (which, in addition to concentrating operating activities
as a whole, also operates as the fund manager for two venture capital funds) and Caixa
Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. (principally geared to capital development operations having
the highest potential appreciation).

Caixa Capital – Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A.

Venture capital operations, in 2004, were impacted by the macroeconomic climate in
Portugal and, to a more general extent, other European Union countries. This situation
has created a climate of business uncertainty and has had a negative effect on the willingness
to make new investments, resulting in a reduction of new investment opportunities, for
analysis purposes, mainly in second half 2004.

A total number of 75 investment projects/opportunities were analysed in comparison to 93
in 2003. 80% of such projects were rejected or filed and 6 approved, representing an 8%
approval rate.

An analysis of project type by activity sector shows industry and services to be responsible
for 64% of project submissions in comparison to a 2003 figure of 78.5%. In terms of this
indicator reference should also be made to (i) the increase in the number of eligible projects
in the information technologies sector and (ii) the analysis of six private equity investment
fund opportunities.
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The most frequently found operations comprised expansions and start-ups which accounted
for around 70% of new investment opportunity submissions.

CGD Group venture capital area operations invested € 18m in 2004, of which € 8.6m in new
operations and € 9.4m in additional portfolio investments. Three other investment
operations were also approved but failed to proceed by year end. These opportunities, if
formalised, would have represented an additional financial commitment of € 4.6m.

Of amounts invested, special reference should be made to the 42.5% equity investment in
Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A., a financial vehicle formed in partnership with Enersis
Group for the acquisition of the assets of the Renewable Energy System (RES) in Portugal
and latter development of the Pampilhosa da Serra wind farm. Caixa Capital's global year
end investment in this subsidiary totalled € 2.3m. It is expected, by end 2005 and in line
with the wind farm's planned investment project, to originate one of the country's largest
wind farms with a generating capacity of 96 Mw. Caixa Capital may invest as much as
€ 8.6m.

In terms of prospecting for new business, reference should be also made to the organisation
of various venture capital area presentation sessions with CGD Commercial Divisions,
notably direct contact with "Empresas & Soluções" offices. Work also started on a Caixa
Capital presentation programme targeted at diverse companies with recognised growth and
appreciation potential which may be involved in future private equity operations.

Caixa Capital has also been collaborating with Caixa Geral de Depósitos and Universidade
Nova de Lisboa on the organisation of a national entrepreneurship competition, which will
be held for the first time in 2005. The aim is to stimulate an entrepreneurial culture among
students and researchers in scientific and management areas and support innovative
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project launches, principally those having a major technological component. The participation's
objective in terms of this initiative is not only to boost entrepreneurship but also involves
access to eligible Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group venture capital project investment strategy
for investment purposes.

Caixa Capital has also been involved in several entrepreneurship-related initiatives, having
(i) been a jury member of the "Bioempreendedor" (bio-entrepreneur) Ideas Competition
comprising a Portuguese Bioindustries Association (APBio) and ICEP initiative designed to
reward the most interesting ideas/businesses in the biotechnology area and (ii) collaborated
on the COHiTEC initiative, developed in conjunction with COTEC and North Carolina State
University which applies a methodology developed by the above university to bridge the gap
between scientific and business communities by creating new products and new businesses
based on research and development sources, involving researchers in technology areas and
postgraduate management students.

Endeavours have also been made to expand corporate training, supporting the frequency of
various training courses and knowledge acquisition, which factors are considered to be a
sine qua non for respective function development. The bank was involved in several conferences,
seminars and forums on various venture capital, entrepreneurship and innovation and energy
related subjects.

In addition to its own portfolio, Caixa Capital also monitored the portfolios of the funds
under its own and Caixa Desenvolvimento management.

Subsidiary companies as a whole tend to eventually comprise a majority of companies with
high growth and appreciation potential whose furtherance is one of venture capital investment
policy's principal aims, as evidenced in the investment and disinvestment occurring over the
last few years.

This also involved the implementation of a qualitative management policy of the subsidiaries
portfolio, pursuant to which several initiatives were implemented with the aim of
transferring institutional investments to other CGD Group areas, or their alienation to
parties with a potential interest in each of the respective projects, following the recommendation
of the Investments Board. Steps were also taken to adapt the specific conditions of companies
requiring special intervention in an attempt to speed up liquidation processes and corporate
disputes involving companies on which such decisions have been taken.

Caixa Capital currently manages a portfolio of 44 companies (51 in 2003), belonging to the
broadest range of activity sectors nationwide, in which around € 105m has been invested
in equity investments of € 75.9m, auxiliary payments of € 3.9m and partners' loans of
€ 25.1m.

An excellent working relationship with the boards of directors of the subsidiary companies,
from a shareholder-specific approach, comprises the best means of achieving the prompt
design and adoption of the eventual structural and/or economic adjustment measures
required to meet each company's objectives.

Such intervention, designed to create an effective partnership, has also been evidenced in
permanent technical supervision of corporate activities and, particularly, joint consideration
of the reasons for any budget projection deviations, short and medium term market
development prospects and appropriate corrective measures.

The preferred modus operandi involved periodical visits to companies and meetings with
their respective managers, in addition to the permanent compilation, updating and technical
processing of information housed in the database created for each subsidiary.

A regular dialogue was also established with our representatives on subsidiaries' statutory
bodies to ensure a properly articulated performance strategy, complemented by a more
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technical supervisory activity. 

Mutual business co-operation and subsidiary value enhancement involved greater articulation
and communication between various CGD Group institutions (particularly commercial areas)
and Caixa-Banco de Investimento, S.A., always from a viewpoint of enabling the reinforcement
of links and partnerships between subsidiaries and CGD Group as a whole.

Caixa Capital is represented on 47 statutory bodies of 32 subsidiaries and in a non-executive
capacity on 29 boards of directors.

An overall structure analysis of the Caixa Capital managed portfolio shows that 18, or 41%
of subsidiaries are located in the centre and interior of the country and absorb 24% of total
investment.

An identical number of companies are headquartered in Lisbon and surrounds and accounts
for 60% of the investment total. Investment is obviously not limited to this geographical
zone as a large proportion of the companies and economic groups in question operate
practically nationwide and even abroad.

73% of direct investments have essentially been made in industrial, commercial and
other companies in addition to others ranging from the agricultural to agro-industrial
to public works sectors, tourism and renewable energies which also perform a large
range of vertical or complementary activities.

A comparative analysis of the current portfolio equity investment structure shows that
shareholdings of under 30% have been made in 90% of subsidiaries.

Annual Report 2004

Activity
Venture Capital

55

Number of companies Amount of investment

Interior
16%

Lisbon
27%

Lisbon region
14%

Other
7% Central

10%

Interior
12%

Lisbon
26%

Lisbon region
34%

Other
15%

North
11%

North
3%

Central
25%

19

2

20

3

0

10

20

30

Up to 15% 15%-30% 30%-50% More than 50%

Share Capital
(no. companies)



Although there has been a slight degree of oscillation in average investment per company,
the most recent new investments are much higher than the overall average, which has been
highly impacted by several older, mainly institutional investments, included, owing to the
referred to restructuring process in Caixa Capital managed portfolios.

Investments

The following new investments were made by Caixa Capital and its managed funds in 2004:

• Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. - A total investment of € 2,282,011 made
by Caixa Capital, comprising an equity investment of 42.5%. Investment comprised
€ 637,500 in share capital and € 1,644,511 in partners' loans. 

• Macquarie Airports (MAP) - Investment of € 1,674,631 by FIQ CGD Group - Caixa
Capital in this fund, following the Macquarie Airports Group Limited (MAG) merger
process.

• NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. - Investment of € 1,391,373 by FIQ PME -
Caixa Capital, comprising an equity investment of 8.2%. The FIQ PME - Caixa Capital
investment comprised € 697,610 in share capital and € 693,763 in partners' loans. 

Additional Investments in Fund Subsidiaries

The following additional financial reinforcements were made in portfolio subsidiaries:

• Finpro, SGPS, S.A. - Additional investment and capital subscribed and fully paid up
by FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital for the amount of € 3,101,479.33.

• Fundo NovEnergia 2010 - Additional investment by FIQ CGD - Caixa Capital with
18 new investment units in the capital of Fundo NovEnergia 2010, comprising
additional investment of € 1,006,670, to fund two renewable energy sector projects.

• PP3E - Projectos e Participações em Empreendimentos de Energia Eléctrica,

S.A. - FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital provided an overall amount of € 5,240,154.76
in diverse partners' loans to this company during the year. 

• Sinalemp - Sinalética Empresarial, SGPS, S.A. - A loan of € 96,900 from Caixa
Capital to fund treasury operations. 

• Sun Co, Comp. Energia Solar, S.A. - A loan of € 17,500 from FIQ PME - Caixa Capital
to fund treasury operations. 
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Disinvestments

Caixa Capital disinvested total or partial amounts of € 19.7m in various portfolio companies
as follows:

• Cabelte - Projectos Internacionais, SGPS, S.A. - Alienation of Caixa Capital and
FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital investments in this company for the amount of
€ 7,111,520.

• Esence, S.A. - FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital alienated its investment in this company
for the amount of € 134,276, as part of a recovery dispute in which CGD was also
involved.

• Ferraço, S.A. - FIQ PME - Caixa Capital, pursuant to the agreed schedule, alienated
1,875 shares for € 14,981, having received repayment of € 56,115 in partners'
loans.

• Fibope - Filmes Biorientados, S.A. - In line with the previously agreed schedule,
FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital redeemed the last of its 120,000 shares in this
subsidiary, for the amount of € 1,205,744.

• Fundição FSM Internacional, S.A. - Alienation of Caixa Capital's investment in this
company for € 335,197, under the terms of a disputed recovery process.

• Gimob, SGPS, S.A. - This company's dissolution and liquidation generated proceeds
of € 93,807 for Caixa Capital.

• Macquarie Airports Group Limited (MAG) - Total FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital
disinvestment in this fund, generated € 6,698,523.

• Macquarie Airports (MAP) - FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital disinvestment in this
fund, through the sale of the whole of its share portfolio at a net price of A$ 2.27
(Australian dollars) per share, comprised the amount of € 1,958,650.

• PMH - Produtos Médicos Hospitalares, S.A. - Part disinvestment of corporate
involvement, in line with the contractually agreed schedule, by Caixa Capital and FIQ
PME - Caixa Capital, realising € 179,760 in investments and € 49,880 in partners'
loans.

• SOLIDAL - Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. - FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital sold off
its equity investment in this company for an overall € 601,538.

• TEGOPI - Indústria Metalomecânica, S.A. - Caixa Capital alienated its financial
investment of € 998,511 in this company.

• Tradingpor, S.A. - Repayment of € 87,896 in partners' loans to FIQ CGD Group -
Caixa Capital.

• UNIFER, S.A. - Alienation by Caixa Capital of its remaining investment of € 217,350
in this subsidiary. 

Caixa Capital, on behalf of Caixa Geral de Depósitos, supervised the investments in
Companhia de Papel do Prado, S.A., Prado - Cartolinas da Lousã, S.A. and Prado Karton -
Companhia de Cartão, S.A.

It also represented CGD in terms of the supervision and latter dissolution and liquidation of
SOSET - Projectos de Desenvolvimento, S.A. up until the liquidation and division of assets,
pursuant to which the procedure in respect of the whole of this investment was completed.

It also collaborated in the administration and management of FIEP - Fundo para a

Annual Report 2004

Activity
Venture Capital

57



Internacionalização das Empresas Portuguesas, SGPS, S.A., including the respective
dissolution and liquidation process still in progress.

Caixa Capital was also involved in setting up two new venture capital funds: FIQ API - FIEP
and FIQ API - Grandes Projectos de Investimento, whose pre-registration has already been
approved by CMVM (securities watchdog) and in which CGD Group will be investing € 5.1m
and € 3m, respectively.

Fund Management

Decree Law no. 319/2002 of 28 December altered venture capital fund legislation, having
determined their supervision by the Venture Capital Funds Securities Market Commission
which established a new venture capital regime and accountancy plan, which regulations
were adopted by Caixa Capital on 1 January 2004.

Following the resolutions taken by their respective Investors' Meetings, FIQ Comércio - Caixa
Capital and FIQ PEDIP - Caixa Capital were incorporated by FIQ PME - Caixa Capital, on 1
January 2004, which company had a fully subscribed and paid up share capital of 580
investment units for the amount of € 14,465,139.

In addition to FIQ PME, Caixa Capital is also responsible for managing FIQ CGD Group -
Caixa Capital. The share capital of the two funds, at year end, was:
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FIQ PME - Caixa Capital

Investor
Investment

Units
 Subscribed
and Paid Up

CGD 365 9,103,062
IAPMEI 215 5,362,077
TOTAL  580 14,465,139

Amounts in euros

FIQ CGD Group - Caixa Capital

Investor
Investment

Units
Subscribed
and Paid Up

CGD 1,198 59,755,988
D. G. TESOURO 100 4,987,979
CAIXA CAPITAL 2 99,760
TOTAL  1,300 64,843,727

Amounts in euros
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The fund's capital allocations totalled € 79.3 m, with respective portfolios comprising global
investment of around € 60.8m. Credits received on assets sales totalled € 6.6m, with the
remaining € 16.6m being available for new investments.

As regards new venture capital funds, reference should also be made to the fact that the
Caixa Capital Venture Capital Fund for Qualified Renewable Energy Investors was registered
with the CMVM and is expected to begin operations in first quarter 2005.

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Desenvolvimento continued to monitor its subsidiaries and prospect for new business
in line with the year 2004 strategy drawn up by the company's board of directors.

The company made a new investment in NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, SA, during the year,
involving an overall amount of € 3,208,627 comprising equity investment of € 1,608,750
and partners' loans of € 1,599,877.

Disinvestments included the disposal of our investment in Solidal, SA, generating proceeds
of € 10,667,687, comprising equity investment of € 6,917,687 and repayment of
€ 3,750,000 in partners' loans.

Reinvestment, based on deferred capital gains tax of € 49,644,987 generated by previous
years' activities had to be made this year. Pursuant to the above and given that article 45 of
the IRC Code requires the reinvestment to comprise equity investments in companies or
securities issued by the Portuguese state, Caixa Desenvolvimento acquired a nominal amount
of € 48.5m in "OTJUL0306E" series treasury bonds which, in addition to the respective
accrued interest involved overall investment of € 49,683,599.32.

€ 57m of funding was provided by Caixa - Banco de Investimento, to cover the treasury
bond investment of € 49.7m, with the remaining € 7.3m being used to fund operations,
including the advance redemption of two loans previously taken out with CaixaBI.
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Investment Portfolio

The following table provides information on Caixa Desenvolvimento's investment and credit
portfolios after the completion of the already referred to end 2004 operations:

Dividends of € 221,291.26 were received from the SAG GEST, SGPS, SA, investment in 2004. 

Management Control 

CaixaBI's in-house control system continues to be based on five pillars, identified in accordance
with the bank's size, from a viewpoint of: 

1. Administrative organisation of structural organs

2. Risk control

3. Compliance

4. Information system

5. CGD Group internal audit structure 

The board of directors is fully responsible for the approval and periodic revision of the bank's
strategies, policies and objectives and the implementation of its organic structure and has
cultivated an in-house environment focusing on the control function as an indissociable
corollary for  each area's performance.

The board of directors defines annual risk assessment measures objectives in its activities
plan to be budgeted with each area's collaboration. To permit the monitoring and
supervision of the respective performance, the bank's structural organs are responsible for
the practical implementation of the board of directors' directives, maintaining an organic

Annual Report 2004

Activity
Management Control 

60

Investments
Company No. Shares % Capital  Acquisition Price

SAG GEST, SGPS, SA  2,030,195 1.35 4,999,759.51 
VISTA ALEGRE Atlântis, SGPS, SA  5,333,120 9.88 7,891,777.76 
NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, SA  1,608,750 18.93 1,608,750.00 
FINPRO Infraestruturas, SGPS, SA  20,000 10.00 100,000.00 
Grupo Pestana Pousadas – Investimentos 
Turísticos, SA  300,000 15.00 1,500,000.00 
MIF - Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SA  1,597,444 10.76 4,999,999.72 
VISABEIRA Indústria, SGPS, SA  446,153 16.70 2,899,994.50 
TOTAL (1) - - 24,000,281.49 

Credits and Partners' Loans
Company Partners' Loans Credits  Total

BARRAQUEIRO, SGPS, SA  - 27,924,909 27,924,909
NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, SA  1,599,877 - 1,599,877
Grupo Pestana Pousadas – Investimentos
Turísticos, SA  1,500,000 - 1,500,000
VISABEIRA Indústria, SGPS, SA  1,100,000 - 1,100,000
Outros - 42,963 42,963
TOTAL (2) 4,199,877 27,967,872 32,167,749

PORTFOLIO TOTAL: (1) + (2) 56,168,030.49

Amounts in euros



structure which provides a clear definition of responsibility, authority and reporting statuses,
eliminating grey areas and enforcing the definition of efficient communication channels to
enable suitably qualified employees to perform the functions which have been allocated to
them.

CaixaBI has implemented two in-house control aspects:

Structural organs play an active role in defining and verifying appropriate policies and
procedures, helping to improve internal control which is divided up into three vectors,
allowing the existing information to be reliably and promptly obtained and controlled:

• Definition of unquantified commercial objectives in target market terms, establishing
credit and market risk limits, quantified on several levels and controlled on a daily
basis by structures which are independent from the business organs;

• Separation of functions, pursuant to which any transaction is approved, executed,
processed and recognised and continually monitored and controlled by independent
structures;

• An IT system producing daily financial and management information in respect of the
immediately preceding working day.

Compliance, in terms of intervention with structural organs, consists of verifying whether
sensitive functions, which require adequate controls, are being correctly performed. 

In the case of the relevant structural organs, the contents of contracts with third parties
(customers and counterparts) must always be compared with the registration of their
effects.

In terms of the said functions, compliance examines, verifies and issues reports to the board
on any eventual inadequacies found in any structural organ. No such inadequacies were
detected in 2004.

The Financial Information Department in its daily control of the immediately preceding
working day's transaction, will immediately inform the administration of any problems.
Monthly reports are prepared to enable not only a review of deviations from the
activity in comparison to planned objectives, but principally the monitoring of
effective financial trends, allowing prompt corrective or reaffirmative management
intervention.

The bank, as a CGD Group member, subordinates risk management to the group's own
organs, notably its Risk Management Division, although it also maintains subsequent
control both in terms of an analysis of each business and operation and on an individual
transactional level. 

Market risks are controlled daily and reports thereon mirroring the bank's various positions
at the preceding day's close sent to the administration and other relevant organs. The
market risks control system allows all positions to be reconciled daily by support and
business units.

The bank reassesses its derivatives position daily. This allows it to evaluate its potential and
global exposure in terms of counterparts or customers.

Credit control risks are supervised and reported to the administration and other relevant
organs. The procedures in terms of the quality of the risks assumed is autonomously
monitored. The control system implemented mirrors the exposure risk attached to credits
extended to individual customers. The monitoring of system-generated elements
allows appropriate involvement levels to be evaluated by customer, product and maturity
period.

Annual Report 2004

Activity
Management Control 

61



CaixaBI subscribes to the control principles by subordinating its structure in terms of the
above referred to mechanisms to:

a) compliance with management objective definitions;

b) economic and efficient use of resources;

c) adequate risk control and custodian services;

d) reliability and integrity of financial and management information;

e) compliance with legislation, regulations and in-house procedures.

Structural Costs 

Control of the bank's structural costs is in line with its performance strategy and business
structure.

CaixaBI has used the cost-to-income ratio as its principal performance yardstick, both in
absolute terms and in respect of the financial sector benchmark which has consistently
pointed to a figure of 50%.

Control of structural costs and substantial 2004 net operating income growth, succeeded in
reducing this figure to less than 40%. The ratio was 37.8% after adjustment for the incorporation
of income from employees on loan. 

Human Resources

Human resources continue to be treated as an area requiring special needs in terms of
investment banking training. Employees, in 2004, were given the opportunity to improve
their levels of specialist training, by taking financial area masters and other postgraduate
courses, higher Banking Management courses given by the Instituto de Formação Bancária
(Bank Training Institute) in addition to English language courses and several one-off
seminars or training actions, particularly in respect of the future IAS-International
Accounting Standards. 

The bank lowered the age level of its employees in comparison to 2003. 64% of employees,
in 2004, were aged 39 or under.

CaixaBI closed the year with 148 employees as against a year 2003 total of 140. The increase
was geared to business areas.

Annual Report 2004

Activity
Management Control 

62

HR by Age Brackets

Up to 29
15%

 30 - 34
26%

 35 - 39
23%

50 - 60
11%

40 - 49
25%



Detail on the bank's consolidated operations is given in the following chart which divides
employees up into functional areas:
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HR by Operating Areas
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Outlook for 2005

Portuguese economic growth in 2005, is expected to be higher than the Eurozone average.
Forecasts indicate 2.4%, as against a Eurozone average of 2.2%.

2005 appears likely to be a year of major challenge. After a successful year in terms of mandates
secured and operations executed, reflected in the volume of commissions charges and credit
portfolio under management, notwithstanding the uncertainties affecting business
investment decisions, CaixaBI intends to be the benchmark operator in terms of major
domestic groups. We intend to maintain the sustained growth of our involvement with
public sector companies and institutional customers. We wish to increase the bank's involvement
with CGD's branch office network and provide a complementary offer of products. We wish
to represent the bank with domestic customers, differentiating ourselves from our competitors
by our proactive approach, excellence of service, supervisory consistency and innovation in
our approach to their needs. In short, we wish to be partners in all business areas. 

The operations currently in the pipeline for 2005 suggest that this commitment has been
appreciated by our customers. 

In the international area, we continued to closely monitor the development of
Corporación InterAmericana para el Financiamento de Infraestructura S.A ("CIFI") in 2004.
This is a company in which CaixaBI has an equity investment of around 7%, and whose
remaining capital is owned by Banco Inter-Americano de Desenvolvimento and regional
commercial banks. Principal events in 2004 particularly included CIFI's membership of
NORFUND which is a Norwegian fund associated with development issues and a Finnish
sister institution - FINFUND. This increase in its shareholders' equity and broadening of
shareholder composition will make it possible to dynamise the institution and its role in
financing regional infrastructures.

Future prospects in this area comprise the maintenance of our major commercial endeavours
in the two operating areas with the aim of promoting Caixa Banco de Investimento's
recognition and visibility abroad and maintenance of initiatives designed to exploit and
achieve success in new markets, particularly those in which Portugal has traditionally enjoyed
a strong association or which may be an expansion target for the principal Portuguese
companies.

In due consideration of reasonably positive macroeconomic prospects, M&A activities are
expected to benefit from a larger number of major corporate investments at a time of economic
recovery.
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The coming year is expected to see a certain buoyancy in the capital market in which
a contributory factor will consist of several privatisation operations planned in the
State Budget and Major Planning Options for 2005, notably the listing and latter
public sale of Galp Energia shares. The government has expressed its intention to
proceed with privatisations and it is likely that several of the operations planned but
not performed in 2004 will take place in 2005, e.g. the referred to Galp Energia
(stockmarket), REN, Águas de Portugal, TAP and ANA operations. Another operation
which could be scheduled for the coming year is EDP's 6th privatisation stage.
Reference should, however, be made to the fact that legislative elections will be held
at end February 2005 and that in accordance with the dispositions of the Major
Planning Options for 2005, the government has merely stated its intention to "resume
the privatisations programme, exploiting the expected financial market upturn fuelled
by economic growth", for which reason, notwithstanding the planning of such
operations for the coming year, they cannot be considered as certain, owing to the fact
that the Major Planning Options are not very specific.

Taking our leading position in the domestic investment banking market into account,
CaixaBI is expected to continue to increase its level of activity and secure important
mandates in both financial advisory and capital market areas.

In financial advisory terms, the bank intends to continue to develop cross-border operations
pursuant to CaixaBI's internationalisation in both Brazil and Spain, in addition to China, in
accordance with the agreement reached with the Seng Heng Bank of Macao.

Similarly, medium-sized enterprises will see a turnaround in corporate management
terms, for which reason the said companies will make greater use of consultancy and
technical and financial advisory services.

Principal project finance operating areas in 2005 will include (i) the energy sector,
comprising financial consultancy and the structuring of financing operations for
alternative energy associated projects - particularly wind - and the construction of new
combined power cycle plants, (ii) monitoring of the evolution of the downstream
water sector in Portugal, by providing support to CaixaBI customers via financial
consultancy mandates and the structuring of financing operation for domestic municipal
water distribution and basic sanitation, in addition to, if an alteration to the allocation
of upstream water concessions in Portugal is recommended, monitoring the model to
be used for upstream distribution, (iii) road infrastructures, based on the premise that
progress will be made in terms of the evolution of current procedures, contingent
upon a resolution of the Portuguese state, and (iv) dynamisation of the bank's
internationalisation in prospecting for project finance associated assets in terms of
financial consultancy and structuring of financing operations in Spain, Brazil and/or
other markets in which the bank's current customers may show interest, particularly
Eastern Europe.

The brokerage business represents a major challenge in terms of CaixaBI's activities.
The development of Invest, Madrid Stock Exchange membership, liquidity provider
agreements associated with growing penetration of the institutional customer base,
represent several of the areas in which the bank expects to achieve very positive results
in 2005.

Venture capital will continue to concentrate on identifying new business opportunities
and innovative projects whose potential return may prove to be an attractive investment
in accordance with the bank's current investment policy. Preference will, in this
context, be given to interventions in several priority operating sectors and companies
suitable for development capital operations. Caixa Capital also intends to continue its
collaboration with Caixa Geral de Depósitos and Universidade Nova de Lisboa in the
organisation of a national entrepreneurship competition. 
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In new venture capital fund terms, reference should also be made to the registration
of the Caixa Capital Renewable Energy Qualified Investors Venture Capital Fund with
CMVM, which is expected to start-up in 2005, joining the other two venture capital
funds under Caixa Capital management.
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Proposal for the Appropriation
of Net Income

The board of directors, considering the levels of shareholders' equity required to allow the bank to
perform its activities and after consulting its sole inspector, hereby submits a proposal to the general
meeting for the following appropriation of the total amount of € 19,063,713 of net income for 2004:

• Legal reserve (10% of net income for year) € 1,906,371
• Dividends € 17,157,342

Lisbon, 17 February 2005

Board of Directors

Chairman Vítor Ângelo Mendes da Costa Martins

Board Jorge Humberto Correia Tomé Alcides Saraiva de Aguiar
Members

Vítor Fernando da Veiga Castanheira José Joaquim Berberan Santos Ramalho

Vasco Maria de Portugal e Castro d´Orey Mário Cristina de Sousa

Alberto Manuel Sarmento Azevedo Soares António Luis Neto





Annual Report 2004

73

Qualified Equity
Investments

• Gerbanca SGPS, S.A. 68,348,445 shares
89.24% of voting rights

• Companhia de Seguros Fidelidade-Mundial, S.A. 7,959,630 shares
10.39% of voting rights

Qualified Equity Investments
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Corporate Governance

Report on CaixaBI Governance

The following report has been structured in accordance with the Annex to CMVM
Regulations 7/2001 with the aim of evidencing Caixa - Banco de Investimento's governance.

I. Disclosure of Information

1. Statutory Bodies

CaixaBI's statutory bodies are elected at a general meeting, comprising shareholders with
voting rights and entitled to pass resolutions on all matters put up for its consideration. The
bank's statutory bodies, with the following characteristics, were elected at the general meeting
of 04 April 2002 for the three year period 2002-2004:

• Shareholders' Meeting - comprising three members acting as liaison officers
between shareholders and the board of directors.

• Board of Directors - comprising nine members responsible for managing the
company in strict compliance with its corporate object and protecting the interests
of shareholders and workers. The board of directors elects an executive board from
among its members, comprising three members with executive functions to manage
the company's day-to-day affairs in accordance with the board of directors' issue of
strategic guidelines.

• Sole Inspector - comprising an acting and deputising statutory audit company
performing all activities required for inspecting the company with a view to
ascertaining the veracity and exactness of its accounting records and compliance with
existing legislation.

Corporate Governance
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2. Corporate Structure

The Executive Board in performing its management duties, defines the company's corporate
structure and respective functions. CaixaBI's organisational chart is set out below:

Corporate Governance
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3. Responsibilities

The board of directors delegates responsibility to the executive board although retaining
overall responsibility in terms of strategic management in addition to several other
responsibilities, particularly including:

• representing the bank;
• defining the bank's corporate structure;
• defining its organic and operating structure;
• attributing acts and binding authority to employee levels set out on a signature list;
• issuing powers of attorney;
• assets or rights trading;
• definition of the bank's mission and management; 
• contracting audit services to reinforce in-house compliance actions;
• annual approval of the activities plan and budget;
• preparation of proposals for submission to the general meeting, including the annual

report.

The board of directors meets whenever called by its chairman and at least every three months.

Resolutions are taken by an absolute majority of the members present or represented with
the chairman having the casting vote.

Board of directors' resolutions are only valid when more than half of its members are present
or represented.

4. Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. Equity Investments

In terms of corporate structure, the bank's equity investments have been designed to provide
an adequate reflection of its business segment in addition to leveraging CGD Group's market
intervention capacity, while providing its predominantly large and medium sized customers
with high quality valued added services. Information on CaixaBI's equity investments is provided
in the following organisation chart:

• Caixa Capital (wholly owned subsidiary) - operating in the venture capital market and
managing 2 funds.

• Caixa Desenvolvimento SGPS (wholly owned subsidiary) - venture capital market
operator specialising in managing equity investments with high growth potential.

• Caixa Ireland (wholly owned subsidiary) - providing the bank with a presence in the
Dublin International Financial Services Centre.
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CaixaBI Espanha
(Branch)
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CAIXA
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5. Use of New Technologies for Information Disclosure

CaixaBI provides a large amount of information on www.caixabi.pt.

The objective is to provide more and better information on the bank, enabling customers,
analysts and the general public to enjoy permanent access to relevant, up-to-date information.

Users can consult information on CaixaBI and its activities in addition to obtaining relevant
investment information from the bank's research area.

6. Share Capital and Dividend Policy 

The bank's share capital comprises eighty one million two hundred and fifty thousand shares
with a nominal value of one euro each.

Shares may be nominative or bearer, registered or not and are reciprocally convertible.

In share capital increases paid up in cash, shareholders will be given preference rights in
subscribing for new shares in proportion to those already owned by them unless decided
otherwise by the shareholders' meeting subject to the constraints imposed by law. 

The board of directors may decide to increase the bank's share capital on one or more occasions
in the form of cash payments until the share capital totals a maximum amount of two hundred
and fifty million euros.

In accordance with CaixaBI's articles of association, the shareholders' meeting shall pass a
resolution on the appropriation of annual profits, without being subject to any obligatory
annual minimum limit.

The shareholders' meeting may decide to provide shareholders with an advance of profits
during the course of the year as permitted by law. 

II. Exercising of Voting Rights and Shareholder Representation

Article 10 of CaixaBI's articles of association states that all shareholders with one thousand
or more shares registered in their name in the company's share ledgers are entitled to be
present at shareholders' meetings, with each block of one thousand shares being entitled to
one vote in accordance with no. 2 of article 14.

Shareholders with less than one thousand shares may form groups to make up this number
and arrange to be represented by any group member as set out in a letter addressed to the
chairman of the shareholders' meeting.

In the case of the joint ownership of shares, only one of the owners may take part in shareholders'
meetings, and must be given a power of attorney by the others.

Shareholders may arrange to be represented at shareholders' meetings by informing the
chairman of the meeting, by letter, prior to the date thereof.

Shareholders who are singular persons may arrange to be represented by other shareholders
or the persons to whom the law attributes such right. Collective persons shall be represented
by the person nominated for the purpose in question.

The chairman of the shareholders' meeting shall call an extraordinary shareholders' meeting
whenever requested by shareholders with at least the minimum number of shares required
by law and who request the calling of the meeting in a letter with a notarised signature
providing precise information on the issues to be included on the agenda and justifying the
need for the meeting.

A shareholders' meeting called at the request of shareholders shall only be held if applicants
holding the minimum number of shares required to call the meeting are present. 
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There are no limitations on voting rights, nor does any shareholder enjoy special rights and
there is no knowledge of any shareholders' agreement.

III. Corporate Rules

1. Corporate Codes of Conduct

Taking into account the fact that banking activities should be governed by strict principles
of impartiality and transparency, to be complied with by all employees, CaixaBI has introduced
in-house standards governing professional conduct, issuing directives which have been
complied in a Code of Conduct a copy of which is provided to all employees.

In-house Regulations for Security Markets have also been prepared and are in force.
They define standards and procedures to be complied with in securities intermediation activities
and have been prepared on the basis of the dispositions on this subject matter, namely the
Securities Code and Securities Market Commission dispositions. Such regulations are binding
on employees.

2. In-House Risk Control Procedures

A definition of policies and management methodologies covering the bank's assets and
liabilities, proposing standard procedures and general rules designed to protect the bank's
exposure have been prepared and are in force in CaixaBI, in articulation with and co-ordinated
by CGD Group's Risk Management Division.

This group structure body is responsible for satisfactory compliance with in-house standards
and conformity with the legal dispositions regulating the bank's activities and reports any
facts and situations which deviate from instructions.

The control loop is closed by the DPO (Planning and Organisation Division) which analyses
and systematically examines the bank's in-house control system, assessing its efficiency and
adequacy, taking into account the standards or guidelines issued by the banking supervisory
authorities. This CaixaBI structural body also has compliance function activities, providing
assistance to and information on prevention procedures to all of the bank's structural
bodies in implementing the standard procedures designed to improve control and security
and ensure that the procedures used in the performance of operations have been properly
regulated. The controls and security mechanisms established by such information bodies
and information systems, in addition to the risks attached to the bank's activities, are therefore
audited.

CaixaBI, as a full CGD Group member, must comply with standardisation criteria in terms of
formalising risk control measures and variables and monitoring and accompanying operations,
in an environment designed to provide for its specific status as an investment bank.

Specific market, credit and liquidity risk limits for the bank's portfolios have therefore been
defined.

Securities Portfolio

The establishing of portfolios is subject to authorised risk levels and adjusted to a budget
approved by the board of directors. Several basic objectives have also been defined, namely:

• the securing of adequate net interest income in line with the balance sheet of an
investment bank;

• the establishing of a securities portfolio permitting a normal degree of rotation and
adequate return in terms of capital gains;

• the investment portfolio's composition shall be limited to maximum and minimum
exposure levels;

Annual Report 2004

80 Corporate Governance



• the safeguarding of a minimum liquidity level required of a financial institution.

The return required from a portfolio comprises a CGD Group approved ROE level obtained
on the daily valuation thereof at market prices, net of financing costs. 

In calculating the allocation of shareholders' equity to operations, the necessary requirements
for hedging credit, market and operating risks are considered in accordance with current
Bank of Portugal rules.

Tradable instruments comprise bonds, shares, selected asset management funds and their
derivatives - futures, options swaps and forwards traded with the treasury or Forex positions
in CGD's trading room.

Credit Portfolio

In accordance with CGD Group credit policy, CaixaBI's remit in terms of credit approval has
been committed to the group's credit council.

A commercial proposal's assessment loop proposal begins with the CaixaBI structural body
(business/product divisions) which should obtain a risk assessment from the appropriate
CGD Group body. The proposal, supported by the risk assessment, customer file and other
relevant information is filtered by the division director, prior to being processed as part of a
formal approvals procedure, beginning with the assessment of the executive board and then
submitted for the approval of CaixaBI's board of directors.

IV. Board of Directors

1. Composition

CaixaBI's board of directors comprises the following members. Members marked with an
asterisk are executive board members:

Chairman Vítor Ângelo Mendes da Costa Martins

Board Member * Jorge Humberto Correia Tomé

Board Member * Alcides Saraiva de Aguiar

Board Member * Vítor Fernando da Veiga Castanheira

Board Member José Joaquim Berberan Santos Ramalho

Board Member Vasco Maria de Portugal e Castro d’Orey

Board Member Mário Cristina de Sousa

Board Member Alberto Manuel Sarmento Azevedo Soares

Board Member António Luis Neto
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2. Other functions performed by members of the board of directors
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Vítor Ângelo Mendes da Costa Martins
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN CAIXA - PARTICIPAÇÕES, SGPS, SA

CHAIRMAN CAIXA GERAL DE DEPÓSITOS, SA

DIRECTOR GERBANCA, SGPS, SA

Jorge Humberto Correia Tomé
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN TREM - ALUGUER DE MATERIAL CIRCULANTE, ACE

CHAIRMAN TREM II - ALUGUER DE MATERIAL CIRCULANTE, ACE

DIRECTOR CAIXA GESTÃO DE ACTIVOS, SGPS, SA

DIRECTOR PORTUGAL TELECOM, SGPS, SA

Alcides Saraiva de Aguiar
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN CAIXA CAPITAL - SOCIEDADE DE CAPITAL DE RISCO, SA

CHAIRMAN CAIXA DESENVOLVIMENTO, SGPS, SA

José Joaquim Berberan Santos Ramalho
Statutory Body  Company

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING CHAIRMAN CGD PENSÕES - SOCIEDADE GESTORA DE FUNDOS DE PENSÕES, SA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN CAIXA - GESTÃO DE ACTIVOS, SGPS, SA

DIRECTOR CAIXA GERAL DE DEPÓSITOS, SA

Vasco Maria de Portugal e Castro d’Orey
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS DIRECTOR CAIXA - GESTÃO DE ACTIVOS, SGPS, SA

DIRECTOR CAIXA CAPITAL - SOCIEDADE DE CAPITAL DE RISCO, SA

DIRECTOR CAIXA DESENVOLVIMENTO, SGPS, SA

Mário Cristina de Sousa
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN PP3E - PROJECTOS E PARTICIPAÇÕES EM EMPREENDIMENTOS DE ENERGIA ELÉCTRICA, SA 

DIRECTOR HLC (NEATH PORT TALBOT) HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTOR FIEP-FUNDO Pº A INTERNACIONALIZAÇÃO EMPRESAS PORTUGUESAS, SGPS, SA

DIRECTOR VISTA ALEGRE ATLANTIS, SGPS, SA

DIRECTOR GRUPO PESTANA POUSADAS - INVESTIMENTO TURÍSTICO, SA

DIRECTOR DEFLOC - LOCAÇÃO DE EQUIPAMENTOS DE DEFESA, SA



3. Remuneration of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of article 23 of CaixaBI's articles of association, the remuneration
payable to members of statutory bodies shall be defined by the shareholders' meeting or a
remuneration committee appointed by it for three year periods. 
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Alberto Manuel Sarmento Azevedo Soares
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN CAIXA GERAL DE DEPÓSITOS FINANCE

CHAIRMAN CAIXA GERAL FINANCE LTD

António Luis Neto
Statutory Body  Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS DEPUTY CHAIRMAN BANCO SIMEÓN, SA (EX BLE)

DIRECTOR BANCO NACIONAL ULTRAMARINO, SA - MACAU

DIRECTOR CAIXA INTERNACIONAL, SGPS, SA
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Social Responsibility 
and Sustainability

Report on CaixaBI's Social Responsibility 

and Sustainability

Caixa - Banco de Investimento (CaixaBI) undertakes to comply with the following characteristics
of a socially responsible body:

• A strong, value based involvement;

• A desire to achieve continuous progress;

• Comprehension and acceptance of the company's interdependence with its environmental
surrounds;

• Long term vision based on its responsibility to future generations;

• Principle of prudence as a decision-making rule;

• Regular dialogue and consultation with all involved parties, including the most delicate
issues;

• A desire to inform linked with transparency;

• Capacity to accept the responsibility for its decisions and account for the direct and
indirect consequences of its activity.

CaixaBI's social responsibility is reflected in sustainability strategies which, in addition to
financial performance, are also concerned with the social and environmental impacts of its
activities.

The basis is the principle of sustainable development - that economic growth, social cohesion
and environmental protection are interdependent and indissoluble.

The Three Ps or Triple Bottom Line

Agenda 21, the sustainability plan for the 21st century adopted at the Rio de Janeiro summit
of 1992, established three sustainable development areas - economic, environmental and
social - also referred to as the triple bottom line or three Ps - People, Planet, Profit.
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CaixaBI wishes to stress the importance of the said areas for the community in which it
operates: the economic axis represents wealth creation for all through durable production
and consumption; the ecological axis refers to resource conservation and management and
the social axis reflects equity and the participation of all social groups.

CaixaBI expresses its understanding of each dimension and its performance in accordance
with the following principles:

Economic

“(...) For companies, the sustainable development economy is associated with a long term

view and encompasses the environmental (environmental management, transition from

product to service, industrial ecology, etc.) areas, social and human resources (...); and,

lastly the territory: the local development and behaviour of multinationals in different

countries.” - Source: OECD.

The economic dimension of sustainability refers to organisations' impacts on the economic
conditions of the interested parties and all levels of the economic system.

Economic performance embraces all aspects of economic interactions that may exist
between an organisation and its interested parties, including the results traditionally recognised
in financial balance sheets. Such financial balance sheets give preference to indicators related
with the company's profitability because they are geared to providing information to managers
and shareholders.

Sustainable development indicators cater for other priorities and should permit the
perception of the implications of the activity of a corporate organisation in terms of the
wellbeing of its stakeholders - shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees, government,
banks and other social partners.

CaixaBI prepares its activity plans and endeavours to execute them in accordance with the
scope of a sustainable development strategy, reconciling the achieving of profit ratios
required by shareholders, with the dynamising of the business environment comprising its
customers, therefore impacting the positive effects of its economic and financial health on
the community. The bank is therefore in search of new economic efficiency contexts,
conscious of the fact that its corporate mission also involves sustained value creation for its
stakeholders, pursuant to its offer of financial products and services of recognised quality,
supported by its membership of Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group which the largest
Portuguese financial group and which enjoys the best long term domestic financial system
rating AA- from Fitch, Aa3 from Moody´s and A+ from Standard & Poor's.

Recognising and exceeding customers' expectations, improving performance levels and quality,
acting as a benchmark market operator owing to the difference of its proposals based on
ethical standards and responsibility, consolidate customers' trust in CaixaBI.

Environmental

“(... ) From a sustainable development viewpoint , the environmental issue is viewed from a

twofold consideration of resources and pollution. Also essential is concern over "slow-mov-

ing tragedies" which do not appear to have a major short term impact but whose conse-

quences over the longer term may be dramatic.” - Source: OECD.

For companies, the environmental dimension is related with its impacts on natural living and
non-living systems, including ecosystems, soil, air and water.

A socially responsible company will therefore endeavour to minimise negative and expand
positive impacts.

In terms of social responsibility, this is the one in which most people are in agreement: it has



very concrete impacts which can be felt in all countries; it is easier to assess/measure than
the social dimension and has benefited from the divulgence of events such as the Earth or
Johannesburg summits.

The financial sector is not an area of activity which entails the greatest environmental risks,
i.e. the financial sector's direct impact on the environment is relatively limited and is
essentially associated with in-house operating activities which must not, however, be
underestimated, and should be covered by environmental protection strategies - energy,
water, paper, consumables, fuel, recycling, materials re-use, waste reduction, supplier
selection, are, inter alia, included in the principal direct environmental impacts to be
considered.

The financial sector's role, however, becomes crucial as from the time when promoters of
projects having an environmental impact apply for advisory services and/or funding.

CaixaBI's activity, as an entity supplying credit to companies and as investors in the financial
market has an indirect effect on the environment.

The introduction of environmental criteria and assessment of environmental risks in project
analysis and companies eligible for support, represent a fundamental contribution in terms
of environmental protection.

In procedures involving the prospecting for and structuring of operations (either corporate
or project finance) the bank takes care to assess the environmental impact of the activity of
its corporate customers and includes an analysis of environmental effects in its corporate
assessment and funding charges.

CaixaBI, in conjunction with renewable energy promoters, is committed to the successful
achievement of the objectives of government authorities in achieving 12% of installed electricity
generation from renewable energy sources (excluding large hydroelectric power plants) by
the end of the decade. 

CaixaBI therefore has a joint financing portfolio for projects in the environmental area,
namely wind farms, hydroelectric power plants and other renewable energy sources, waste
processing and basic sanitation, projects with an enormous environmental impact and
which involve complexity at all levels, including approvals and environmental monitoring.

Social

“(...) The social component of sustainable development ranges from the implementation of

equity to enhancing the identity of human beings in all of their diversity.

Equity is, in worldwide terms, solidarity with southern countries (not only state but also

development aid) and the struggle against poverty. Sustainable development also questions

equity between generations and our responsibility for future generations.

Human development is associated with the strengthening of individual capacities through

education, responsibility, security, etc.“ - Source: OECD.

The social dimension for companies, refers to their impact on the social system in which they
operate. Their social performance assessed by an analysis of the organisation's impact on its
interested parties - employees, suppliers, consumers/customers, community, government
and society in general - locally, nationally and globally.

Therefore, in respect of its employees, a socially responsible company encourages personal
development through training and regularly monitors their health.

CaixaBI considers its immediate responsibility to provide its employees with a healthy
working environment - providing them with a medical plan which also includes their direct
family members (spouses and children) and monitoring the health of its employees in the
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workplace and respective annual check-ups - and their professional career development,
providing a multiplicity of training actions, ranging from attendance at seminars to
postgraduate courses and MBAs. The bank also provides its employees with a complementary
retirement plan.

Measures designed to fight corruption are also part of the practices companies must implement.

Pursuant to the above context CaixaBI, publishes an annual Corporate Governance Report,
assuming a totally transparent attitude in its relationship with its stakeholders. The bank has
published in-house regulations designed to ensure the high ethical standards of its employees,
in addition to compliance procedures in its operating and commercial areas. To prevent
fraud, CaixaBI has also published a Money Laundering Handbook providing for collaboration
with supervisory authorities.

As a CGD Group member, the bank is also involved in diverse sponsorships, particularly
organising artistic events in the Culturgest auditorium and helping to promote national
cultural heritage, providing continuity to an abundant cultural heritage as a catalysing force
in consolidating a community identity.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in euros)

2004 2003

ASSETS     Notes Gross Assets   Depreciation and Net Assets Net Assets 
       Provisions

Cash and cash equivalents with Central Banks 51 2,660,928 - 2,660,928 10,277,107

Loans to credit institutions payable on demand 52 10,083,197 - 10,083,197 5,469,792

Other loans and advances to credit institutions 14 13,302,015 - 13,302,015 38,448,323

Loans and advances to customers 14 419,012,528 (10,591,167) 408,421,361 314,087,793

Bonds and other fixed-income securities:

  - Public issuers 10 115,587,982 (131,945) 115,456,037 66,586,672

  - Other issuers 10 373,000,166 (266,521) 372,733,645 253,182,001

Shares and other variable-income securities 10 1,711,137 (430,146) 1,280,991 1,996,990

Equity investments in associated companies 50 1,786,675 - 1,786,675 2,466,996

Other financial investments 50 37,091,607 (2,492,675) 34,598,932 41,987,023

Equity investments in subsidiaries excluded from the consolidation 50 134,791 (134,791) - -

Intangible assets 11 5,325,190 (4,943,710) 381,480 303,753

Tangible assets 11 19,856,774 (7,785,566) 12,071,208 12,031,331

 (Of which: property) 11 (13,171,225) (2,579,690) (10,591,535) (10,760,301)

Treasury stock  53 5,999,453 - 5,999,453 5,999,453

Other assets  31 50,319,892 (6,278,064) 44,041,828 49,130,035

Prepayments and accrued income 27 74,531,246 - 74,531,246 10,637,796

Total Assets   1,130,403,581 (33,054,585) 1,097,348,996 812,605,065

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Contingent liabilities 23   217,586,607 152,021,960

    Of which:

     - Guarantees and sureties 23   (172,586,607) (101,537,029)

    - Deposits and asset-backed guarantees 23   (45,000,000) (50,484,931)

Commitments  23   282,239,340 180,863,850
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(Amounts in euros)

LIABILITIES + SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Notes 2004 2003

Amounts owed to credit institutions:   

 - Payable on demand 18 168,071 157,897

-  Term or with notice 18 701,666,394 504,335,080

Amounts owed to customers:   

- Other:   

- Payable on demand 18 55,163,962 47,524,269

     -  Term or with notice 18 25,107,533 15,569,978

Debt securities:   

 - Bonds in circulation 54  - 36,253,378

Other liabilities 31 10,600,334 8,500,444

Accruals and deferred income 27 94,352,978 11,651,553

Provisions for risks and liabilities 24 9,002,726 8,602,992

 Total Liabilities  896,061,998 632,595,591

    

Subscribed capital 55 81,250,000 81,250,000

Reserves  56 41,814,945 38,496,319

Revaluation reserves 56 4,338,403 4,338,403

Retained earnings 56 52,331,965 35,817,946

Profit for year 56 21,551,685 20,106,806

Total shareholders' equity  201,286,998 180,009,474

Total shareholders' equity and liabilities  1,097,348,996 812,605,065
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Consolidated Income Statement by Type of Income
for the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2003

(Amounts in euros)

COSTS    Notas 2004 2003

Interest and similar costs  16,692,392 19,539,028

Commissions  2,896,911 1,194,197

Losses generated by financial operations 58 58,670,287 87,631,916

General administrative expenses   

 - Employee costs  11,496,997 10,556,514

Of which:   

(wages and salaries)  (9,266,178) (8,492,359)

     (social costs)  (2,188,819) (2,045,856)

      Of which:

(pensions) 49 (270,309) (295,462)

 - Other administrative expenses  6,804,238 6,211,693

Depreciation  11 1,142,767 1,080,280

Other operating costs 39 64,821  64,199

Provisions for doubtful debts and
overdue credit and other risks 24 5,924,678 5,527,683

Provisions for financial investments 24 3,030,495 1,399,234

Extraordinary losses 39 345,415 364,250

Income tax  41 5,707,325 3,358,654

Other tax      197,996 213,087

Income generated by associated companies
and subsidiaries excluded from the consolidation 50 587,207 335,575

Profit for year  21,551,685 20,106,806

Total Costs   135,113,214 157,583,116
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(Amounts in euros)

INCOME Notes 2004 2003

Interest and similar income  27,600,027 29,133,270

Of which:   

 (fixed-income securities)  10,841,823 (11,264,420)

Income from securities   

 - Income from investments  301,159 256,931

Commissions  57 37,939,665 23,859,645

Profits generated by financial operations 58 59,094,786 88,890,288

Recoveries and cancellations in respect of   
value adjustments relating to loans and provisions for   
contingent liabilities and commitments 24 4,881,991 6,582,676

Recoveries and cancellations in respect of   
value adjustments relating to financial
investment securities, investments and equity   
investments in sister companies 24 1,026,137 5,133,458

Income generated by associated companies 
and subsidiaries excluded from the consolidation 50 692 23,994

Other operating income 39 2,018,010 2,290,093

Extraordinary gains 39 2,250,747 1,412,761

Total Income  135,113,214 157,583,116
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Consolidated Income Statements by Functions 
for the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

(Amounts in euros)

2004 2003

1. Net interest income 10,907,635 9,594,242

2. Provisions for credit risks 1,994,604 2,355,362

3. Loan recoveries 2,380 2,380

4. Intermediation margin (1 - 2 + 3) 8,915,411 7,241,260

5. Commissions (net) 35,042,754 22,665,448

6. Other operating income 2,007,465 2,276,914

7. Services margin (5 + 6) 37,050,219 24,942,362

8. Income from securities 301,159 256,931

9. Income from companies consolidated by the equity accounting method (586,515) (311,581)

10. Income generated by financial operations 424,499 1,258,372

11. Provisions for depreciation of securities (132,399) (4,211,103)

12. Investment margin (8 + 9 + 10 - 11) 271,542 5,414,825

14. Other costs 254,652 266,487

15. Income prior to conversion costs (4 + 7 + 12 - 14) 45,982,520 37,331,960

16. Employee costs 11,496,997 10,556,514

17. Other administrative costs 6,804,238 6,211,693

18. Depreciation 1,142,767 1,080,280

19. Conversion costs (16 + 17 + 18) 19,444,002 17,848,487

20. Operating income (15 - 19) 26,538,518 19,483,473

21. Other provisions 1,184,840 (2,933,476)

22. Income from disposal of financial investments 1,529,375 1,121,553

23. Other extraordinary income 375,957 (73,042)

24. Income before tax  (20 - 21 + 22 + 23) 27,259,010 23,465,460

25. Tax 5,707,325 3,358,654

26. Minority shareholders' interests - -

27. Net income (24 - 25 - 26) 21,551,685 20,106,806

28. Earnings per share (eurocents) 0.27 0.25

29. Net operating income (4 + 7 + 12 + 2 + 11) 48,099,377 35,742,706
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
for the Years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003

(Amounts in Euros)

2004 2003

Cash Flows Generated by Operating Activities 
Interest and commissions received 65,553,564 54,900,808
Interest and commissions paid (16,613,725) (16,319,005)
Income from securities 1,538,738 1,728,704
Payments to employees and suppliers (17,740,978) (17,392,827)
Payment of income tax (5,707,325) (3,358,654)
Other income 1,262,586 2,071,287
Operating income prior to changes in operating assets 28,292,860 21,630,313

(Increases) decreases in operating assets   
Loans and advances to credit institutions and customers (70,393,344) 42,041,482
Bonds and other fixed-income securities (168,284,351) 6,755,114
Shares and other variable-income securities 711,740 (1,033,262)
Other assets and prepayments and accrued income accounts (59,681,146) (1,848,262)

(297,647,101) 45,915,072

(Increases) decreases in operating liabilities   
Amounts owed to customers 17,177,248 (56,190,421)
Amounts owed to credit institutions 197,341,488 (6,032,983)
Debt securities (36,253,378) (10,724,155)
Other liabilities and accruals and deferred income accounts 79,822,358 (1,973,809)

258,087,716 (74,921,368)

Net cash from operating activities (11,266,525) (7,375,983)

Cash Flows Generated by Investment Activities   
Acquisition of equity investments and sister companies (2,535,000) (14,660,997)
Disposal of equity investments and sister companies 11,772,715 23,769,140
Acquisitions of fixed assets (1,275,123) (640,369)

Net cash from investment activities 7,962,592 8,467,774

Cash Flows Generated by Financing Operations 
Income from investments 301,159 256,931

Net cash from financing activities 301,159 256,931

Increase (decrease) net of cash and cash equivalents (3,002,774) 1,348,722
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 15,746,899 14,398,177
Cash and equivalents at end of year 12,744,125 15,746,899
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Annex to The Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
for The Year Ended 31 December 2004

                                                                        (Amounts in euros)

1. Acquisition/Alienation of Equity Investments and Sister Companies
The following is a breakdown of cash flows in respect of investments in sister companies (Note 50): 

   Total Price        Paid / Received   

Acquisitions:
NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. (1,608,750) (1,608,750)
Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. (637,500) (637,500)
Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. (288,750) (288,750)

(2,535,000) (2,535,000)
Alienations:

Solidal - Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. 6,917,687 6,917,687
Cabelte - Projectos Internacionais, SGPS, S.A. 2,844,608 2,844,608
Tegopi - Indústria Metalomecânica, S.A. 998,511 998,511
Fundição FSM Internacional, Lda. 335,197 335,197
Euronext N.V. 269,675 269,675
Unifer - Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A. 217,350 217,350
PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares 95,880  95,880
Gimob, SGPS, S.A. 93,807 93,807

11,772,715 11,772,715
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(Amounts in euros)

    Balance Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value  Carrying Amount 

A. TRADING SECURITIES   
Fixed-income securities   

Portuguese government bonds   
     - Treasury bonds   

OTFEV9505E 18,455,574 0.01 205,716
Subtotal    205,716

Issued by other resident entities   
     - Other bonds   

EDIA0318V 1,500 1,000.00 1,503,774
GOV REG AÇORES 05V 27,433,884 0.01 281,247
SONAE IMOB SGPS 05V 24,939,895 0.01 252,075
BTA LIS 9505V 24,939,895 0.01 250,130
B SANTANDER 9505V 14,878,356 0.01 149,377
C.E. MONTEPIO LIS 05V 5,985,574 0.01 60,499
SECIL LIS 9505V 748,197 0.01 7,542

Subtotal    2,504,644
      
Issued by non-resident entities   

Issued by overseas public entities   
FROAT9709V - DIV.PUB.FRA 10,000,000 1.00 10,137,722
BGB0206V - DIV.PUB.BEL 900,000,000 0.01 9,042,476

Subtotal    19,180,198

Issued by other non-resident entities   
     - Other bonds   

CGD PAR 12F 10,000,000 1.00 10,359,191
MINICENTRALES34F 50 200,000.00 10,296,092
BRIT AMER TOBACCO INTL FINANCE 0306v 5,850 1,000.00 5,932,583
GM FLOAT JUL 05 5,000 1,000.00 5,072,642
GAMA RECEIVABLESFS11V 5,000 1,000.00 5,003,499
METRO AG 09V 4,475 1,000.00 4,504,487
DAIMLER CHRYSL US 11F 3,000 1,000.00 3,066,789

  ATHLON SECURITISAT1B13V 3,000 1,000.00 3,032,412
DAIMLERCHRYSLER 05V 30 100,000.00 3,030,681
LOCAT SECURI VEHI24V 3,000 1,000.00 3,005,213
QUARTZ IRELAND PLC07V 2,000 1,000.00 2,002,258
CLARIS/MILLESIME 24V 2,000 1,000.00 1,972,157
FORD CREDIT AUSTRAL 1,000 1,000.00 1,018,062
JPMORGAN9717 2 100,000.00 451,412

Subtotal    58,747,478

Variable-income securities   
Issued by resident entities   

    - Shares   
PT MULTIMÉDIA, SGPS - Em 2001 - A 35,000 0.50 647,149

   PORTUGAL TELECOM 25,000 1.00 227,500
GESCARTÂO 5,000 5.00 53,000

   NOVABASE SGPS 5,182 0.50 32,491
   J MARTINS SGPS 3,000 5.00 29,100

COFINA SGPS 6,000 0.50 21,840
Subtotal    1,011,080
      
TOTAL     81,649,116
      
B.  INVESTMENT SECURITIES   
Fixed-income issued by public entities   

Portuguese government bonds   
  - Medium and long term maturity   

OTJUL0306E 4,950,000,000 0.01 50,049,327
Subtotal    50,049,327
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Schedule of Securities and Financial Investments as at 31 December 2004
(Consolidated)

(Amounts in euros)

    Balance Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value  Carrying Amount

Fixed-income securities issued by other entities   
Issued by resident entities   

 - Short term maturity   
Commercial paper-PAR4103 2,500,000,000 0.01 25,000,000
Commercial paper-SON4126A 345 50,000.00 17,250,000
Commercial paper-MOT7115 1,125,000,000 0.01 11,250,000
Commercial paper-SON4130 192 50,000.00 9,600,000
Commercial paper- REN21125 700,000,000 0.01 7,000,000
Commercial paper-IMO1147 139 50,000.00 6,950,000
Commercial paper- REN21122 600,000,000 0.01 6,000,000
Commercial paper-BAR1136 553,000,000 0.01 5,530,000
Commercial paper- MDL2110 415,000,000 0.01 4,150,000
Commercial paper-CLP9194 600 5,000.00 3,000,000
Commercial paper- SON4136 56 50,000.00 2,800,000
Commercial paper- BAR1134 83,875,000 0.01 838,750

Subtotal    99,368,750
      

 - Medium and long term maturity   
Modelo Continente Sgps 04/09V 1,555,000 10.00 15,550,484
Metro 95/07 1,685,000 4.99 8,408,150
JMR0308V 900,000 5.00 4,500,000
EDP 98/08 - 25º 399,971,105 0.01 3,999,705
JM&F  0308 582,500 5.00 2,912,500
Bco Itau Europa Lis 2,300 1,000.00 2,304,488
Fisipe 00/07 (EUR) 1,000,000 2.16 2,160,000
Brisa 98/08 400,000 4.99 1,996,000
SVCaetano 02/07 250,000 7.50 1,875,000
Mota-Engil 02 1ª Em. 400,000 4.17 1,668,000
SODIM 07V 178,960 4.99 865,742
Governo Regional Açores 1ªEm 84,795,641 0.01 853,868
Auto Industrial (EUR) 400,000 1.25 500,000
CGDLXE  (EUR) 47,637,810 0.01 432,329
CGDOXE  (EUR) 1,945 50.00 96,062
BMELL8749V 285 0.01 3
BTA8749V 212 0.01 2
CPP8849V 87 0.01 1
BFN8749V 80 0.01 1
BPSM9749V 90 0.01 1
UBP9606V 98 0.01 1
CPP8949V 31 0.01 -

Subtotal    48,122,337
     

Overdue loans and interest   
Securities   

- Fixed-income   
Bonds - Cobre - Ser.A   33,977
Bonds - Luis Correia S.H./88   28,204
Bonds - Luis Correia/87   27,474
Bonds - Luis Correia S.E./88   1,880
Bonds - Copinaque - 87   1,369
Bonds - Luis Correia S.F./88   487

Subtotal    93,391

Issued by non-resident entities   
- By overseas public issuers   

BGB0206V - DIV.PUB.BEL 3,500,000,000 0.01 35,009,863
FROAT9709V - DIV.PUB.FRA 11,000,000 0.01 11,142,878

Subtotal    46,152,741

Issued by non-resident entities    
- By international financial organisations    

EUROFIMA 97/07 124,699,474 0.01 1,247,629
Subtotal    1,247,629
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Schedule of Securities and Financial Investments as at 31 December 2004
(Consolidated)

(Amounts in euros)

    Balance Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value  Carrying Amount

By other non-resident entities 
   - Medium and long term maturity    

AUTOSTRADE 133 100,000.00 13,276,361 
COFINOGA 99/06 12,500 1,000.00 12,495,979
GENERAL MOTORS CANADA 08V 8,000 1,000.00 8,105,437
METRO AG 09V 6,425 1,000.00 6,413,808
D. TELEKOM 02/07 - SFE 5,000 1,000.00 5,457,570
TEL. ITALIA 02/07 - SFE (Fev 07) 5,000 1,000.00 5,213,294
TEL. ITALIA 02/07 (Fev 07) 5,000 1,000.00 5,185,399
BRITISH TELECOM, PLC 5,000 1,000.00 5,184,874
VOLKSWAGEN  NV 5,000 1,000.00 5,028,998
KONINKLIJE KPN NV 5,000 1,000.00 5,027,995
DAIMLER CHRYSLER US07V 5,000 1,000.00 5,013,612
RENAULT CREDIT INTER 5,000 1,000.00 5,008,600
VAN LANSCHOT BANKIER 06V 500 10,000.00 5,007,733
FRIESLAND  5,000 1,000.00 5,006,252
EFG HELLAS 06V PLC 5,000 1,000.00 5,003,320
IKBDEUT 06V 500 10,000.00 5,003,007
CAIXA CATALUNYA 03/08V 5,000 1,000.00 5,002,032 
SNSBK 06V 5,000 1,000.00 5,000,336
NATIONAL GRID 05V 50 100,000.00 4,997,890
TEL. ITALIA 04/07 (Out 07) 50 100,000.00 4,996,751
UBN 03/08 5,000 1,000.00 4,996,363
GALP 1A10V 400,000,000 0.01 4,000,000
BANIF CAYMAN06V - SFE 4,000 1,000.00 3,996,336
GMAC 03/05V US (Fev 05) 3,000 1,000.00 3,004,944
L VUIT MOET HENNESY 03/10 3,000 1,000.00 3,000,000
C.EC. MONTEPIO CAYMAN 09V 3,000 1,000.00 2,998,616
D. TELEKOM 02/07 2,500 1,000.00 2,500,000
BANIF CAYMAN 09V 2,500 1,000.00 2,492,435
OLIVETTI FINANCE 08 2,000 1,000.00 2,114,788
L VUIT MOET HENNESY 03/10 - SFE 2,000 1,000.00 2,071,431
DAIMLERCHRYSLER 05V 20 100,000.00 2,006,627
GALP 1B10V 200,000,000 0.01 2,000,000
ALPHA CREDIT 0409V 2,000 1,000.00 1,995,388
BRIT AMER TOBACCO INTL FINANCE 0306v 1,650 1,000.00 1,655,930
VOLKSWAGEN FINAN 07V 1,500 1,000.00 1,499,349
FORD MOTOR CREDIT03/06 1,000 1,000.00 1,005,596
JSAINSBURY 3 49,879.79 148,886

Subtotal    162,915,937
      
Issued by resident entities     

- Investment units     
F.I.Q. Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital 2 49,879.79 99,760 

Subtotal    99,760

- Shares      
J. MARTINS 13,135 5.00 332,540
VISTA ALEGRE ATLÂNTIS 67,020 1.00 260,460
MARCONI AE 223 5.00 6,983
MARCONI AM 10 5.00 314

Subtotal    600,297
      
variable-income   

- Treasury stock 4,658,000 1.00 5,999,453
Subtotal    5,999,453
      
TOTAL     414,649,622
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Schedule of Securities and Financial Investments as at 31 December 2004
(Consolidated)

(Amounts in euros)

    Balance Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value  Carrying Amount

C. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS   
Investments

In other overseas companies   
- Shares   

EURONEXT N.V. 158,564 1.00 3,125,414
In overseas credit institutions   

- Shares   
CIFI, SA 4,000,000 0.73 2,936,642

In other companies in Portugal   
- Shares   

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A. 2,396,166 1.00 7,500,000
Visabeira, Industria SGPS, S.A. 461,538 5.00 2,999,998
PORTUVINUS, S.G.P.S.,  S.A. 457,750 5.00 2,288,750
NG-Negócios e Gestão SGPS, S.A. 1,608,750 1.00 1,608,750
PLATAFORMA, SGPS, SA 200,000 5.00 1,000,000
GRESVAL, Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, SA 87,950 5.00 658,039
FESPECT, Serviços de Consultadoria, SA 637,500 5.00 637,500
CONVENTO DE BELMONTE, Investimentos Turísticos, SA 94,000 4.99 469,060
PMH, Prod. Médico Hospitalares, SA 63,920 5.00 319,598
Felino, Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, SA 16,667 5.00 249,404
PRADO KARTON - Companhia de Cartão, SA 3,735 5.00 108,260
PRADO - Cartolinas da Lousã, SA 3,735 5.00 92,863
SINALEMP, Sinaléctica Empresarial, SA 87,151 1.00 87,151
Companhia de Papel do Prado, S.A. 3,735 5.00 53,646

- Shares   
 Covered by the Transitory Regime established in
no. 5 of Bank of Portugal Official Notice 4/2002   

VISTA ALEGRE ATLANTIS, SGPS, SA (Fusão) 4,977,330 1.00 7,121,770
SAG GEST, SGPS 2,030,195 1.00 4,999,760
VISTA ALEGRE ATLANTIS, SGPS, SA 355,790 1.00 770,008

- Quotas   
TECNIJOMA, Plásticos Técnicos, Lda 1 62,500.00 62,500

- Other   
ASSOCIAÇÃO TECNOPOLO DE COIMBRA 2,493 1.00 2,494

Subtotal    37,091,607

Equity investments in sister companies excluded from the consolidation   
In other companies in Portugal   

- Quotas   
Biomediche, Produtos  Hospitalares, Terapêuticos e Cirurgicos, Lda 3 226,953.04 134,791

Subtotal    134,791

Other financial investments   
- Deposits   

Safe hire   149
- Supplementary capital payments   

Biomediche, Produtos  Hospitalares, Terapêuticos e Cirurgicos, Lda   1,097,355
- Partners' loans   

Grupo Pestana - Suprimentos   2,500,000
FESPECT, Serviços de Consultadoria, SA   1,644,511
NG-Negócios e Gestão SGPS, S.A.   1,599,877
Visabeira - Suprimentos   1,500,000
PORTUVINUS, S.G.P.S.,  S.A.   501,280
PMH, Prod. Médico Hospitalares, SA   89,639
SINALEMP, Sinaléctica Empresarial, SA   47,274

- Other    
TREM II    7,049,295

SINALEMP, Sinaléctica Empresarial, SA   139,442
Felino, Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, SA   91,665
Other   2

Subtotal    16,260,489
      
TOTAL     53,486,887
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as
at 31 December 2004 and 2003 (amounts in euros)

Introductory Note

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. ("bank") was formed by a public deed of 12 November
1987, having absorbed all assets and liabilities of the Portuguese branch of Manufacturers
Hanover Trust Company, in conformity with the terms of Ministerial Order no. 865-A/87 of
6 November, jointly issued by the Presidency of the Council of Ministers and Ministry of
Finance. The bank has made successive alterations to its corporate name, since the above
date, from Banco Chemical (Portugal), S.A., Banco Chemical Finance, S.A., Banco Totta &
Sottomayor de Investimento, S.A. and, lastly, based on a resolution passed by its general
meeting in July 2000, to Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

The bank's corporate object is to obtain third party funding, in the form of deposits or other
resources and, in conjunction with its own resources, extend loans or other assets, for which
it has been lawfully authorised in addition to providing other banking services. It has a
branch office in Lisbon, another in Porto, an offshore branch in Madeira and a branch office
in Spain. The Spanish branch office was constituted on 29 October 2004 and started its
operations on 1 January 2005.

The bank also has direct and indirect investments in the share capital of several companies
in which it has controlling interests. These companies comprise Grupo Caixa - Banco de
Investimento (Group).

As referred to in Note 55, the majority of the bank's share capital is owned by Caixa Geral
de Depósitos Group company Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

The following notes comply with the numbering used in the Banking System Accounting
Plan. Any missing notes are not applicable to the bank's consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2004.

3. Presentation Bases, Consolidation Principles and Summary of Principal

Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared from the bank's and its subsidiaries' and
associated companies' books and accounting records, in conformity with the accounting
principles set out in the Banking System Accounting Plan and other Bank of Portugal
dispositions, pursuant to the terms of its remit, as set out in Decree Law 298/92 of 31
December.

The individual financial statements of the bank's registered office have been combined with
those of its Madeira offshore branch and represent the bank's overall activities. All balances
and trading between the registered office and Madeira offshore branch have been
expunged from this process.

In terms of associated companies, "subsidiaries " are those in which the bank owns more than
50% of the share capital or which are controlled by the bank, being jointly considered as a
"decision-making unit". "Associated" companies are permanent investments of at least 20% of
the respective share capital.

Subsidiary companies have been consolidated by the full consolidation method. Balances and
significant trading between the consolidated companies, including their corresponding costs
and income, have been expunged from the consolidation process. 

Controlling interests in venture capital companies, which have been fully provisioned, have
been excluded from the consolidation and recognised in the "equity investments in subsidiaries
excluded from the consolidation" account heading (Note 50).
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The accounts of associated companies have been consolidated by the equity accounting
method, pursuant to which the value of the equity investment is adjusted on the basis of the
percentage share capital, reserves and income comprising the group's effective investment in
such companies.

Goodwill or badwill in respect of consolidated companies are recognised as a direct charge
to reserves. 

The fiscal years of the companies Caixa Ireland Limited and Caixa Investments Ireland
terminated on 30 November. The provisional, interim financial statements as at 31 December
2004 and 2003 were used for the year 2004 and 2003 consolidation, respectively.

Although the bank's and its subsidiaries' and associated companies' financial statements as
at 31 December 2004 still require the approval of the respective shareholders' meetings, the
board of directors considers that the said financial statements will be approved without
significant alterations.

The most significant accounting principles, used for the preparation of the financial statements
are set out below:

a) Accrual basis

Recognition of interest

Interest on borrowing and lending is recognised on an accrual basis and posted as and
when generated, notwithstanding the date of payment or receipt.

Other income and costs

The bank generally recognises income and costs on an accrual basis.

b) Foreign currency and derivatives operations

Foreign currency operations are recognised in conformity with the principles of the
"multi-currency" system in which each operation is recognised on the basis of its respective
currencies of denomination. In conformity with this method, all foreign currency balances
are translated into euros on the basis of the reference rate published by the European
Central Bank. On the date of the agreement, foreign currency spot and forward purchases
are posted to the foreign exchange position. Entries are made to the spot or forward
foreign exchange position account, whose contents and revaluation criteria are described
below, whenever such operations lead to changes in the net balances of the different
currencies:

Spot foreign currency operations

The spot exchange position in each currency is given by the net balance of:

• Assets and liabilities in the said currency, including fixed assets;
• Spot operations pending settlement;
• Forward operations maturing in the following two business days.

The spot exchange position is revalued on the basis of the official daily foreign currency
exchange rates published by the European Central Bank. This gives rise to an entry to the
foreign exchange position (domestic currency) account heading as a charge to the respective
costs or income headings.

Forward rate operations

The forward foreign exchange position in each currency is given by the net balance of
forward operations pending settlement, excluding those maturing in the following two
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business days. All contracts relating to such operations are revalued at the forward market
exchange rates for the periods to maturity of such operations, except for the dispositions of
the following paragraph. If no market rates are published, they are determined by the
differential existing between the interest rates of the respective foreign currencies for the
period to maturity of each operation.

The processing of forward foreign exchange operations used to hedge properly identified
assets or liabilities, is identical to that of currency swaps. 

The differences between euro equivalents, at the applied revaluation rates and euro
equivalents at the contract rates represent the cost or income generated by the revaluation
of the forward position and are recognised in a foreign exchange position revaluation
account as a charge to costs or income.

Currency swaps

The term segment of currency swaps, less premium or discount to be depreciated, is includ-
ed in the revaluation of the spot foreign currency position. Premiums or discounts resulting
from the difference between the spot and forward exchange rate are depreciated over the
life of the operation with due recognition of the respective cost or income.

Cross-currency swaps

Cross-currency swaps trading is revalued daily by updating all future cash flows, using the
market exchange rates for the periods to maturity of such flows. The result of the revaluation
is recognised in an accrual account, as a charge to costs or income.

Cross-currency swaps used to hedge suitably identified assets or liabilities, are not revalued.
The costs and income generated by the valuation, at the European Central Bank's reference
rate for the maturity segment and interest to be paid and received, are recognised in the
costs or income headings associated with the hedged items.

"IRS" - interest rate swaps

Interest rate swap trading operations are revalued daily. The revaluation is based on the current
value of the future interest to be paid and received and calculated at market rates. The
resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in income headings, as a charge to an accrual
account.

Operations used to hedge suitably identified assets or liabilities are not revalued, with the
interest to be received and paid in respect of the current period being split up into separate
periods and recognised in the "income receivable from off-balance sheet operations" and
"costs payable on off-balance sheet operations" (Note 27) and the premiums received, which
are recognised in the "deferred income - off-balance sheet operations" account heading
(Note 27).

Options - over the counter market

Options are recognised in off-balance sheet accounts on the contract date, at their contract
value. Premiums on options sales and purchases are recognised in accrual accounts on the
date of receipt and payment, respectively. Options are revalued daily at their market value
and the volatility of the underlying assets. The result of the revaluation is recognised in
accrual accounts, as a charge to costs or income.

In the case of financial instruments incorporating options, notably deposits or bond issues,
the component part comprising the option is recognised separately in the accounts from the
primary instrument with which it is associated, as is the case with the other options.
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Futures

Futures contracts are recognised in off-balance sheet account headings at their nominal
value and are revalued daily at their market value, with gains or losses being recognised as
income or costs, respectively.

c) Provisions for credit risks

Provision for overdue credit and interest

This provision is used to cover the risks on lending involving overdue payments of principal
or interest. The provision percentages for overdue credits and interest are increased in
proportion to the period having elapsed since their respective maturity and whether or not
they are collateralised.

Provision for doubtful loans

This provision caters for the risks of outstanding principal on loans to customers with unpaid
principal or interest or customers with other unpaid liabilities. 

Official Notice no. 3/95 (with the alterations brought in by Bank of Portugal Official Notice
no. 8/03 of 30 June) considers the following doubtful loans classifications: 

• outstanding payments on a single credit operation in which at least one of the
following conditions applies to the respective unpaid principal and interest:

(i) when exceeding 25% of the unpaid principal, plus accrued interest;
(ii) when in default for more than:
- six months in the case of operations with a maturity of less than five years;
- twelve months in the case of operations with a maturity of five or more and 
less than ten years;
- twenty four months in the case of operations with a maturity of ten years or more.

These doubtful loans are provisioned in accordance with the provisioning percentage for
overdue credit.

• outstanding credits to a single customer, if the unpaid principal and interest in
respect of all of the operations of the said customer, plus the outstanding credit
described in the preceding sub-paragraph, exceed 25% of the total credit plus
overdue interest. These doubtful debts are provisioned on the basis of 50% of the
average percentage of provisions for overdue credit.

The provision, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, was higher than the minimum limits set
by the Bank of Portugal, with the surplus not being accepted as a tax-deductible cost. 

Provision for general credit risks

This provision is recognised in liabilities and covers the risk of non payment of loans and other
risks, such as the provision of guarantees and securities, deriving from the bank's activity. The
amount of the provision is calculated by the application of 1% on the value of unmatured
loans, including acceptances, guarantees and other similar instruments. A percentage of
1.5% is applied on consumer finance. Provisions increases ceased to be accepted as a tax
deductible cost from 01 January 2003.

Provision for other risks and liabilities

This provision covers deferred tax liabilities and specific (fiscal and other) contingencies resulting
from the bank's and its subsidiary companies' activities and is not accepted as a tax-deductible
cost.
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d) Securities portfolio

Based on the classification criteria described in Note 25, the bank's securities portfolios are
assessed as follows:

i) Trading account securities

Fixed-income securities are recognised at cost and revalued daily at their market price,
including accrued interest. Resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in the income
statement.

Variable-rate securities are also valued at their market price or, if not available, their cost
or presumed market price, whichever the lesser. The revaluation differences on shares
trading on the PSI 20 index, or when having suitable liquidity when traded on other
stock markets, are recognised directly in income headings. The bank's trading portfolio,
as at 31 December 2003, included the shares of a Portuguese company not listed on the
PSI20. As the respective shares, however, were listed from 02 January 2004, the bank
posted the potential capital gains generated by their appreciation to the net income
heading.

ii) Investment account securities

Fixed-income securities are recognised at cost. The positive or negative difference, between
the cost and nominal value of such securities, comprising the premium or discount on purchase,
is recognised, in accounting terms, as cost or income between the date of acquisition and
date of maturity.

Discounted securities issues are recognised at their nominal value. The difference between
this value and cost is recognised, in accounting terms, as income accruing in the period
between their date of acquisition and maturity. Advances of interest thereon are recognised
in the "deferred income " account heading in liabilities.

Shares and other variable-income securities are recognised at cost.

Potential capital losses deriving from differences between the book value of the securities
and their corresponding list price, are fully provisioned as a charge to the income statement.

iii) Treasury stock

The bank's treasury stock is recognised at cost, in assets, in conformity with Bank of Portugal
rules.

e) Other financial investments

This account heading includes permanent investments of less than 20% in the share capital
of companies and recognised at cost. It also includes financial investments in companies
which have been acquired and are exclusively held for sale in the near future as well as venture
capital investments exclusively held by Caixa Capital, notwithstanding the bank's effective
percentage holding in the respective share capital.

The Bank of Portugal, in 2002, in the form of Official Notice no. 4/2002 of 25 June,
introduced new methodology requirements for calculating and setting up provisions for
financial investments, ruling that potential capital losses should be calculated as follows:

• for investments in listed companies in an organised market, the difference between
the book entry and respective market value, determined on the basis of the average
daily prices over the last full six months;

• for investments in unlisted companies, the presumed value of the trading upon
which the potential capital losses were determined comprises the product of the
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corresponding part of the shareholders' equity of the associated company by a
factor of 1.5.

Under the terms of the above referred to Official Notice, provisions should be set up in cases
in which the potential capital loss on an investment exceeds 15% of its book value and the
corresponding provision should cover at least 40% of the said excess.

For investments already existing as at 31 December 2001, Official Notice no. 4/2002
establishes a transitory regime under which the capital losses provisions for the said
investments on the date of the entry into force of the Official Notice may be deferred over
periods of ten years (for financial investments in companies subject to the supervision of the
Bank of Portugal or the Portuguese Insurance Institute) or five years (for other financial
investments), with the possibility of the provisions set up in 2002, 2003 and 2004 under this
regime being posted as a charge to reserves.

f) Tangible assets

Tangible assets are recognised at cost. Depreciation is calculated by the straight line method,
in conformity with the maximum tax-deductible costs, which are the same as for the assets'
estimated useful life, as follows:

The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. 40% of
the increased depreciation on the revaluation is disallowed as a tax-deductible cost.

Intangible assets essentially comprise incorporation and data processing systems expenditure
and are fully written off in three years.

g) Tax

The bank and its subsidiaries pay tax under the regime set out in the Portuguese Tax Code
on the Income of Collective Persons (IRC) and are taxed separately. The Madeira Offshore
Branch, however, is exempt from IRC up until 31 December 2011 under article 33 of the
Statute of Fiscal Benefits.

Under current legislation, tax losses may be carried forward for a period of six years and may
be deducted from the taxable profit generated during the said period. 

In accordance with standard accounting practices for the banking sector in Portugal, the
bank has not recorded deferred tax assets deriving from recordable fiscal losses, provisions
not accepted for fiscal purposes and negative revaluations of derivatives.

In 2004 and 2003, following the publication of Law no. 3-B/2000 of 04 April, expense
account items and light passenger vehicle related costs were autonomously taxed at a separate
IRC rate of 6%.

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. (Caixa Desenvolvimento) is subject to the fiscal regime on
Holding Companies, in accordance with the dispositions of Decree Law 495/88 of 30
December (as altered by Decree law 318/94 of 24 December and Decree Law 378/98 of 30
December).
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Property 50
Equipment:

Furniture and materials 4 - 10
Transport material 4
IT Equipment 4
Interior installations 3 - 10
Security equipment 4 - 10
Machinery and tools 5 - 10



Under this regime, profits paid to Caixa Desenvolvimento by its subsidiaries are totally
exempt from IRC.

Caixa Desenvolvimento also applied the deferred taxation regime, established in the IRC
Code, to capital gains and losses realised in 1999 and 2000 on its exchange or sale of
investments or shares. Under the terms of the legislation in force in these years, Caixa
Desenvolvimento enjoyed this facility whenever the realisation price associated with the
fiscal capital gains "exempt" from tax was fully or partly reinvested in the acquisition of
corporate investments, shares or securities issued by the state, within the period
therein defined. Capital gains generated on the sale of investments in 1999 and 2000
were deducted from taxable income owing to Caixa Desenvolvimento's board of director's
intention to reinvest them within the next three years. Based on the regime entering
into force on 01 January 2002, when the investments in which Caixa Desenvolvimento
has reinvested the said amounts are sold, the respective capital gains, calculated on the
cost of acquisition of the investments sold in 1999 and 2000 will be taxed in stages over
a ten year period, if the realisation price is reinvested. In 2002 with the entry into force
of Accounting Directive no. 28, Caixa Desenvolvimento recorded deferred taxes in
respect of this situation. 

Caixa Desenvolvimento elected to pay tax on 50% on the respective amount of its capital
gains in 2002. The capital gains which had been reinvested in the equity investment sold in
2002 for the amount of € 2,576,666 is also being taxed over a period of ten years.

Caixa Desenvolvimento reinvested the amount of € 49,043,250 in government bonds in
2004.

Deferred tax on capital gains, as at 31 December 2004 required the need to reinvest
additional amounts of around € 587,237 and € 6,917,687 by 31 December 2005 and 2006,
respectively. 

h) Securities and other items held under custody

Securities and other items held under custody, notably customers' securities, are recognised in
the off-balance sheet account headings, at their nominal value.

i) Deposit guarantee fund

The Deposit Guarantee Fund was created in November 1994, with the objective of
guaranteeing deposits placed with credit institutions, in conformity with the limits
fixed in the General Credit Institutions Regime. The initial contribution to the fund,
defined in a Ministerial Order issued by the Ministry of Finance and comprising the
delivery of certificates of deposit, was depreciated monthly over a period of 60 months.
Regular annual contributions to the fund are also allowed as a tax-deductible cost for
the year in question, with the exception of the part guaranteed by an irrevocable
commitment to pay in the respective contributions when requested by the Fund and
which is recognised in off-balance sheet accounts whose accumulated balance as at 31
December 2004 was € 149,620 as against € 140,870 on 31 December 2003.
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6. Group Companies

The following is a summary of the financial data extracted from the provisory individual
accounts of subsidiary and associated companies, for the last financial year:

The shareholders' equity of Caixa Ireland Limited and Caixa Desenvolvimento includes
supplementary contributions made by the bank of € 39,083,397 and € 27,284,245
respectively.

Caixa Ireland Limited, acquired by the bank in 1996, is a company with registered office in
the Republic of Ireland. Its assets essentially comprise the equity investment in Caixa
Investments Ireland. Caixa Investments Ireland has its registered office in the Republic of
Ireland with the corporate object of trading in securities. The shareholders' equity of these
companies reflects the appropriation of net income and respective dividends paid to the
bank in 2004, for the amount of € 875,000 as against € 1,000,000 in 2003 (Note 56).

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A., formed in 1998, has its registered office in Portugal. Its
corporate object is to manage equity investments in other companies, as an indirect form of
performing economic activities. 

Caixa Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. (Caixa Capital) has its registered office in
Lisbon and was formed on 31 December 1990 under Decree Law 17/86 of 05 February. The
company's corporate object is to support and promote investment and technological
innovation by making temporary equity investments in projects or companies. It is also
authorised to provide assistance in the financial, technical, administrative and commercial
management of its subsidiary companies. 

7. Bonds and Other Fixed-Income Securities Maturing in the Following Year

The book value of fixed-income securities maturing in the following year, as at 31 December
2004 and 2003 totalled € 110,880,966 and € 137,768,566 respectively.

8. Loans and Advances to Subsidiary Companies

Information on loans and advances to subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2004 and
2003 is set out in Note 20.

9. Loans and Advances to Sister Companies

Information on loans made to Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group companies not included in
the consolidation is set out in Note 21.
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Investment (%) 

Registered          Shareholders’
Entity   Office Direct Effective Date Assets      Profit/Loss Equity

Subsidiary companies
Caixa Ireland Limited  Dublin 100.00% 100.00% 30-11-2004 39,141,564 (25,931) 39,106,175

Caixa Investments Ireland Dublin -  100.00% 30-11-2004 39,969,412 669,353  39,858,428

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. Lisboa 100.00% 100.00% 31-12-2004 104,221,220 772,652  45,620,128

Caixa Capital, S.A.  Lisboa  100.00% 100.00% 31-12-2004 21,323,689 1,553,983  20,287,686

Associated Companies
Finpro - Infraestruturas, S.A.  Lisboa -  30.00% 31-12-2004  709,802  1,674 706,517

Grupo Pestana Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A.  Lisboa -  25.00% 30-11-2004 28,968,662 (2,295,989)  6,432,462



10. Investments in Securities

This account heading comprises the following:

The bank, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, held government bonds (pledged) with a
nominal value of € 45,000,000 and € 50,484,931 respectively (Note 23).

The reconciliation between the book and respective market value of the investment
securities portfolio is given in Note 28.

The securities portfolio schedule is set out in Annex I.

Annual Report 2004

Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

111

    

        2004      2003

Trading Investment Total Trading Investment  Total

Bonds and other fixed-income securities

Issued by public entities

Government bonds 19,385,914 96,202,068 115,587,982 8,369,340  58,226,369  66,595,709

 Securities provisions

Capital losses (Note 24) - (131,945) (131,945) -  (9,037) (9,037)

    19,385,914  96,070,123 115,456,037 8,369,340 58,217,332 66,586,672
Issued by other entities

Bonds and other securities

Issued by resident entities 2,504,644 147,491,087 149,995,731  23,703  105,947,967  105,971,670

Issued by non-resident entities 58,747,478 164,163,566 222,911,044 62,412,894  85,244,551 147,657,445

61,252,122 311,654,653 372,906,775 62,436,597 191,192,518  253,629,115

Matured investments and interest -  93,391 93,391 - 93,391  93,391

61,252,122 311,748,044 373,000,166 62,436,597 191,285,909  253,722,506

Securities provisions

Capital losses (Note 24) -  (173,130) (173,130) - (447,114)  (447,114)

Matured securities (Note 24)  -  (93,391) (93,391) - (93,391)  (93,391)

-  (266,521)  (266,521) -  (540,505) (540,505)

    61,252,122 311,481,523 372,733,645 62,436,597 190,745,404  253,182,001
Shares and other variable-income securities

Shares  1,011,080 600,297 1,611,377 1,738,495 584,622  2,323,117

Unit trusts -  99,760 99,760 -  99,760 99,760

1,011,080 700,057 1,711,137 1,738,495 684,382  2,422,877

Securities provisions

Capital losses (Note 24) -  (430,146) (430,146) - (425,887) (425,887)

    1,011,080 269,911 1,280,991 1,738,495 258,495  1,996,990



11. Tangible and Intangible Assets

Entries to the bank's tangible fixed assets account headings for 2004 and 2003 are set out
below:
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      2004    

Balance as at 31.12.03      

Gross  Accrued   Depreciation Write-offs Net amount
amount depreciation Acquisitions Transfers for year (net)  as at 31.12.04

Intangible assets

Incorporation expenses 1,276,547 (1,276,015)  - - (532) -  -
Pluriannual costs 502,963 (502,963)  -  -  -  - -
Automatic data processing systems  3,952,115  (3,785,075) 278,741 168,792 (289,106) - 325,467
Fixed assets in progress 136,181  - 124,887 (168,792) -  (36,263) 56,013
   5,867,806 (5,564,053)  403,628 -  (289,638) (36,263)  381.480
Tangible assets

Property:
For own use 13,093,384 (2,333,083) - - (168,764) - 10,591,537
Other property 77,843 (77,843) -  -  - - -

Equipment:
Furniture and material 1,016,562 (938,927) 30,648 - (34,896) -  73,387
Transport material  397,448 (292,430) 70,552 - (64,791) (31,002)  79,777
IT equipment 1,379,791  (1,256,807) 70,507 - (82,242)  -  111,249
Interior installations  2,007,067 (1,781,411) 40,947 - (69,212) - 197,391
Security equipment 240,087 (240,087)  - -  -  -  -
Machinery and tools 454,137 (414,280) 56,864  - (30,893)  - 65,828
Other equipment 5,258 (3,825)  - -  (242)  - 1,191

Works of art 48,846  -  -  -  -  - 48,846
Property leases

Transport material 1,215,771  (566,170)  768,397  - (402,089)  (113,907)  902,002

   19,936,194  (7,904,863)  1,037,915  -  (853,129)  (144,909)  12,071,208

   25,804,000  (13,468,916)  1,441,543  -  (1,142,767)  (181,172)  12,452,688

      2003    

Balance as at 31.12.02      

Gross  Accrued   Depreciation Write-offs Net amount 
amount depreciation Acquisitions Transfers for year (net) as at 31.12.03

Intangible assets

Incorporation expenses  1,476,573  (1,415,822)  -  (7,745)  (52,474)  -  532
Pluriannual costs 502,963  (489,243)  - 7,745  (21,465)  - -
Automatic data processing systems 4,001,398 (3,707,972)  62,498  18,760  (207,644)  -  167,040
Fixed assets in progress 22,407  -  132,534  (18,760)  -  -  136,181
   6,003,341  (5,613,037)  195,032  -  (281,583)  -  303,753
Tangible assets

Property:
For own use 13,273,578  (2,196,754)  -  -  (168,764) (147,759)  10,760,301
Other property 134,001  (119,684)  -  -  (14,317)  -  -

Equipment:
Furniture and material 1,069,488  (975,541)  16,223  -  (32,535)  -  77,635
Transport material 493,056  (307,516)  -  5,399  (81,447)  (4,474)  105,018
IT equipment 1,559,701  (1,409,133)  84,783  -  (112,367)  -  122,984
Interior installations 2,206,840  (1,915,045)  -  -  (66,139)  - 225,656
Security equipment 240,336  (240,336)  -  -  -  -  -
Machinery and tools 465,150  (404,092)  2,693  -  (23,894)  - 39,857
Other equipment  4,673  (3,522)  585  -  (303)  - 1,433

Works of art 48,846  -  -  -  -  - 48,846
Property leases

Transport material 863,529  (448,104)  596,504  (5,399)  (298,931)  (57,998) 649,601

   20,359,198  (8,019,727)  700,788  -  (798,697)  (210,231)  12,031,331

   26,362,539  (13,632,764)  895,820  -  (1,080,280)  (210,231)  12,335,084



14. Other Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions and Loans and

Advances to Customers

Other Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

The following is a breakdown of the structure of this account heading by periods to maturity,
as at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

Information on the average annual interest rates on "other loans and advances to credit
institutions", as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out below:

Loans and Advances to Customers

This account heading comprises the following:

The bank set up a provision for general credit risks totalling € 4,861,143 and € 3,514,964
as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, respectively (Note 24).
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   2004 2003

Loans and advances to credit institutions in Portugal 
Term deposits 13,302,015 28,027,148
Other investments - 9,996,883
Certificates of deposit with Bank of Portugal - 424,292

   13,302,015 38,448,323

   2004 2003

Up to three months 13,302,015 12,722,033
Three months to one year - 15,729,407
Current account and sight deposit overdrafts - 9,996,883
   13,302,015 38,448,323

   2004 2003

Term deposits 3.28% 2.35%
Other investments - 2.92%
Certificates of deposit with Bank of Portugal - 2.05%

   2004 2003

Domestic loans
Current account 19,354,701 15,311,867
Sight deposit overdrafts 15,046,171 19,576,319
Medium and long term loans 306,533,197 275,148,935
Other loans and advances to residents 3,813,027 2,708,800

Foreign loans
Medium and long term loans 65,463,496 2,632,153

   410,210,592 315,378,074

Overdue credit and interest 8,801,936 8,888,587
   419,012,528 324,266,661
Provisions

For overdue loans (Note 24) (8,785,248) (8,778,868)
For doubtful loans (Note 24) (1,805,919) (1,400,000)

    (10,591,167) (10,178,868)

   408,421,361 314,087,793



As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the "overdue credit and interest" account heading
included overdue loans of € 3,551,441, originated in Caixa Valores and deriving from securities
trading operations in 1992 by a group of customers. The loan has been fully provisioned.

Caixa Valores took legal action against the group of customers in September 1994, accusing
them of responsibility for realising the referred to operations and claiming an amount of
€ 6,003,180 plus interest accruing since June 1993. As the action is still in progress, the
bank has not recorded any asset related with this situation.

The sector allocation of loans and advances to customers, as at 31 December 2004 and
2003, is set out below:

Loans to non-financial public companies, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, totalled
€ 10,392,853 and € 11,301,201 respectively.

This account heading, by period to maturity, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprised:

16. Incorporation Expenses

The "incorporation expenses" account heading, as at 31 December 2003, shows a net
balance of € 532 essentially related with expenses incurred on changes to the bank's name
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2004 2003

Sector of activity amount  %  amount %

Other, principally corporate activities and services  122,196,826  29.2  73,511,187  22.7
Land transport by oil or gas pipeline  98,166,342  23.4  62,486,079  19.3
Electricity gas and steam generation and distribution 56,695,429 13.6 37,489,405 11.6
Machinery and equipment leasing 50,210,979  12.0  51,261,126  15.8
Real estate activities 15,200,035  3.6  15,794,002  4.9
Post and Telecommunications 12,029,630  2.9  -  0.0
Diverse associative activities  10,158,426  2.4  11,258,963  3.5
Manufacture of paper pulp, card and articles thereof 10,000,000  2.4  10,000,000  3.1
Water impounding, processing and distribution 8,700,107  2.1  13,389,191  4.1
Publishing, printing and copying of microfiches  7,164,465 1.7  7,771,015  2.4
Chemicals manufacture  2,360,201  0.5  2,887,105  0.9
Food and beverages industries 1,597,510  0.4  4,320,001  1.3
Machinery and equipment manufacture 1,501,527  0.4 1,619,342  0.5
Hotels and restaurants  1,205,370  0.3  155,723  0.0
Water transport 1,002,297  0.2 1,024,465  0.3
Other non-metallic mineral products manufacture 556,247  0.1  720,473  0.2
Manufacture of rubber and plastic articles 397,053  0.1  234,943  0.1
Basic metallurgical industries 300,000  0.1  900,000  0.3
Financial intermediation and auxiliary activities 208,368  0.0  3,950,090  1.2
Textiles manufacture 32,744  0.0  2,749,297  0.8
Other mining industries -  -  4,353,709  1.3
Wholesale activities -  -  3,408,188  1.1
Wood and cork industry and products thereof excluding furniture and basketwork -  -  661,778  0.2
Other 19,328,972  4.6  14,320,579  4.4

419,012,528  100.0  324,266,661  100.0

   2004 2003

Up to three months 754,904 63,477
Three months to one year 36,698,202 3,284,476
One to five years 79,073,949 75,213,925
More than five years 259,282,661 201,928,010
Current account overdrafts 34,400,876 34,888,186
   410,210,592 315,378,074

Overdue Loans 8,801,936 8,888,587
     
   419,012,528 324,266,661



and articles of association (Note 11). The said expenses, as at 31 December 2004, had been
fully amortised. 

18. Amounts Owed to Credit Institutions and Customers

Amounts owed to Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

The structure of the "amounts owed to credit institutions at term or notice" account
heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, by periods to maturity, comprises:

Interest at the following average annual rates was paid on the "amounts owed to credit
institutions at term or notice" as at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

Amounts owed to Customers

This account heading comprises the following:

Annual Report 2004

115

2004 2003

Payable on demand:

Sight deposits

Credit institutions in Portugal 166,614 156,440

Credit institutions abroad 1,457 1,457

   168,071 157,897
Term or notice:

Credit institutions in Portugal

Interbank Money Market 509,500,000 420,000,000

Term deposits 189,450,000 84,310,902

Very short term deposits 2,716,394 -

Other resources 

Credit institutions in Portugal - 24,178

   701,666,394 504,335,080

2004 2003

Up to three months 518,016,394 423,885,080

Three months to one year 183,650,000 80,450,000 

   701,666,394 504,335,080

2004 2003

Interbank Money Market 2.23% 2.24%

Term deposits 2.23% 2.38%

Very short term deposits 2.55% -

2004 2003

Other

Payable on demand 55,163,962 47,524,269
 Term

Term deposits 24,710,173 15,005,940

Futures and options 397,360 564,038 

   25,107,533 15,569,978
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The structure of the "amounts owed to customers at term" account heading as at 31
December 2004 and 2003 by period to maturity, comprises:

19. Issue of Bonds Maturing in Following Year

The nominal value of the bank's issues of bonds, maturing in the following year, was
€ 36,253,378 as at 31 December 2003 (Note 54).

20. Balances with Group Companies

The bank's consolidated financial statements include the following balances with associated
companies, (excluding fully provisioned balances) as at 31 December 2004 and 2003:
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2004 2003

Up to three months 15,521,597 4,835,817

More than five years 9,188,576 10,170,123

Futures and options 397,360 564,038

   25,107,533 15,569,978

   2004 2003

Assets:
Performing Loans:

Grupo Pestana – Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 1,200,000 -
Partners' Loans (Note31):

Grupo Pestana – Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 2,500,000 2,500,000
Fespect – Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. 1,644,511 - 
NG – Negócios e Gestão, S.A 1,599,877 -
Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. 1,500,000 1,500,000
Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. 501,280 637,250
PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares 89,639 119,519
Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A. 47,274 47,274
Solidal, Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. - 3,750,000
Tecnijoma, Plásticos Técnicos, Lda. - 162,109

Supplementary and auxiliary payments (Note 31):
Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A. 139,442 139,442
Felino - Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, S.A. 91,665 91,665

Other debtors:
Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A. 109,923 5,268
Prado – Cartolinas da Lousã, S.A.  102,928 -
Gresval - Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, S.A. 58,032 83,824
Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. 36,129 30,251
Manuel Inácio & Filhos, S.A. 15,366 19,833
Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. 10,080 12,572
Plataforma, SGPS, S.A.  9,348 9,032
NG – Negócios e Gestão, S.A. 8,791 - 
Grupo Pestana – Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 7,339 6,027
PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares 4,134 5,332
Convento de Belmonte Investimentos turísticos, S.A. 3,688 4,165
Fespect – Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. 3,024 -
Silger, SGPS, S.A. 2,968 14,380
Felino - Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, S.A. 2,333 2,492
Solidal, Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. - 97,114
Sulei, Sociedade Ultramarina de 
Empreendimentos Imobiliários, S.A. - 2,669
Gimob, SGPS, S.A. - 594

Accrued income:
NG – Negócios e Gestão, S.A. 14,806 - 
Grupo Pestana – Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 2,244 - 
Gresval, Fábrica de Produtos de Grês, S.A. 952 -
Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. 157 -
Companhia de Papel do Prado, S.A. - 14,964
Ceramic, Mosaicos Cerâmicos, S.A. - 952

Liabilities:
Amounts owed to customers – payable on demand:

VA Investimentos SGPS, S.A. 5,833 927
Finpro Infraestruturas, SGPS, S.A. 5,465 445
Grupo Pestana – Pousadas 
Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 1,922 6,918
Sag Gest, SGPS, S.A. 1,027 1,110
Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. 844 5,916
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21. Balances with Group Companies

The principal balances with Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. companies not included in the
consolidation perimeter as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 were as follows:
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    2004 2003

Assets:
Loans and advances to credit institutions payable on demand:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 5,392,343 2,712,840

Banco Siméon, S.A. 70 70

Investments in credit institutions:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 13,302,015 12,722,033

Trading account securities:  

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 10,359,192 -

Investment securities:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 528,391 516,891

Debtors:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 64,707 625,662

Sogrupo – Sistemas de Informação, ACE 27,201 -

Sogrupo III – Gestão de Activos, ACE 9,117 8,321

Caixa Web, SGPS, S.A. 8,925 -

Other financial investments:

Subordinated loans:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 150 150

Prepayments and accrued income accounts:

Deferred income:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 493,213 847,066

Lending operations pending settlement:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. - 11,234

Liabilities:
Amounts owed to credit institutions – payable on demand:

Caixa – Empresas de Crédito, SGPS, SA 124,042 124,249

Amounts owed to credit institutions - term:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 701,666,394 504,335,080

Creditors:

Caixa Leasing e Factoring – Instituição Financeira de Crédito, S.A. 906,319 646,547

Banco Simeon, S.A. 142,173 -

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 104,066 119,198

Imoleasing 17,552 -

Accruals and deferred income accounts:

Payable:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 3,483,370 771,148

Caixa Leasing e Factoring – Instituição Financeira

de Crédito, S.A. 68 32

Other accruals and deferred income accounts:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 846,036 797,210



23. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

The following is a summary of contingent liabilities and commitments to third parties, as at
31 December 2004 and 2003:

The "assets-backed guarantee" account heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003
comprises the nominal value of the government bonds pledged as follows:

24. Provisions

Provisions entries for 2004 and 2003 are set out below:
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   2004    2003

Contingent liabilities:
Guarantees and sureties 172,586,607 101,537,029
Asset-backed guarantees 45,000,000 50,484,931

   217,586,607 152,021,960
Commitments to third parties:

Revocable lines of credit 198,456,723 85,799,305
Securities subscriptions 75,874,336 92,042,251
Irrevocable lines of credit 1,612,955 -
Other irrevocable commitments 3,670,802 -
Other 2,624,524 3,022,294

   282,239,340 180,863,850
   
Guarantees Received 146,466,418 96,623,539

Liabilities for the provision of services:
Deposit and custody of securities 3,104,567,136 1,306,435,286

   
Amounts under bank management (Note 32) 64,925,459 71,450,935

2004 2003

“SPGT” (Major Transactions Processing System) 42,000,000 42,000,000

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. – Euronext 2,000,000 3,500,000

Investors’ Indemnity System (SII) 1,000,000 4,494,548

Lisbon and Porto Stock Exchanges - futures - 490,383

   45,000,000 50,484,931

      2004

   Balance as   Cancellation      Exchange Rate Balance as 
at 31.12.03  Increases and Recoveries Use Transfers Other Differences at 31.12.04

Provision for loans and advances 
to customers (Note 14):

Overdue loans 8,778,868  415,524  (391,680)  (43,502)  143,853  -  (117,815)  8,785,248
Doubtful loans 1,400,000  1,047,221  (641,302)  -  -  -  -  1,805,919

Provision for investment 
securities (Note 10)

Capital losses 882,038  1,311,577  (1,443,977)  (14,417)  -  -  -  735,221
Matured securities 93,391  -  -  -  -  -  -  93,391

Provision for debtors and 
other investments (Note 31) 1,215,139  218,909  (246)  -  (22,270)  (632,470)  -  779,062 
Provision for 
financial investments

Investments (Note 50) 2,949,539  295,113  (1,026,137)  -  -  274,160  -  2,492,675
Equity investments in 
sister companies (Note 50) 134,791  - -  -  -  -  -  134,791
Other (Note 31) 2,885,203  2,735,382  -  - (121,583)  - - 5,499,002

Provision for general credit
risks (Note 14) 3,514,964  1,929,045 (582,866)  - - -  -  4,861,143
For other risks and liabilities  5,088,028  1,002,402  (1,821,920)  (126,927)  -  -  -  4,141,583
   26,941,961  8,955,173 (5,908,128)  (184,846)  - (358,310)  (117,815)  29,328,035
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Provisions for other risks and liabilities as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 included
€ 1,542,413 and € 1,696,277, respectively, for a deferred tax liabilities provision posted by
Caixa Desenvolvimento (Note 3.g)). They also include € 2,217,935 and € 3,076,006,
respectively, set up by the bank for fiscal contingencies, judicial proceedings and reductions
in the value of assets recognised in "other financial investments", in addition to € 381,236
posted by Caixa Capital. An amount of € 490,504 of this provision was used in 2003, in
respect of a balance recognised in the "accruals and deferred income - tax recovery" heading.

Provisions adjustments for financial investments, in 2004, refer to provisions replenishments
pursuant to the sale of the following equity investments:

Provisions adjustments for financial investments in 2003 include € 4,697,613 of provisions
replenishments on Caixa Desenvolvimento's alienation of its investments in Silger, SGPS, S.A.
and Silvageste, SGPS, S.A. (Note 50).

25. Differences between Trading Account, Investment and Financial

Investment Securities

The "trading account securities" account heading includes securities for re-sale up to a period
of no more than six months. In addition, as at 31 December 2003, this heading included
securities which had been held for more than six months as at the said date, but which were
not transferred to the "financial securities" category owing to the fact that the bank had
hedged the associated interest rate by futures contracts whose revaluation is recognised as
a charge to net income.

The "investment securities" heading includes securities held in the bank's own portfolio, usually
for more than six months. 

The "investments" account heading includes equity investments in companies in which the
interest in retaining the investment is linked with the bank's or its subsidiaries' activity and
which are simultaneously long term investments.
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      2003

   Balance as    Cancellations      Exchange Rate Balance as 
at 31.12.02  Increases and Recoveries Use Transfers Other Differences at 31.12.03

Provision for loans and 
advances to customers (Note 14):

Overdue loans 8,798,318  823,117 (60,217)  (685,055) 233,615  - (330,910)  8,778,868
Doubtful loans 207,832  1,400,000  -  -  (207,832)  -  - 1,400,000

Provision for investment 
securities (Note 10):

Capital losses 5,093,141  1,810,636  (6,021,739)  -  - -  -  882,038
Matured securities 93,391  -  -  -  -  -  -  93,391

Provision for debtors and
other investments (Note 31) 42,282 189,651  -  -  350,736  632,470  -  1,215,139 
Provision for
financial investments

Investments (Note 50) 8,584,254  981,322  (5,133,458)  (1,006,759)  (749,980)  274,160  - 2,949,539
Equity investments in
sister companies (Note 50) 1,631,185  -  -  (1,496,394)  -  -  - 134,791
Other (Note 31) 1,366,249  417,912  -  (13,268)  (60,230)  1,174,540  -  2,885,203

Provision for general 
credit risks (Note 14) 3,512,153  503,531  (500,720)  -  -  -  -  3,514,964
For other risks and liabilities  4,927,485  800,748  -  (1,073,896)  433,691  -  - 5,088,028
   34,256,290  6,926,917  (11,716,134)  (4,275,372)  -  2,081,170  (330,910)  26,941,961

Solidal – Condutores Eléctricos, S.A.  (Note 50) 619,617 

Fundição FSM Internacional, S.A. (Note 50) 249,399

Unifer – Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A.  (Note 50) 157,121

   1,026,137



27. Prepayments and Accrued Income Accounts

The following is a breakdown of the prepayments and accrued income accounts (assets), as
at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

The "stock exchange operations pending settlement" account heading, as at 31 December
2004 and 2003, comprises the value of the operations for the sale of securities for the year
and settled in the first days of the following year.

Accruals and deferred income (liabilities), as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

The "stock exchange operations pending settlement" account heading comprises the value
of the operations for the purchase of securities in the last few days of 2004 and 2003 and
settled in the first few days of the following year.
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   2004    2003

Deferred income 

Investments in credit institutions 101,542 111,124

Lending 2,098,304 2,072,160

Investment securities 3,270,461 1,014,464

Debtors 88,827 46,224

Financial investments 14,963 455

Off-balance sheet transactions (Notes 3.b) and 33) 390,642 1,349,527

Other receivables 325,223 373,109

Deferred expenses 114,031 134,610

Stock exchange operations pending settlement 61,851,407 3,377,441

OTC operations pending settlement 4,933,440 -

Tax reimbursements 657,900 657,900

Revaluation of options - 896,470

Premiums on options purchases - 258,278

Depreciation of premium/discount on swap operations - 502

Other  684,506 345,532

   

   74,531,246 10,637,796

   2004    2003

Deferred costs 
Credit institutions 1,827,249 471,798
Customer deposits 1,193,388 864,705
Off-balance sheet transactions (Notes 3.b) and 33) 1,656,121 385,298
Provision for holiday and holiday subsidies 1,377,412 1,170,188
Provision for additional remuneration 1,500,000 1,320,000
Commissions payable 1,094,309 400,000
Pension fund (Note 49) 258,587 241,128
Other 629,136 449,934

Deferred income 
Investment securities 176,904 29,237
Off-balance sheet transactions (Note 3.b) and 33) 1,196,774 -
Other 7,666 15,333

Stock exchange operations pending settlement 76,832,025 3,356,001
OTC operations pending settlement 4,925,755 -
Revaluation of options (Note 33) 846,036 1,693,680
Revaluation of cross-currency and
interest rate swaps (Note 33) 263,865 472,485
Foreign exchange operations - 593,142
Revaluation of forward rates agreements - (11,171)
Other  567,751 199,795

   94,352,978 11,651,553



28. Outstanding Results from Investments

The difference between the book and nominal value of the investment securities acquired
for more or less than their redemption value, as at 31 December 2004, totalled € 2,171,359
and € 138,988 respectively (€ 133,532 and € 2,446,498 respectively, as at 31 December
2003). The difference between investment securities acquired for less than their redemption
value, as at 31 December 2003 includes € 2,267,498 of zero coupon bonds.

The differences between the book and market value of the investment securities portfolio
(excluding matured securities), as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprise:

The book value of trading account securities as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 was
€ 603,244 and € 2,095,397 higher than their acquisition costs respectively. 

31. Other Assets and Liabilities

The "other assets" account heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprises:
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2004

Listed Unlisted Total

Government bonds 96,202,068 - 96,202,068

Bonds – other issuers 265,686,113 45,968,540 311,654,653

Shares and other

variable-income securities 592,999 107,058 700,057

Provision for capital losses (Note 24) (726,670) (8,551) (735,221)

Book value 361,754,510 46,067,047 407,821,557
Potential capital losses 1,862,806 - 1,862,806

Market value 363,617,316 46,067,047 409,684,363

2003

Listed Unlisted Total

Government bonds 58,226,369 - 58,226,369

Bonds – other issuers 131,977,235 59,215,283 191,192,518

Shares and other 

variable-income securities 577,325 107,057 684,382

Provision for capital losses (Note 24) (874,532) (7,506) (882,038)

Book value 189,906,397 59,314,834 249,221,231
Potential capital losses 529,715 - 529,715

Market value 190,436,112 59,314,834 249,750,946

   2004    2003

Futures margin account:
Portugal 198,680 485,479
abroad 526,464 638,261

Proceeds from sale of the equity investment in Barraqueiro 27,924,909 27,924,909
Miscellaneous debtors 3,170,477 5,378,628

P.M.M. Imobiliária, S.A. and Pardal Monteiro Mármores, S.A. 1,264,569 1,264,569
Other financial investments (Annex I) 16,260,489 17,094,060
IRC recovery

Bank – 2003 (Note 41) 545,947 -
Bank – 2002 90,456 90,456
Other 133,868 48,762

Other  204,033 305,253
   50,319,892 53,230,377

Provision for doubtful debts on other investments (Note 24) (779,062) (1,215,139)
Provision for other financial investments (Note 24) (5,499,002) (2,885,203)
   

(6,278,064) (4,100,342)
   44,041,828 49,130,035
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The amount of € 27,924,909 as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, refers to deferred income
on the sale of Caixa Desenvolvimento's equity investment in Barraqueiro, SGPS, S.A in 2002.
Under the terms of the sales agreement entered into on 27 June 2002, the sales price plus
the amount of the reimbursement of Caixa Desenvolvimento's supplementary contributions,
totalled € 50,856,262, receivable as follows:

• € 22,931,353 cash payment;

• € 27,924,909 to be received in three equal payments on 31 December 2003, 2004
and 2005. Interest at the market rate is payable on this amount. The amounts
payable on 31 December 2004 and 2003 were deferred although the respective
interest was paid.

Caixa Desenvolvimento has a pledge on the shares to guarantee payment of the outstanding
amounts.

In 2003, pursuant to Caixa Investimentos - Sociedade de Investimentos, S.A.'s liquidation
procedure, Caixa Capital, acquired P.M.M. Imobiliária, S.A. and Pardal Monteiro Mármores,
S.A. debt of € 1,563,848 for € 931,378. The debts were recognised in the "other assets"
heading at their nominal value and reflected in provisions for doubtful debts on other
investments for the amount of € 632,470 (Note 24). The provisions were cancelled in 2004,
owing to the payment of the debt in January 2005, generating extraordinary gains of
€ 632,470 (Notes 24 and 39). 

The balance on the "other financial investments" account heading as at 31 December 2004
and 2003, is set out below:

In 2003, based on the contents of the Bank of Portugal's Circular Letter no. 31/2003/DSB
of 17 April, the bank altered the form of accounting of payments made on account of
its investment in Agrupamento Complementar de Empresas TREM II - Aluguer de
Material Circulante, ACE (TREM II), pursuant to which the bank cancelled the balance of
€ 5,874,755 recognised in its "deferred costs" heading with the investment being
recognised for the amount of € 7,049,295 and set up a provision of € 1,174,540
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   2004    2003

Supplementary capital payments
Biomediche, Produtos Terapêuticos, Hospitalares e Cirúrgicos, Lda. 1,097,355 1,097,355

Auxiliary payments 
Sinalemp – Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A. 139,442 139,442
Felino - Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, S.A.  91,665 91,665

Partners’ loans
Grupo Pestana – Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. (Nota 50) 2,500,000 2,500,000
Fespect – Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.  (Nota 50) 1,644,511 -
NG – Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. (Nota 50) 1,599,877 -
Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. (Nota 50) 1,500,000 1,500,000
Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. (Nota 50) 501,280 637,250
PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares 89,639 119,520
Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A. 47,274 47,274
Solidal – Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. (Nota 50) - 3,750,000
Tecnijoma, Plásticos Técnicos, Lda. - 162,109

Guarantees  149 149
Other

TREM II – Aluguer de Material Circulante, ACE 7,049,295 7,049,295
Other 2 1

   16,260,489 17,094,060
Provisions for other financial investments

TREM II – Aluguer de Material Circulante, ACE (4,267,886) (1,579,184)
Biomediche, Produtos Terapêuticos, Hospitalares e Cirúrgicos, Lda. (1,097,355) (1,097,355)
Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A. (46,679) -
Tecnijoma, Plásticos Técnicos, Lda. - (121,582)
Felino - Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, S.A.  (87,082) (87,082) 

(5,499,002) (2,885,203) 
   10,761,487 14,208,857



(Note 24) for other financial investments.

Interest at market rates was paid on partners' loans as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 with
the following periods to maturity up to their reimbursement:

The "other liabilities" account heading as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out below:

The balance on the "creditors - securities operations" account heading as at 31 December 2004
and 2003, refers to the current accounts of brokerage operations customers. 

32. Amounts Managed by Bank

The balance on this account heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 comprises the value
of the following venture capital funds managed by Caixa Capital (Note 23):

The merger of Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Comércio - Caixa
Capital and Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados PEDIP (incorporated
funds) into the Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados PME - Caixa Capital
(incorporating fund) took place on 01 January 2004, via the full transfer of the incorporated
funds' assets to the incorporating fund. The operation was approved by the respective
Investors' Meetings of 15 December 2003 and entailed the extinguishing of the incorporated
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2004 2003

Three months to one year 47,274 162,109

One to five years 4,834,027 5,369,519

Unspecified 3,001,280 3,184,524

   7,882,581 8,716,152

   2004    2003

Creditors
Suppliers 1,465,721 917,965
Creditors – securities operations 3,302,758 2,346,198
Miscellaneous creditors 209,011 253,500

Other liabilities
Deferred stamp tax - 563,539
IRC payable:

Caixa – Banco de Investimento 2,816,090 3,014,166
Caixa Investments Ireland 48,995 77,027
Caixa Desenvolvimento 10,343 295,397
Caixa Ireland Limited 8 4
Caixa Capital - 83,204

VAT payable  277,784 430,642
Deduction of tax at source 2,197,114 263,987
Social security contributions 172,975 154,970
Deferred interest and dividends 99,439 99,629
Charges on securities operations 96 216

   10,600,334 8,500,444

   2004 2003

   Value of Net    Value of Net    
           Fundo Fund    Income Fund    Income 

FIQ Grupo CGD – Caixa Capital 53,294,403 (5,869,217) 59,163,620 (2,558,310)

FIQ PME – Caixa Capital 11,631,056  (656,260) 2,381,792 4,078

FIQ Comércio – Caixa Capital n.a. n.a. 5,439,248 (302,839)

FIQ PEDIP –  Caixa Capital n.a. n.a. 4,466,275 (71,556)

   64,925,459  71,450,935
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funds and attributing of investment units from the incorporating fund to the incorporated
fund members, based on the determination of asset values as at 31 December 2003.

33. Unmatured Forward Operations, as at Date of Balance Sheet 

Off-balance sheet account heading balances related with unmatured forward operations, as
at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprised:

The bank performs derivative operations as a standard activity to provide for its
customers' requirements and reduce its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate
fluctuations.

The above referred to values comprise the reference value of the operations, reflecting the
bank's degree of involvement in each product, but do not translate underlying credit and
market risks. The bank controls the risks associated with derivatives trading through its
approval procedures for operations, definition of exposure limits by product and customer
and the daily monitoring of results.

The operations were valued in conformity with the criteria set out in Note 3. b), as at 31
December 2004 and 2003. Information on these account headings as at 31 December
2004, is set out below: 

   2004    2003

Foreign exchange operations
Trading

- Purchase - 2,950,805
- Sale - 3,602,230

Interest rate swaps (IRS) and cross 
currency swaps (CCIRS)  2,805,649,246 3,248,897,885
Futures (Trading) 

- Interest rates 19,843,321 33,790,000
Options - OTC 

Market value 
- Purchased - 95,924,873
- Sold - 74,976,609

Forward rate agreements (FRA) - 10,000,000
Interest rate guarantee contracts  
. - Lending - Caps 165,746,380 98,484,217

- Borrowing - Caps 165,746,380 98,484,217
- Lending - Floors 150,201,318 66,336,291
- Borrowing - Floors 150,201,318 66,336,291

   Notional   Net Book Value    Market Value

Types of contracts  Hedging  Trading  Total  Hedging   Trading  Total  Hedging Trading Total

Contracts on  exchange rates
OTC

Currency swaps
Purchases 47,699,716 1,355,124,907 1,402,824,623  (806,132) 7,108,200 6,302,068 (5,433,954)  7,108,200 1,674,246
Sales 47,699,716 1,355,124,907 1,402,824,623 (1,656,121)  (8,240,990) (9,897,111) - (8,240,990)  (8,240,990)

95,399,432 2,710,249,814 2,805,649,246 (2,462,253) (1,132,790) (3,595,043) (5,433,954)  (1,132,790)  (6,566,744)
Caps -  331,492,760 331,492,760 - 22,889 22,889 -  22,889 22,889
Floors -  300,402,636 300,402,636 - - - -  -  -

-  631,895,396 631,895,396 - 22,889 22,889 -  22,889  22,889
Stock exchange trading

Futures
Long - 18,968,321 18,968,321 - - - - - -
Short - 875,000 875,000 - - - - - -

- 19,843,321 19,843,321 - - - - - -

95,399,432 3,361,988,531 3,457,387,963 (2,462,253) (1,109,901) (3,572,154) (5,433,954) (1,109,901)  (6,543,855)
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The net book value of the operations is set out below:

The distribution of derivatives operations by period to maturity as at 31 December 2004 is
set out below:

The distribution of derivatives operations, by counterpart type, as at 31 December 2004, is
set out below:
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   Hedging  Trading

Prepayments and accrued income – assets (Note 27)
Deferred income – off-balance sheet operations 390,642 -

Accruals and deferred income – liabilities (Note 27)
Deferred costs – off-balance sheet operations (1,656,121) -
Deferred income – off-balance 
sheet operations (1,196,774) -
Revaluation of options - (846,036)
Revaluation of interest rate swaps - (263,865)

   (2,462,253) (1,109,901)

     > 3 months > 6 months > 1 year
Types of contracts   <= 3 months <= 6 months <= 1 year <= 5 years > 5 years Total

Contracts on  exchange rates

OTC

Currency swaps

Purchases  95,717,958 739,000,000 7,500,000 432,630,817 127,975,848 1,402,824,623

Sales 95,717,958 739,000,000 7,500,000 432,630,817  127,975,848  1,402,824,623

Caps  - - - 300,402,636  31,090,124 331,492,760

Floors  - - - 300,402,636  - 300,402,636

191,435,916 1,478,000,000 15,000,000  1,466,066,906 287,041,820  3,437,544,642

Stock exchange trading

Futures

Long 18,968,321 - - - - 18,968,321

Short 875,000 - - - - 875,000

19,843,321 - - - -  19,843,321

    211,279,237 1,478,000,000 15,000,000 1,466,066,906 287,041,820  3,457,387,963

   Notional Value  %

Contracts on interest rates

OTC with financial institutions

Purchases 976,130,879 28.23%

Sales 960,585,817 27.78%

OTC with customers

Purchases 742,641,442 21.48%

 Sales 758,186,504 21.93%

Stock Exchange

Purchases 18,968,321 0.55%

Sales 875,000 0.03%

   3,457,387,963 100.00%



34. Average Number of Workers

The average number of bank and its subsidiaries' workers in 2004 and 2003, excluding the
board of directors and inspection bodies was 164 and 156, respectively and distributed as
follows:

35. Board of Directors and Inspection

Remuneration paid to members of the board of directors and inspection bodies in 2004 and
2003 totalled € 857,263 and € 953,105 respectively.  

37. Assets and Liabilities Expressed in Foreign Currency 

The book value of assets and liabilities, expressed in foreign currency, as at 31 December
2004 totalled € 4,628,759 and € 4,282,408 respectively as against € 9,317,571 and
€ 9,018,425 on 31 December 2003 respectively. 

38. Income by Business Type and Geographical Markets

The distribution of operating income by business type in 2004, is set out below:

Interest and similar costs were split up over the various business types on the basis of the
average value of the assets allocated to these segments.
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   2004 2003

Top Management 42 37

Technical and line management 77 73

Administrative and auxiliary staff 45 46

   164 156

    Corporate Trading   Retail    Venture
finance   and sales Brokerage banking Capital Other    Total   

Interest and similar income   5,836,949  13,009,389  227,146  7,137,644  1,388,899 -  27,600,027
Interest and similar costs  (3,860,071)  (7,844,050)  (149,510)  (4,836,597)  (2,164)  -  (16,692,392)

I. 1,976,878  5,165,339  77,636  2,301,047  1,386,735  -  10,907,635

Commissions (income)  21,920,683  234,028  6,830,356  7,248,382  1,706,216  -  37,939,665
Commissions (cost)  (1,469,705)  (167,590)  (1,259,175)  -  (441)  -  (2,896,911)

II.  20,450,978  66,438  5,571,181  7,248,382  1,705,775  -  35,042,754

Income from securities  -  -  -  -  229,805  71,354  301,159
Profit generated by trading activities  2,406,065  56,639,664  49,057  -  -  -  59,094,786
Losses from trading activities  (2,300,389) (56,178,696)  (176,702)  -  (14,500)  -  (58,670,287)

III. 105,676  460,968  (127,645)  -  215,305  71,354  725,658
Recoveries and cancellations in respect of value
adjustments related to loans and provisions for 
contingent liabilities and commitments  250,238  1,443,977  27,090  1,305,890  32,878  1,821,918  4,881,991

IV. 250,238  1,443,977  27,090  1,305,890  32,878  1,821,918  4,881,991

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts, 
overdue credit and other risks  (1,628,991)  (1,232,443)  (63,960)  (1,625,567)  (362,092)  (1,011,625)  (5,924,678)

V. (1,628,991)  (1,232,443)  (63,960)  (1,625,567)  (362,092)  (1,011,625)  (5,924,678)
   
Other operating income  30,634  -  79,881  10,301  400,477  1,496,717 2,018,010
   VI.  30,634  -  79,881  10,301  400,477  1,496,717  2,018,010

Total  21,185,413  5,904,279  5,564,183  9,240,053  3,379,078  2,378,364  47,651,370
Other operating income        (26,099,685)
Net income for year        21,551,685

Loans and advances to customers, net of provisions   194,431,232  -  8,658,122  198,428,108  16,688  6,887,211  408,421,361
Amounts owed to customers   20,839,650  -  4,358,067  55,073,778  -  -  80,271,495
Total net assets  337,227,608  360,602,655  36,745,438  203,981,763  123,047,878  35,743,654 1,097,348,996



The distribution of operating income by geographical markets in 2004, is set out below:

Income imputed to "Other European Countries" is fully accounted for by the activities of
Caixa Investments Ireland and Caixa Ireland Limited.

39. Other Operating Income and Costs and Extraordinary Gains and Losses

The "other operating income" and "other operating costs" account headings, in 2004 and
2003 comprised the following:

Annual Report 2004

Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

127

    Other European 
Portugal Countries Total   

Interest and similar income   26,559,152  1,040,875  27,600,027 
Interest and similar costs   (16,692,392)  -  (16,692,392) 

I. 9,866,760  1,040,875  10,907,635 

Commissions (income)  37,939,665  -  37,939,665 
Commissions (cost)  (2,889,325)  (7,586)  (2,896,911) 

II.  35,050,340  (7,586)  35,042,754 

Income from securities  301,159  - 301,159 
Profit generated by trading activities  58,975,652  119,134  59,094,786 
Losses from trading activities  (58,444,758)  (225,529)  (58,670,287)

III. 832,053  (106,395)  725,658

Recoveries and cancellations in respect of value
adjustments related to loans and provisions for 
contingent liabilities and commitments  4,881,991  -  4,881,991  

IV. 4,881,991  -  4,881,991  

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts,
overdue credit and other risks  (5,910,260)  (14,418)  (5,924,678) 

V. (5,910,260)  (14,418)  (5,924,678) 

Other operating income  2,018,010  -  2,018,010 
   VI. 2,018,010  -  2,018,010 

Total  46,738,894  912,476  47,651,370 
Other cost and income    (26,099,685)
      
Net income for year    21,551,685
      

Loans and advances to customers, net of provisions   408,421,361  - 408,421,361 
Amounts owed to customers  80,271,495  -  80,271,495  
Total net assets  1,058,610,343  38,738,653  1,097,348,996  

   2004    2003

Other operating income 
Staff on loan - CGD Group 1,281,466 1,544,032
Income from miscellaneous services 397,498 427,986
Reimbursement of expenses 138,347 240,388
Recovery of interest and expenses on overdue credit 2,380 2,380
Other 198,319 75,307

   2,018,010 2,290,093
Other operating costs 

Subscriptions and donations 56,656 53,400
Other 8,165 10,799

   64,821 64,199



The following is a breakdown of the "extraordinary gains" and "extraordinary losses" account
headings, in 2004 and 2003:

The "other extraordinary gains" account heading in 2004 includes € 632,470 in respect of
the cancellation of provisions for P.M.M. Imobiliária, S.A. and Pardal Monteiro Mármores, S.A.
(Note 31) debts. 

Information on "capital gains on the disposal of equity investments" for 2004 and 2003 is set
out below:

41. Tax Burden

The bank and its subsidiaries in Portugal pay tax under the IRC ("Tax on the Income of
Collective Persons") Tax Code plus the corresponding municipal surcharge levied thereon.

In 2004 and pursuant to a revision of the bank's tax return for 2000, the tax authorities
made an adjustment of € 590,507 to taxable income. The said correction originated the
recognition of an extraordinary loss of € 44,560 and increase in fiscal losses of € 1,654,385
for 2001. The bank therefore submitted a substitute return recording a tax reimbursement
of € 545,947 for 2003 (Note 31).

In conformity with current legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by the
tax authorities for a period of four years. The bank's and its subsidiaries tax returns for 2001
to 2004 are therefore still subject to review and the possibility of corrections.

The board of directors considers that any correction is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the financial statements, as at 31 December 2004.
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   2004    2003

Extraordinary gains
Capital gains on the disposal of equity investments 1,536,333 1,179,022
Gains related to previous years 46,324 106,241
Overestimate of income tax 25,278 218
Indemnities - 126,001
Other 642,812 1,279

   2,250,747 1,412,761
Extraordinary losses

Losses related to previous years 169,969 351,895
Fundição FSM Internacional, S.A. (Note 50) 125,000 -
Fines and other fiscal penalties 28,731 -
Capital losses on the disposal of equity investments 21,709 12,251
Other 6 104

   345,415 364,250

   2004    2003

Capital gains on the disposal of equity investments (Note 50):
Solidal, S.A. 1,167,687 -
Cabelte - Projectos Internacionais, SGPS, S.A. 100,108 -
Fundição FSM Internacional, S.A. 85,798 -
Unifer – Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A. 60,229 101,683
Tegopi - Indústrias Metalomecânicas, S.A. 56,571 -
Euronext N.V. 43,001 225,389
Silger, SGPS, S.A. - 515,358
Têxtil João Duarte, S.A. - 134,837
Ceramic, Mosaicos Cerâmicos, S.A. - 105,792
Apolo Cerâmicas, S.A. - 38,494
Other  22,939 57,469

   1,536,333 1,179,022



42. Incidence of Income Tax

Income tax accounted for a proportion of 20.79% (14.18% in 2003) of current and extraordinary
consolidated results. 

43. Inclusion of the Bank’s Accounts in the Consolidated Accounts of Another

Institution

The bank's financial statements are consolidated with those of Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.
with registered office in Avenida João XXI, no. 63, Lisbon.

47. Group Company Results

The bank's income statement for 2004 and 2003, includes the following principal financial
statements of Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. companies not included in the consolidation
perimeter:

49. Pensions Liabilities

The bank does not have any retirement pensions liabilities to its employees, who are covered
by the national social security regime, owing to the fact that it is not a signatory to the
Collective Wage Bargaining Agreement for the Banking Sector.

The bank, however, at its own discretion, in 1987, set up the "Fundo de Pensões Caixa-Banco
de Investimento" (Fund) with the objective of providing its employees with additional old
age, disability and survivor's retirement pensions, pursuant to the terms of the contract. The
fund is managed by CGD Pensões - Sociedade Gestora de Fundos de Pensões, S.A.
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   2004    2003

Income:
Interest and similar income:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 3,000,609 3,874,222

Commissions:
Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 297,266 1,583,189
Caixa Seguros, SGPS, S.A. 591,350 -
Caixaweb, SGPS, S.A. 52,500 -

Profit generated by trading activities:
Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 24,796,387 32,965,773

Other operating income:
Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 741,723 807,716
Sogrupo – Sistemas de Informação, ACE 298,870 320,814
Sogrupo – Serviços Administrativos, ACE 199,659 374,660
Sogrupo III – Gestão de Activos, ACE 46,411 40,842
Caixa Seguros, SGPS, S.A. 101 -

Costs:
Interest and similar costs:

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 15,015,802 12,138,310
Caixa Leasing e Factoring – Instituição Financeira
 de Crédito, S.A. 20,623 15,470

Commissions:
Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 313,901 51,618

Losses generated by trading activities:
Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 28,802,721 38,478,939

Other administrative expenses:
Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 780,745 964,916
Sogrupo – Sistemas de Informação, ACE 298,870 320,814
Banco Siméon, S.A. 142,173 -
Caixa Leasing e Factoring – Instituição Financeira
 de Crédito, S.A. 83,098 -
Sogrupo – Serviços Administrativos, ACE 13,300 374,660



The bank pays a percentage of 3.5% of each employee's annual wages into the fund.
Pension costs, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, were € 270,309 and € 295,462
respectively.

The bank does not have any liabilities other than the above referred to contributions owing
to the fact that this is a defined contribution plan.

The other group companies do not have pensions liabilities.

50. Other Financial Investments, Equity Investments in Associated Companies

and Equity Investments in Subsidiaries Excluded from the Consolidation

Other financial investments

The "other financial investments" consolidated account heading as at 31 December 2004 and
2003 is set out below:
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2004 2003
% Acquisition Provisions Net % Net 

Investment Price (Note 24) Amount Investment Amount

Investments - Bank
Euronext N.V.  0.13%  3,125,414  - 3,125,414  0.14%  3,352,087
Corporacion Interamericana para el
Financiamiento de Infraestructura  8.70%  2,936,642  -  2,936,642  8.70%  3,167,063

6,062,056  -  6,062,056   6,519,150
Investments - Caixa Desenvolvimento

VAA – Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A.  9.88%  7,891,778  (1,046,041)  6,845,737  9.88% 7,265,525
Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A.  10.76%  5,000,000  -  5,000,000  10.76%  5,000,000
SAG Gest, S.G.P.S.  1.35%  4,999,760  (667,910)  4,331,850  1.35%  4,381,243
Visabeira Indústria SGPS, S.A.  16.70% 2,899,995  - 2,899,995  16.70% 2,899,995
NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A.  18.93%  1,608,750  -  1,608,750  - -
Solidal - Condutores Eléctricos, S.A.  -  - - -  11.65%  5,130,383

22,400,283  (1,713,951)  20,686,332   24,677,146
Investments - Caixa Capital

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A.  5.40%  2,500,000  -  2,500,000  5.40%  2,500,000
Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A.  15.70%  2,288,750  -  2,288,750  18.35%  2,000,000
Plataforma, SGPS, S.A.  4.85% 1,000,000  - 1,000,000  4.85%  1,000,000
Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.  42.50%  637,500  -  637,500  - -
Convento de Belmonte -Investimentos Turísticos,S.A.  20.00%  469,060  - 469,060  20.00%  469,060
PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares  11.69% 319,598 - 319,598  11.69%  399,500
Gresval - Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, S.A.  19.90% 658,039  (460,627)  197,412  19.90%  263,217
Prado Karton, SA  0.80% 108,260  -  108,260  0.80%  108,260
Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, SA  0.58% 100,003 - 100,003 0.58%  100,003
Prado Cartolinas da Lousã, SA  0.80% 92,863  -  92,863  0.80% 92,863
Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A.  4.40% 87,151 (21,788)  65,363 4.40% 87,151
Companhia de Papel do Prado, S.A.  0.80% 53,646 - 53,646  0.80%  53,644
Felino - Fundição e Construções Mecânicas, S.A.  7.40% 249,404  (236,934) 12,470  7.40% 12,470
Tecnijoma, Plásticos Técnicos, Lda.  25.00%  62,500  (59,375)  3,125 25.00%  15,625
Associação do Tecnopólo de Coimbra  0.00% 2,494  - 2,494  0.00%  2,494
Cabelte - Projectos Internacionais, SGPS, S.A.  -  -  -  -  9.57% 2,744,500
Tegopi - Indústria Metalomecânica, S.A.  - -  - - 10.06% 941,940 
Fundição FSM Internacional, Lda.  - -  - -  20.80%  -
Unifer - Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A.  - -  -  - 0.87%  -

8,629,268  (778,724) 7,850,544   10,790,727

    37,091,607  (2,492,675)  34,598,932  41,987,023



A comparison between the book and market value of group investments as at 31 December
2004 is set out below:

This table does not include Caixa Capital's venture capital operations.

Pursuant to the terms of the transitory regime set out in Bank of Portugal Official Notice no.
4/2002, provisions for capital losses generated by the transitory regime were determined as
follows:

• 75% of the provision to be set up on the basis of the capital losses determined as at
30 June 2002, for the amount of € 822,420, as a charge to reserves, in equal
amounts of € 274,160 in the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 (Notes 24 and 56);

• The increase in the amount to be provisioned was recognised in the income
statement.

The provision for investments not covered by the transitory regime comprises the full minimum
amount to be provisioned as determined by Official Notice no. 4/2002 (Note 3. e)).

The market value of investments in listed companies, based on their end-of-year stock
exchange closing prices was € 4,991,320 and € 4,629,321 lower than the respective book
value, respectively, net of provisions as at 31 December 2004 and 2003.

The principal equity investments account headings in 2004 are set out below:

Euronext N.V. (Euronext)

The bank sold 11,500 Euronext N.V. shares for the amount of € 269,675 on the stock exchange,
in 2004, realising capital gains of € 43,001 (Note 39). 

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. 

Caixa Desenvolvimento acquired 250,000 NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. shares
comprising 50% of the company's share capital at € 0.5 per share in 2004.

Caixa Desenvolvimento also took part in the company's share capital increase by subscribing
for 1,358,750 redeemable preference shares with a nominal value of € 1, at € 1 each. Caixa
Desenvolvimento later swapped 250,000 ordinary for 250,000 redeemable preference
shares by making an additional payment of € 125,000.

Caixa Desenvolvimento also made partners' loans of € 1,599,877 (Note 31).
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    Acquisition  Market  Capital loss
Entity   Price Date Value (*) Total To be provisioned Provisioned

Investments covered by transitory regime:
Listed

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A.  7,891,778  n.a.  3,470,086  (4,421,692)  (1,295,170)  (1,046,041)

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A.  4,999,760  n.a.  2,517,442  (2,482,318)  (692,942)  (667,910)

Other investments
Listed

Euronext N.V.  3,125,414  n.a.  3,564,519  -  -  -

Unlisted

Corporacion Interamericana para el

Financiamiento de Infraestructura  3,167,063  31-12-2003  4,364,455  -  -  -

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A.  5,000,000  31-12-2003  4,706,862  (293,138) -  -

Visabeira Indústria SGPS, S.A.  2,899,995 31-12-2003  3,501,472 -  - -

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A.  1,608,750 31-12-2003  2,403,784  -

        (1,988,112)  (1,713,951)

(*) Determined under terms of Bank of Portugal Official Notice no. 4/2002



Solidal - Condutores Eléctricos, S.A.

Caixa Desenvolvimento sold off its equity investment in Solidal - Condutores Eléctricos for an
overall amount of € 6,917,687 in November 2004. The operation generated capital gains
of € 1,167,687 (Note 39) and provisions replenishments of € 619,617 (Note 24).

Full repayment was also made of Caixa Desenvolvimento's partner's loans of € 3,750,000
(Note 31). 

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Capital took part in the share capital increase of Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A., in September
2004 in subscribing for 30,556 redeemable preference shares with a nominal value of € 5
each at a price of € 5 each. 

Caixa Capital's partners' loans were also partly converted into share capital, comprising the
acquisition of 27,194 redeemable preference shares at a nominal value of € 5 each for the
amount of € 135,970 (Note 31).

Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.

Caixa Capital acquired 21,250 Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. shares for the amount
of € 21,250 in October 2004. It was also a party to the company's share capital increase in
subscribing for 616,250 shares with a nominal value of € 1, for an overall amount of
€ 616,250 in December 2004.

Caixa Capital also made partners' loans of € 1,644,511 (Note 31).

Cabelte - Projectos Internacionais, SGPS, S.A. 

Caixa Capital sold off its equity investment in Cabelte - Projectos Internacionais SGPS for
the overall amount of € 2,844,608, having made capital gains of € 100,108 (Note 39) in
July 2004.

Tegopi - Indústria Metalomecânica S.A.

Caixa Capital sold off its equity investment in Tegopi - Indústria Metalomecânica S.A.
in November 2004 for the overall amount of € 998,511, having made capital gains of
€ 56,571 (Note 39).

Fundição FSM Internacional, S.A.

Caixa Capital sold off its equity investment in Fundição FSM Internacional, S.A. for the
overall amount of € 335,197 in January 2004. The operation generated capital gains of
€ 85,798 (Note 39) and provisions replenishments of € 249,399 (Note 24).

Caixa Capital also cancelled the extraordinary gains of € 125,000, recognised in 2003, in
respect of the indemnity received pursuant to the legal action for breach of agreements
entered into with regard to this subsidiary (Note 39).

Unifer - Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A.

Caixa Capital sold off 31,500 Unifer - Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A. shares in November 2004
under a promissory sales contract entered into for the overall amount of € 217,350. The
operation generated capital gains of € 60,229 (Note 39) and provisions replenishments of
€ 157,121 (Note 24).
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The principal equity investments account headings in 2003 are set out below:

Euronext N.V. (Euronext)

The bank sold 138,500 Euronext N.V. shares on the stock exchange for € 2,955,326 in 2003,
earning capital gains of € 225,389 (Note 39). 

Manuel Inácio e Filhos, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital took part in the share capital increase of Manuel
Inácio e Filhos, SGPS, S.A. in May 2003 by respectively subscribing for 1,597,444
and 798,722 redeemable preference shares with a nominal value of € 1, at a unit price of
€ 3.13.

Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital took part in the share capital increase of
Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. in August 2003 by respectively subscribing for 446,153
and 15,385 shares with a nominal value of € 5 at a unit price of € 6.5. Caixa
Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital also made partners' loans of € 1,100,000 and € 400,000,
respectively (Note 31).

Grupo A. Silva & Silva

Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital sold off their equity investments in the Grupo
A. Silva & Silva, Silger, SGPS, S.A. and Silvageste, SGPS, S.A. holding companies to the Fundo
de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados - Grupo CGD (Fund) in 2003 at their book
value. The Fund also purchased Caixa Desenvolvimento's partners' loans to Silger, SGPS, S.A.
for the amount of € 2,866,903.

The trade originated the replenishment of provisions for capital losses on financial
investments made in these subsidiaries in 2002 for the amount of € 4,697,613 (Note 24).
The part of the preceding year's deferred capital gains of € 515,358 (Note 39) was also
posted to consolidated net income. 

Tegopi - Indústria Metalomêcanica, S.A.

Caixa Capital acquired 47,097 ordinary Tegopi - Indústria Metalomêcanica, S.A. shares for
10.06% of its share capital at a unit price of € 20 per share in December 2003.

Convento de Belmonte - Investimentos Turísticos, S.A.

Caixa Capital acquired 94,000 of this company's ordinary shares at a nominal price of € 4.99
in May 2003.

Companhia Papel do Prado, S.A.

A part of Caixa Capital's equity investment in Companhia Papel do Prado, S.A. was
transferred to two companies formed in July 2003 by spinning off the assets of the
demerged company - Prado - Cartolinas da Lousã, S.A. and Prado Karton - Companhia
do Cartão, S.A..

Ceramic - Mosaicos Cerâmicos, S.A.

The company sold off its equity investment in Ceramic - Mosaicos Cerâmicos, S.A. in January
2003 for the overall amount of € 355,203, having made capital gains of € 105,792
(Note 39).

Apolo Cerâmicas, S.A.

Caixa Capital sold off its equity investment in Apolo Cerâmicas, S.A. to Ceramic - Mosaicos
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Cerâmicos, S.A. in January 2003 for an overall amount of € 287,893, payable by July 2007.
The operation originated capital gains of € 38,494 (Note 39) and provisions replenishments
of € 24,940.

Têxtil João Duarte, S.A.

Caixa Capital sold off its equity investment in Têxtil João Duarte, S.A. in 2003 for € 661,985,
generating capital gains of € 134,837 (Note 39). The amount of the sale will be paid by
December 2012.

Unifer - Indústrias Metalúrgicas, S.A.

In accordance with its promissory sales agreement, Caixa Capital sold off 47,250
Unifer - Indústrias Metalúrgicas shares, S.A., in 2003 realising capital gains of € 101,683
(Note 39).

Equity investments in associated companies

The "equity investments in associated companies" heading as at 31 December 2004 and
2003 comprised the following investments: 

Gimob was liquidated in 2004. The liquidation value attributed to Caixa Capital was
€ 93,806 comprising a recorded loss of € 1,484.

Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital were involved in the formation of Grupo Pestana
Pousadas - Investimentos Turísticos, S.A., in July 2003, having subscribed for 500,000
shares, comprising 25% of its share capital at a nominal value of € 5, for an overall amount
of € 2,500,000. Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital also made partners' loans of the
same amount (Note 31).

The book value of these investments in 2003 and 2004 and their respective impact in the
consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Annual Report 2004

134

    2004  2003
   Percentage  Book Book
   investment  value value

Grupo Pestana Pousadas 
Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. (Grupo Pestana) 25% 1,608,116 2,193,839

Finpro, Infraestruturas, S.A. (Finpro) 30% 178,559 177,867

Gimob, SGPS, S.A. (Gimob) - - 95,290

      
    1,786,675 2,466,996

Grupo Pestana Gimob Finpro Total

Balance as at 31 December 2002 - 71,296 207,281 278,577

Acquisition cost 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000

Losses and gains generated by
associated companies (Note 56) (306,161) 23,994 (29,414) (311,581)

Balance as at 31 December 2003 2,193,839 95,290 177,867 2,466,996

Liquidation of Gimob - (93,806) - (93,806)

Losses and gains generated by 
associated companies (Note 56) (585,723) (1,484)  692   (586,515)

Balance as at 31 December 2004 1,608,116 - 178,559 1,786,675
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Equity investments in subsidiary companies excluded from the consolidation

The "equity investments in subsidiary companies excluded from the consolidation" account
heading as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 fully comprised the equity investment of
€ 134,791 in Biomediche, Produtos Terapêuticos, Hospitalares e Cirúrgicos, Lda. 

Caixa Capital sold off its investment in Sulei, Sociedade Ultramarina de Empreendimentos
Imobiliários, S.A. in 2003 for 1 euro, having used € 1,496,394 of provisions.

These investments have been fully provisioned (Note 24) and therefore excluded from the
consolidation.

51. Cash and Deposits with Central Banks

This account heading comprises the following:

The "sight deposits with Bank of Portugal" account heading includes the deposits providing
for the demands of the "Minimum Reserve Requirements of the System of European Central
Banks" (SEBC). Interest is paid on these deposits which comprise 2% of the deposits and
debt securities with a maturity of up to two years, excluding deposits and government
bonds subject to SEBC minimum reserve requirements.

52. Liquid Assets with Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

Amounts due for collection from credit institutions comprise cheques drawn by customers
of other banks, sent for clearing and collected in the first few days of the following year.

53. Treasury Stock

The bank owned 4,658,000 of its own shares at a cost price of € 5,999,453, as at 31
December 2004 and 2003.

54. Debt Securities

This account heading, as at 31 December 2003, fully comprised the issue value of
"BCF Utilities Europa 1999/2004" cash bonds which was reimbursed in 2004. The
redemption value of the "BCF Utilities Europa 1999/2004" bonds comprises their nominal
value plus a variable rate of interest, equivalent to a percentage of the appreciation
of the "BCF Utilities Europa" Index over the five years of their issue applied to their
nominal value and determined on the basis of 60 monthly observations. The bonds
guarantee a minimum increase in worth of 2.5% and project a maximum redemption
value of 40% of the initial capital. A bonus of 5% is paid on the initial minimum and

Annual Report 2004

Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

135

2004 2003

Cash   2,846 2,846
Sight deposits with Bank of Portugal 2,658,082 10,274,261 
   2,660,928 10,277,107

2004 2003

Sight deposits 
Institutions in Portugal 5,982,940 3,200,706
Institutions abroad 3,170,282 2,258,121

Amounts due for collection from credit institutions 929,975 10,965
   10,083,197 5,469,792



maximum return if any of the observations is equivalent to at least 150% of the value of
the "BCF Utilities Europa Index" The risk attached to "BCF Utilities Europa 1999/2004" bonds
was hedged by an option acquired from an external entity and deposits in credit institutions
with a rate of return equivalent to that generated by the bonds. 

Estimated liabilities to be paid on bonds with returns indexed to indices is calculated in
conformity with the options revaluations methods used by the bank (Note 3 b)) and
recognised in the "revaluation of options" account heading (Note 27).

55. Subscribed Capital

Subscribed capital comprises 81,250,000 shares with a nominal value of one euro each.

Information on the bank's equity structure, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out
below:

56. Reserves, Retained Earnings and Profit for Year

Entries to the bank's reserves and retained earnings account headings for 2003 and 2004 are
set out below:

Annual Report 2004

Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

136

    2004  2003
No. shares % %

Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A. 68,348,445 84.1 84.1
Companhia de Seguros Fidelidade - Mundial, S.A. 7,959,630 9.8 9.8
Treasury stock (Note 53) 4,658,000 5.7 5.7
Other 283,925 0.4 0.4

81,250,000 100.0 100.0

Reserves Revaluation Reserves Retained Earnings  Profit for Year

Balance as at 31 December 2002 31,493,824 4,338,403 23,950,641 19,143,960
Distribution of profit for 2002:

Transfers to reserves and retained earnings  7,276,655 - 11,867,305 (19,143,960)

Provisions for financial investments (Note 50) (274,160) - - -

Profit for year - - - 20,106,806

Balance as at 31 December 2003 38,496,319 4,338,403 35,817,946 20,106,806
Distribution of profit for 2003

Transfers to reserves and retained earnings 3,592,786 - 16,514,019 (20,106,806)

Provisions for financial investments (Note 50) (274,160) -  -  -

Profit for year - - - 21,551,685

Balance as at 31 December 2004 41,814,945 4,338,403 52,331,965 21,551,685



Profit for year

Information on the bank's consolidated net income for 2004 and 2003 is set out below:

Legal Reserve

In conformity with Decree Law 298/92 of 31 December, the bank is required to set up a legal
reserve fund until equal to its share capital and annually transfer an amount of not less than
10% of net profits to the reserve. The reserve may only be used to cover accrued losses or
share capital increases. The value of the bank's legal reserve as at 31 December 2004 and
2003 totalled € 22,810,194 and € 21,035,182, respectively.

Revaluation reserves

The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. The
increase of € 4,338,403, in the net value of the fixed assets was recognised in the
"revaluation reserves" account heading. 

Revaluation reserves may only be used to cover accrued losses or share capital increases.

57. Comissions Earnings

This account heading comprises the following:
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   2004    2003

Bank’s individual net income 19,063,713 17,750,114

Contribution of consolidated companies to net income:
Caixa Desenvolvimento 772,652 571,774
Caixa Investments Ireland 691,819 986,171
Caixa Capital 1,553,983 1,550,605
Finpro Infraestruturas 692 (29,414)
Gimob (1,484) 23,994
Caixa Ireland Limited (27,819) (19,029)
Grupo Pestana (585,723) (306,161)

2,404,120 2,777,940
Cancellation of dividends received:

Caixa Ireland Limited (Nota 6) (875,000) (1,000,000)
Cancellation of provisions set up by Caixa Desenvolvimento 1,207,602 612,164
Provisions set up under the transitory regime of Official Notice 4/2002 (469,182) (656,475)
Transfer of provisions set up by Caixa Desenvolvimento to reserves
under the transitory regime of Official Notice 4/2002 274,160 274,160
Correction of capital gains obtained by Caixa Capital on liquidation of Gimob  (18,988) -
Impact of capital gains obtained by Caixa Capital on alienation of Silger (Note 50) - 515,358
Cancellation of provisions set up by Caixa Capital for
equity investment in Finpro Infraestruturas - 40,000
Other   (34,740) (206,455)

Consolidated net income 21,551,685 20,106,806

2004 2003

Provision of services
Organisation of operations 13,756,905 549,094
Deposit and custody of securities 606,957 418,173
Venture fund capital management (Caixa Capital) 1,706,216 1,745,036
Other 6,702,039 8,320,142

Securities operations 6,195,221 4,816,883
Provision of guarantees 1,169,304 603,466
Foreign currency operations, interest and market value 493,754 325,124
Commitments to third parties – securities subscriptions 284,730 298,175
Other 7,024,539 6,783,552
   37,939,665 23,859,645
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58. Profits and Losses Generated by Financial Operations

These income statement account headings comprise the following:
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   2004 2003

   Profits Losses Profits Losses

Revaluation of spot foreign exchange position 647,442 (331,060) 220,123 (181,316)

Revaluation of forward foreign exchange position  2,358 (76,607) 1,280 (567)

Revaluation and capital gains or losses

on sales of trading account securities 6,814,418 (5,042,242) 12,491,956 (10,546,255)

Revaluation and capital gains or losses

on sales of investment account securities 524,671 (758,110) 142,557 (359,556)

Revaluations of irrevocable commitments

options sold  82,000 - - -

Revaluation of swap operations 50,456,408 (50,649,031) 72,688,090 (72,393,047)

Revaluation of futures contracts 489,076 (1,695,254) 2,935,613 (3,501,245)

Revaluation of forward rate agreements (FRA) 54,029 (44,834) 349,098 (537,054)

Revaluation of options contracts 21,293 (70,119) 55,472 (99,367)

Other  3,091 (3,030) 6,099 (13,509)

59,094,786 (58,670,287) 88,890,288 (87,631,916)
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Individual Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 (Note3)
(Amounts in euros)

2004 2003

ASSETS  Notes Gross Assets Depreciation and Net Assets Net Assets 
      Provisions

Cash and cash equivalents with Central Banks 51 2,659,928 - 2,659,928 10,276,107

Loans to credit institutions payable on demand 52 10,065,449 - 10,065,449 5,425,193

Other loans and advances to credit institutions 14 10,172,014 - 10,172,014 36,498,323

Loans and advances to customers 14 475,385,249 (9,980,577) 465,404,672 325,876,298

Bonds and other fixed-income securities:

  - Public issuers 10 47,364,533 (52,678) 47,311,855 47,224,555

  - Other issuers 10 353,441,711 (266,521) 353,175,190 233,862,983

Shares and other variable-income securities 10 1,611,378 (426,048) 1,185,330 1,901,329

Investments  50 6,062,056 - 6,062,056 5,899,533

Equity investments in sister companies 50 17,088,434 - 17,088,434 17,088,434

Intangible assets 11 5,080,597 (4,699,117) 381,480 303,753

Tangible assets 11 19,594,959 (7,631,190) 11,963,769 11,980,818

       (Of which: property) 11 (13,171,225) (2,579,690) (10,591,535) (10,760,301)

Treasury stock  53 5,999,453  - 5,999,453 5,999,453

Other assets  31 75,922,907  (4,267,886) 71,655,021 76,192,138

Prepayments and accrued income 27 72,937,891 - 72,937,891 10,126,904

Total Assets   1,103,386,559 (27,324,017) 1,076,062,542 788,655,821

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Contingent liabilities 23   217,586,607 152,021,960

    Of which:

-   Guarantees and sureties 23   (172,586,607) (101,537,029)

    -     Deposits and asset-backed guarantees 23   (45,000,000) (50,484,931)

Commitments  23   281,816,873 180,034,862
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(Amounts in euros)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Notes 2004 2003

Amounts owed to credit institutions:

 - Payable on demand 18 168,071 157,897

   - Term or with notice 18 701,666,393 504,335,080

Amounts owed to customers:

   - Other 

      - Payable on demand 18 56,091,354 47,551,182

      - Term or with notice 18 31,487,245 18,207,404

Debt securities

 - Bonds in circulation 54  - 36,253,378

Other liabilities 31 10,116,752 7,878,430

Accruals and deferred income 27 94,108,280 11,399,824

Provisions for risks and liabilities 24 7,079,077 6,590,969

Total Liabilities  900,717,172 632,374,164

Subscribed capital 55 81,250,000 81,250,000

Reserves  56 32,139,101 30,364,089

Revaluation reserves 56 4,338,403 4,338,403

Retained earnings 56 38,554,153 22,579,051

Profit for year 56 19,063,713 17,750,114

Total shareholders' equity  175,345,370 156,281,657

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  1,076,062,542 788,655,821



Annual Report 2004

142 Financial Statements
Individual Accounts

Individual Income Statements by Income Type
for the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2005 (nota 3)

(Amounts in euros)

Costs Notes 2004 2003

Interest and similar costs  16,777,291 19,585,315

Commissions  2,888,883 1,137,898

Losses generated by financial operations 58 58,430,259 87,631,914

General administrative expenses   

 - Employee costs  10,873,496 10,057,432

   Of which:   

(Wages and salaries)  (8,775,142) (8,101,000)

( Social costs)  (2,056,804) (1,938,582)

      Of which:   

(pensions) 49 (270,309) (295,462)

Other administrative expenses  6,097,390 5,538,555

Depreciation  11 1,095,925 1,026,113

Other operating costs 39 59,821 59,199

Provisions for doubtful loans
overdue credit and other risks 24 5,513,427 5,270,902

Provisions for financial investments 24 2,688,702 868,430

Extraordinary losses 39 212,916 354,619

Income tax  41 5,332,620 3,235,021

Other tax      197,623 212,606

Profit for year  19,063,713 17,750,114

Total Costs   129,232,066 152,728,118



Annual Report 2004

143Financial Statements
Individual Accounts

(Amounts in euros)

INCOME Notes 2004 2003

Interest and similar income  25,518,030 26,860,836

Of which:

      (fixed-income securities)  (9,757,100) (10,257,001)

Income from securities

  - Income from investments  71,354 124,968

   - Income from equity investments 
   in sister companies 6 875,000 1,000,000

Commissions 57 36,272,169 22,159,372

Profits generated by financial operations 58 58,975,652 88,676,531

Recoveries and cancellations in respect of
value adjustments relating to loans and provisions for
contingent liabilities and commitments 24 4,849,114 6,541,271

Recoveries and cancellations in respect of 
value adjustments relating to financial
investment securities, investments and equity
investments in sister companies 24 619,617 4,872,835

Other operating income 39 1,946,979 2,171,983

Extraordinary gains 39 104,151 320,322

     

Total Income  129,232,066 152,728,118
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Individual Income Statements by Functions
for the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

(Amounts in euros)

2004 2003

1. Net interest income 8,740,739 7,275,521

2. Provisions for credit risks 1,744,657 2,171,220

4. Intermediation margin (1 - 2) 6,996,082 5,104,301

5. Commissions (net) 33,383,286 21,021,474

6. Other operating income 1,938,815 2,161,183

7. Services margin (5 + 6) 35,322,101 23,182,657

8. Income from securities 946,354 1,124,968

10. Income generated by financial operations 545,393 1,044,617

11. Provisions for depreciation of securities (226,084) (4,211,103)

12. Investment margin (8 + 10 - 11) 1,717,831 6,380,688

14. Other costs 249,280 261,007

15. Income prior to conversion costs (4 + 7 + 12 - 14) 43,786,734 34,406,639

16. Employee costs 10,873,496 10,057,432

17. Other administrative costs 6,097,390 5,538,555

18. Depreciation 1,095,925 1,026,113

19. Conversion costs (16 + 17 + 18) 18,066,811 16,622,100

20. Operating income (15 - 19) 25,719,923 17,784,539

21.Other provisions 1,214,825 (3,234,891)

22. Income from disposal of financial investments 43,001 225,389

23. Other extraordinary income (151,766) (259,684)

24. Income before tax (20 - 21 + 22 + 23) 24,396,333 20,985,135

25.Tax 5,332,620 3,235,021

27. Net income (24 - 25 - 26) 19,063,713 17,750,114

28. Earnings per share (eurocents) 0.23 0.22

29. Net operating income (4 + 7 + 12 + 2 + 11) 45,554,587 32,627,763
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Individual Cash Flow Statements
for the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2003

(Amounts in euros)

2004 2003

Cash Flows Generated by Operating Activities 
Interest and commissions received 62,357,149 49,923,428
Interest and commissions paid (15,525,445) (15,800,025)
Income from securities 1,659,632 1,514,945
Payments to employees and suppliers (16,404,699) (15,624,530)
Payment of income tax (5,332,620) (3,235,021)
Oher income 672,729 1,772,014
Operating income prior to changes in operating assets 27,426,746 18,550,811

(Increases) decreases in operating assets
Loans and advances to credit institutions and customers (113,600,544) 46,336,309
Bonds and other fixed-income securities (119,169,164) 7,579,461
Shares and other variable-income securities 711,740  (1,033,262)
Other assets and prepayments and accrued income accounts (60,218,702) 856,032

(292,276,670) 53,738,540

(Increases) decreases in operating liabilities
Amounts owed to customers 21,820,012 (55,166,838)
Amounts owed to credit institutions 197,341,489  (6,032,983)
Debt securities (36,253,378) (10,724,155)
Other liabilities and accruals and deferred income accounts 78,924,728 (2,477,603)

261,832,851 (74,401,579)

Net cash from operating activities (3,017,073) (2,112,228)

Cash Flows Generated by Investment Activities
Disposal of equity investments and sister companies 269,675  2,955,326
Acquisition of fixed assets (1,174,879) (635,830)

Net cash from investment activities (905,204) 2,319,496

Cash Flows Generated by Financing Activities 
Income from investments 946,354 1,124,968

Net cash from financing activities 946,354 1,124,968

Increase (decrease) net of cash and cash equivalents (2,975,923) 1,332,236
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 15,701,300 14,369,064
Cash and equivalents at end of year 12,725,377 15,701,300

Annex to the Individual Cash Flow Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2004

(Amounts in euros)

1. Acquisition/Alienation of Equity Investments and Sister Companies
The following is a breakdown of flows in respect of investments and sister companies (Note 50)

Total Price Paid / Received

Acquisitions:  _   _

Alienations:
Euronext, N.V. 269,675  269,675
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Schedule of Securities and Financial Investments as at 31 December 2004
(Individual)

(Amounts in euros)

    Balance  Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value Carrying Amount

A. TRADING SECURITIES   
Fixed-income securities   

Portuguese government bonds   
- Treasury bonds

OTFEV9505E 18,455,574  0.01 205,716
Subtotal    205,716

Issued by other resident entities   
     - Other bonds   

EDIA0318V 1,500  1,000.00 1,503,774
GOV REG AÇORES 05V  27,433,884  0.01 281,247
SONAE IMOB SGPS 05V 24,939,895  0.01 252,075
BTA LIS 9505V 24,939,895  0.01 250,130
B SANTANDER 9505V 14,878,356  0.01 149,377
C.E. MONTEPIO LIS 05V 5,985,574  0.01 60,499
SECIL LIS 9505V  748,197  0.01 7,542

Subtotal    2,504,644

Issued by other non-resident entities   
     - Other bonds   

CGD PAR 12F 10,000,000  1.00 10,359,191
MINICENTRALES34F  50  200,000.00 10,296,092
GAMA RECEIVABLESFS11V  5,000  1,000.00 5,003,499
DAIMLER CHRYSL US 11F  3,000  1,000.00 3,066,789
ATHLON SECURITISAT1B13V  3,000  1,000.00 3,032,412
LOCAT SECURI VEHI24V 3,000  1,000.00 3,005,213
QUARTZ IRELAND PLC07V 2,000  1,000.00 2,002,258
CLARIS/MILLESIME 24V  2,000  1,000.00 1,972,157
JPMORGAN9717  2  100,000.00 451,412

Subtotal    39,189,023
      
Variable-income securities   

Issued by resident entities   
    - Shares   

   TELECOM 25,000  1.00 227,500
GESCARTÂO 5,000  5.00 53,000

   COFINA SGPS  6,000  0.50 21,840
PT MULTIMÉDIA, SGPS - Em 2001 - A  35,000  0.50 647,150

   J MARTINS SGPS  3,000  5.00 29,100
   NOVABASE SGPS  5,182  0.50 32,491
Subtotal    1,011,081
      
TOTAL     42,910,464

B. INVESTMENT SECURITIES   
Fixed-income issued by public entities
Portuguese government bonds

- Medium and long term maturity
OTJUL0306E  100,000,000  0.01 1,006,076

Subtotal    1,006,076

Fixed-income securities issued by other entities   
Issued by resident entities   

 - Short term maturity    
Commercial paper - PAR4103 2,500,000,000  0.01 25,000,001
Commercial paper - SON4126A 345  50,000.00 17,250,000
Commercial paper - MOT7115 1,125,000,000  0.01 11,250,000
Commercial paper - SON4130 192  50,000.00 9,600,000
Commercial paper - REN21125 700,000,000  0.01 7,000,000
Commercial paper - IMO1147 139  50,000.00 6,950,000
Commercial paper - REN21122  600,000,000  0.01 6,000,000
Commercial paper - BAR1136  553,000,000  0.01 5,530,000
Commercial paper - MDL2110 415,000,000  0.01 4,150,000
Commercial paper - CLP9194 600  5,000.00 3,000,000
Commercial paper - SON4136  56  50,000.00 2,800,000
Commercial paper - BAR1134 83,875,000  0.01 838,750

Subtotal    99,368,751
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Schedule of Securities and Financial Investments as at 31 December 2004
(Individual)

(Amounts in euros)

    Balance  Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value Carrying Amount

 - Medium and long term maturity   
Modelo Continente Sgps 04/09V 1,555,000  10.00 15,550,484
Metro 95/07  1,685,000  4.99 8,408,150
JMR0308V 900,000  5.00 4,500,000
EDP 98/08 - 25º 399,971,105  0.01 3,999,705
JM&F  0308  582,500  5.00 2,912,500
Bco Itau Europa Lis 2,300  1,000.00 2,304,488
Fisipe 00/07 (EUR) 1,000,000  2.16 2,160,000
Brisa 98/08 400,000  4.99 1,996,000
SVCaetano 02/07  250,000  7.50 1,875.000
Mota-Engil 02 1ª Em.  400,000  4.17 1,668,000
SODIM 07V  178,960  4.99 865,742
Governo Regional Açores 1ªEm  84,795,641  0.01 853,868
Auto Industrial (EUR) 400,000  1.25 500,000
CGDLXE  (EUR)  47,637,810  0.01 432,329
CGDOXE  (EUR)  1,945  50.00 96,062
BMELL8749V 285  0.01 3
BTA8749V 212  0.01 2
CPP8849V 87  0.01 1
BFN8749V 80  0.01 1
BPSM9749V 90  0.01 1
UBP9606V 98  0.01 1
CPP8949V 31  0.01 -

Subtotal    48,122,337

Overdue loans and interest   
Securities   

- Fixed-income   
Bonds - Cobre - Ser.A   33,977
Bonds - Luis Correia S.H./88   28,204
Bonds - Luis Correia/87   27,474
Bonds - Luis Correia S.E./88   1,880
Bonds - Copinaque - 87   1,369
Bonds - Luis Correia S.F./88   487

Subtotal    93,391

Issued by non-resident entities   
- By overseas public issuers   

BGB0206V - DIV.PUB.BEL 3,500,000,000  0.01 35,009,863
FROAT9709V - DIV.PUB.FRA 11,000,000  1.00 11,142,878

Subtotal    46,152,741
      
Issued by non-resident entities   

- By international financial organisations   
EUROFIMA 97/07 124,699,474  0.01 1,247,629

Subtotal    1,247,629

By other non-resident entities   
   - Medium and long term maturity   

AUTOSTRADE 133  100,000.00 13,276,360
COFINOGA 99/06 12,500  1,000.00 12,495,979
GENERAL MOTORS CANADA 08V  8,000  1,000.00 8,105,437
METRO AG 09V 6,425  1,000.00 6,413,808
D. TELEKOM 02/07 - SFE  5,000  1,000.00 5,457,570
TEL. ITALIA 02/07 - SFE (Fev 07) 5,000  1,000.00 5,213,294
TEL. ITALIA 02/07 (Fev 07)  5,000  1,000.00 5,185,399
BRITISH TELECOM, PLC  5,000  1,000.00 5,184,874
VOLKSWAGEN  NV  5,000  1,000.00 5,028,998
KONINKLIJE KPN NV 5,000  1,000.00 5,027,995
DAIMLER CHRYSLER US07V  5,000  1,000.00 5,013,612
RENAULT CREDIT INTER  5,000  1,000.00 5,008,600
VAN LANSCHOT BANKIER 06V  500  10,000.00 5,007,733
FRIESLAND  5,000  1,000.00 5,006,252
EFG HELLAS 06V PLC 5,000  1,000.00 5,003,320
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Schedule of Securities and Financial Investments as at 31 December 2004
(Individual)

(Amounts in euros)

    Balance  Sheet
Name and Type of Securities Number Nominal Value Carrying Amount

IKBDEUT 06V  500  10,000.00 5,003,007
CAIXA CATALUNYA 03/08V  5,000  1,000.00 5,002,032
SNSBK 06V  5,000  1,000.00 5,000,336
NATIONAL GRID 05V  50  100,000.00 4,997,890
TEL. ITALIA 04/07 (Out 07)  50  100,000.00 4,996,751
UBN 03/08  5,000  1,000.00 4,996,363
GALP 1A10V  400,000,000  0.01 4,000,000
BANIF CAYMAN06V - SFE  4,000  1,000.00 3,996,336
GMAC 03/05V US (Fev 05)  3,000  1,000.00 3,004,944
L VUIT MOET HENNESY 03/10 3,000  1,000.00 3,000,000
C.EC. MONTEPIO CAYMAN 09V 3,000  1,000.00 2,998,616
D. TELEKOM 02/07  2,500  1,000.00 2,500,000
BANIF CAYMAN 09V  2,500  1,000.00 2,492,435
OLIVETTI FINANCE 08  2,000  1,000.00 2,114,788
L VUIT MOET HENNESY 03/10 - SFE  2,000  1,000.00 2,071,431
DAIMLERCHRYSLER 05V  20  100,000.00 2,006,627
GALP 1B10V 200,000,000  0.01 2,000,000
ALPHA CREDIT 0409V 2,000  1,000.00 1,995,388
BRIT AMER TOBACCO INTL FINANCE 0306v  1,650  1,000.00 1,655,930
VOLKSWAGEN FINAN 07V 1,500  1,000.00 1,499,349
FORD MOTOR CREDIT03/06  1,000  1,000.00 1,005,596
JSAINSBURY  3  49,879.79 148,886

Subtotal    162,915,936
      
Issued by resident entities   

- Shares    
J. MARTINS SGPS  13,135  5.00 332,540
VISTA ALEGRE ATLÂNTIS 67,020  1.00 260,460
MARCONI  AE 223  5.00 6,983
MARCONI AM 10  5.00 314

Subtotal    600,297
      
Treasury stock variable-income   

- Shares  4,658,000  1.00 5,999,453
Subtotal    5,999,453
      
TOTAL      365,506,611

C. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS   
Investments    

In other overseas companies 
- Shares    

EURONEXT N.V. 158,564  1.00 3,125,414
In overseas credit institutions   

- Shares   
CIFI, SA 4,000,000  0.73 2,936,642

Subtotal    6,062,056
      
Equity investments in sister companies   

In other companies in Portugal   
 - Shares   

CAIXA CAPITAL, SCR, PART 3,300,000  5.00 14,575,724
CAIXA DESENVOLVIMENTO, SGPS, SA 2,500,000  1.00 2,500,000

In other overseas companies   
- Shares   

CAIXA IRELAND LIMITED 10,000  1.27 12,700
CAIXA IRELAND LIMITED  2  4.99 10

Subtotal    17,088,434

Other financial investments   
- Supplementary capital payments   

CAIXA IRELAND LIMITED   39,083,397
CAIXA DESENVOLVIMENTO, SGPS, SA   27,284,245

  - Other   
TREM II    7,049,295

Subtotal    73,416,937
      
TOTAL     96,567,427
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Notes to the Individual Financial Statements
as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 (amounts in euros)

Introductory Note

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. ("bank") was formed by a public deed of 12 November
1987, having absorbed all assets and liabilities of the Portuguese branch of Manufacturers
Hanover Trust Company, in conformity with the terms of Ministerial Order no. 865-A/87 of
6 November, jointly issued by the Presidency of the Council of Ministers and Ministry of
Finance. The bank has made successive alterations to its corporate name, since the above
date, from Banco Chemical (Portugal), S.A., Banco Chemical Finance, S.A., Banco Totta &
Sottomayor de Investimento, S.A. and, lastly, based on a resolution passed by its general
meeting in July 2000, to Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

The bank's corporate object is to obtain third party funding, in the form of deposits or other
resources and, in conjunction with its own resources, extend loans or other assets, for which
it has been lawfully authorised in addition to providing other banking services. It has a
branch office in Lisbon, another in Porto, an offshore branch in Madeira and a branch office
in Spain. The Spanish branch office was constituted on 29 October 2004 and started its
operations on 1 January 2005.

As referred to in Note 55, the majority of the bank's share capital is owned by Caixa Geral
de Depósitos Group company Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

The following notes comply with the numbering used in the Banking System Accounting
Plan. Any missing notes are not applicable to the bank's consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2004.

3. Presentation Bases, Consolidation Principles and Summary of Principal

Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared from the bank's books and accounting records,
in conformity with the accounting principles set out in the Banking System Accounting Plan
and other Bank of Portugal dispositions, pursuant to the terms of its remit, as set out in
Decree Law 298/92 of 31 December.

The individual financial statements of the bank's registered office have been combined with
those of its Madeira offshore branch and represent the bank's overall activities. All balances
and trading between the registered office and its Madeira offshore branch have been
expunged from this process.

The bank's individual financial statements as at 31 December 2004 still require the approval
of its shareholders' meeting. The board of directors considers, however, that the said
financial statements will be approved without significant alterations.

The most significant accounting principles, used for the preparation of the financial
statements are set out below:

a) Accrual basis

Recognition of interest

Interest on borrowing and lending is recognised on an accrual basis and posted as and when
generated, notwithstanding the date of payment or receipt.

Other income and costs

The bank generally recognises income and costs on an accrual basis.
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b) Foreign currency and derivatives operations

Foreign currency operations are recognised in conformity with the principles of the
"multi-currency" system in which each operation is recognised on the basis of its respective
currencies of denomination. In conformity with this method, all foreign currency balances
are translated into euros on the basis of the reference rate published by the European
Central Bank. On the date of the agreement, foreign currency spot and forward purchases
are posted to the foreign exchange position. Entries are made to the spot or forward
foreign exchange position account, whose contents and revaluation criteria are described
below, whenever such operations lead to changes in the net balances of the different
currencies:

Spot foreign currency operations

The spot exchange position in each currency is given by the net balance of:

• Assets and liabilities in the said currency, including fixed assets;
• Spot operations pending settlement;
• Forward operations maturing in the following two business days.

The spot exchange position is revalued on the basis of the official daily foreign currency
exchange rates published by the European Central Bank. This gives rise to an entry to the
foreign exchange position (domestic currency) account heading as a charge to the respective
costs or income headings.

Forward rate operations

The forward foreign exchange position in each currency is given by the net balance of
forward operations pending settlement, excluding those maturing in the following two
business days. All contracts relating to such operations are revalued at the forward market
exchange rates for the periods to maturity of such operations, except for the dispositions of
the following paragraph. If no market rates are published, they are determined by the
differential existing between the interest rates of the respective foreign currencies for the
period to maturity of each operation.

The processing of forward foreign exchange operations used to hedge properly identified
assets or liabilities, is identical to that of currency swaps. 

The differences between euro equivalents, at the applied revaluation rates and euro equivalents
at the contract rates represent the cost or income generated by the revaluation of the
forward position and are recognised in a foreign exchange position revaluation account as
a charge to costs or income.

Currency swaps

The term segment of currency swaps, less premium or discount to be depreciated, is included
in the revaluation of the spot foreign currency position. Premiums or discounts resulting
from the difference between the spot and forward exchange rate are depreciated over the
life of the operation with due recognition of the respective cost or income.

Cross-currency swaps

Cross-currency swaps trading is revalued daily by updating all future cash flows, using the
market exchange rates for the periods to maturity of such flows. The result of the revaluation
is recognised in an accrual account, as a charge to costs or income.

Cross-currency swaps used to hedge suitably identified assets or liabilities, are not revalued.
The costs and income generated by the valuation, at the European Central Bank's reference
rate for the maturity segment and interest to be paid and received, are recognised in the
costs or income headings associated with the hedged items.
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"IRS" - interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps trading operations are revalued daily. The revaluation is based on the
current value of the future interest to be paid and received and calculated at market rates.
The resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in income headings, as a charge to an
accrual account.

Operations used for the coverage of suitably identified assets or liabilities are not revalued
and are allocated as follows:

• interest to be received and paid in respect of the current period is recognised in the
"income to be received from off-balance sheet operations" and "costs payable on
off-balance sheet operations" (Note 27);

• premiums received, which are recognised in the "deferred income - off-balance sheet
operations" heading (Note 27).

Options - over the counter market

Options are recognised in off-balance sheet accounts on the contract date, at their contract
value. Premiums on options sales and purchases are recognised in accrual accounts on the
date of receipt and payment, respectively. Options are revalued daily at their market value
and the volatility of the underlying assets. The result of the revaluation is recognised in
accrual accounts, as a charge to costs or income.

In the case of financial instruments incorporating options, notably deposits or bond issues,
the component part comprising the option is recognised separately in the accounts from the
primary instrument with which it is associated, and is recognised as in the case of other options.

Futures

Futures contracts are recognised in off-balance sheet account headings at their nominal
value and are revalued daily at their market value, with gains or losses being recognised as
income or costs, respectively.

c) Provisions for credit risks

Provision for overdue credit and interest

This provision is used to cover the risks on lending, involving overdue payments of principal
or interest. The provision percentages for overdue credits and interest are increased in
proportion to the period having elapsed since their respective maturity and whether or not
they are collateralised. 

Provision for doubtful loans

This provision caters for the risks of outstanding principal on loans to customers with unpaid
principal or interest or customers with other unpaid liabilities. 

Official Notice no. 3/95 (with the alterations brought in by Bank of Portugal Official Notice
no. 8/03 of 30 June) considers the following doubtful loans classifications: 

• outstanding payments on a single credit operation in which at least one of the
following conditions applies to the respective unpaid principal and interest:

(i) when exceeding 25% of the unpaid principal, plus accrued interest;
(ii) when in default for more than:
- six months in the case of operations with a maturity of less than five years;
- twelve months in the case of operations with a maturity of five or more and 
less than ten years;
- twenty four months in the case of operations with a maturity of ten years or more.
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These doubtful loans are provisioned in accordance with the provisioning percentage for
overdue credit.

• outstanding credits to a single customer, if  the unpaid principal and
interest in respect of all of the operations of the said customer, plus the
outstanding credit described in the preceding sub-paragraph, exceed 25%
of the total  credit  p lus overdue interest .  These doubtful  debts are
provisioned on the basis of 50% of the average percentage of provisions for
overdue credit.

The provision, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, was higher than the minimum limits set
by the Bank of Portugal, with the surplus not being accepted as a tax-deductible cost.

Provision for general credit risks

This provision is recognised in liabilities and covers the risk of non payment of loans and other
risks, such as the provision of guarantees and securities, deriving from the bank's activity. The
amount of the provision is calculated by the application of 1% on the value of unmatured
loans, including acceptances, guarantees and other similar instruments. A percentage of
1.5% is applied on consumer finance. Provisions increases ceased to be accepted as a tax
deductible cost from 01 January 2003.

Provision for other risks and liabilities

This provision covers specific contingencies resulting from the bank's activities and is not
accepted as a tax-deductible cost. 

d) Securities portfolio

Based on the classification criteria described in Note 25, the bank's securities portfolio is
assessed as follows:

i) Trading account securities

Fixed-income securities are recognised at cost and revalued daily at their market price,
including accrued interest. Resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in the income
statement.

Variable-rate securities are also valued at their market price or, if not available, their cost or
presumed market price, whichever the lesser. The revaluation differences on shares trading
on the PSI 20 index, or when having suitable liquidity when traded on other stock markets,
is recognised directly in income headings. The bank's trading portfolio, as at 31 December
2003, included the shares of a Portuguese company not listed on the PSI20. As the respective
shares, however, were listed from 02 January 2004, the bank posted the potential capital
gains generated by their appreciation to the net income heading. 

ii) Investment account securities

Fixed-income securities are recognised at cost. The positive or negative difference, between
the cost and nominal value of such securities, comprising the premium or discount on
purchase, is recognised, in accounting terms, as cost or income between the date of
acquisition and date of maturity. 

Discounted securities issues are recognised at their nominal value. The difference between
this value and cost is recognised, in accounting terms, as income accruing in the period
between their date of acquisition and maturity. Advances of interest thereon are recognised
in the "deferred income " account heading in liabilities.

Shares and other variable-income securities are recognised at cost.
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Potential capital losses deriving from differences between the book value of the securities
and their corresponding list price, are fully provisioned as a charge to the income
statement.

iii) Treasury stock

The bank's treasury stock is recognised at cost, in assets, in conformity with Bank of Portugal rules.

e) Investments

This account heading includes permanent investments of less than 50% of companies' share
capital and is recognised at cost. 

The Bank of Portugal, in 2002, in the form of Official Notice no. 4/2002 of 25 June,
introduced new requirements for the methodology used to calculate and set up provisions
for financial investments, ruling that potential capital losses should be calculated as follows:

• for investments in listed companies in an organised market, the difference between
the book entry and respective market value, determined on the basis of the average
daily prices over the last full six months;

• for investments in unlisted companies, the presumed value of the trading upon
which the potential capital losses were determined comprises the product of the
corresponding part of the shareholders' equity of the associated company by a
factor of 1.5.

Under the terms of the above referred to Official Notice, provisions should be set up in cases
in which the potential capital loss on an investment exceeds 15% of its book value and the
corresponding provision should cover at least 40% of the said excess.

For investments already existing as at 31 December 2001, Official Notice no. 4/2002, with
the alterations brought in under Official Notice no. 4/2004 of 27 July, establishes a transitory
regime under which the capital losses provisions for the said investments as at the date of the
entry into force of the Official Notice may be deferred over periods of ten years (for financial
investments in companies subject to the supervision of the Bank of Portugal or the
Portuguese Insurance Institute) or five years (for other financial investments), with the possibility
of the provisions set up in 2002, 2003 and 2004, under this regime, being charged to reserves.

Official Notice no. 4/2002 also provides for the application of the same criteria used for the
evaluation of provisions requirements for direct investments to indirect investments in
individual accounts.

Potential capital losses on investments already provisioned by the bank's subsidiaries have
not been reflected in its individual accounts.

f) Tangible assets

Tangible assets are recognised at cost. Depreciation is calculated by the straight line method,
in conformity with the maximum tax-deductible costs, which are the same as for the assets'
estimated useful life, as follows:
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Years of useful life

Property 50
Equipment:

Furniture and materials 4 - 10
Transport material 4
IT Equipment 4
Interior installations 3 - 10
Security equipment 4 - 10
Machinery and tools 5 - 10
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The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. 40%
of the increased depreciation on the revaluation is disallowed as a tax-deductible cost.

Intangible assets essentially comprise incorporation and data processing systems expenditure
and are fully written off in three years.

g) Tax

The bank pays tax under the regime set out in the Portuguese Tax Code on the Income of
Collective Persons (IRC). The Madeira Offshore Branch, however, is exempt from IRC up until
31 December 2011 under article 33 of the Statute of Fiscal Benefits.

Under current legislation, tax losses may be carried forward for a period of six years and may
be deducted from the taxable profit generated during the said period. 

In accordance with standard accounting practices for the banking sector in Portugal, the
bank has not recorded deferred tax assets deriving from recordable fiscal losses, provisions
not accepted for fiscal purposes and negative revaluations of derivatives.

In 2004 and 2003, following the publication of Law no. 3-B/2000 of 04 April, expense
account items and light passenger vehicle related costs were autonomously taxed at a
separate IRC rate of 6%.

h) Securities and other items held under custody

Securities and other items held under custody, notably customers' securities, are recognised
in the off-balance sheet account headings, at their nominal value.

i) Deposit guarantee fund

The Deposit Guarantee Fund was created in November 1994, with the objective of
guaranteeing deposits placed with credit institutions, in conformity with the limits
fixed in the General Credit Institutions Regime. The initial contribution to the fund,
defined in a Ministerial Order issued by the Ministry of Finance and comprising the
delivery of certificates of deposit, was depreciated monthly over a period of
60 months. Regular annual contributions to the fund are also al lowed as a
tax-deductible cost for the year in question, with the exception of the part guaranteed
by an irrevocable commitment to pay up the respective contributions when requested
by the Fund and which is recognised in off-balance sheet accounts whose accumulated
balance as at 31 December 2004 was € 149,620 as against € 140,870 on 31
December 2003. 

6. Companies in which the Bank has an Equity Investment of 20% or More

The bank has a direct or indirect equity investment in companies in which it has a control-
ling interest.

The following is a summary of the financial data extracted from the individual accounts of
such companies, for the last financial year:
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    Equity
                 Investment (%)     Equity

    Profit/ Shareholders’ Accounting Acquisition
Entity    Direct  Effective  Date  Assets  (Loss)  Equity Method  Cost Difference 

Caixa Ireland Limited  100.00% 100.00% 30-11-2004 39,141,564 (25,931) 39,106,175 39,106,175 39,096,107 10,068 

Caixa Investments Ireland - 100.00% 30-11-2004 39,969,412 669,353 39,858,428 - - -

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. 100.00% 100.00% 31-12-2004 104,221,220 772,652 45,620,128 45,620,128 29,784,245 15,835,883

Caixa Capital, S.A.   100.00% 100.00% 31-12-2004 21,323,689 1,553,983 20,287,686 20,287,686 14,575,724 5,711,962



The shareholders' equity of Caixa Ireland Limited and Caixa Desenvolvimento includes
supplementary contributions of € 39,083,397 and € 27,284,245 respectively, recognised in
the bank's financial statements under "other assets" (Note 31).

Caixa Ireland Limited, acquired by the bank in 1996, is a company with registered office in
the Republic of Ireland. Its assets essentially comprise the equity investment in Caixa
Investments Ireland. Caixa Investments Ireland has its registered office in the Republic of
Ireland with the corporate object of trading in securities. The shareholders' equity of these
companies reflects the appropriation of net income and respective dividends paid to the
bank in 2004, for the amount of € 875,000 as against € 1,000,000 in 2003.

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A., (Caixa Desenvolvimento) formed in 1998, has its
registered office in Portugal. Its corporate object is to manage equity investments in other
companies, as an indirect form of performing economic activities. 

Caixa Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. (Caixa Capital) has its registered office in
Lisbon and was formed on 31 December 1990 under Decree Law 17/86 of 05 February. The
company's corporate object is to support and promote investment and technological
innovation by making temporary equity investments in projects or companies. It is also
authorised to provide assistance in the financial, technical, administrative and commercial
management of its subsidiary companies. 

7. Bonds and Other Fixed-Income Securities Maturing in the Following Year

The book value of fixed-income securities maturing in the following year, as at 31 December
2004 and 2003 totalled € 110,880,966 and € 126,775,788 respectively.

9. Loans and Advances to Sister Companies

Information on the bank's loans and advances to sister companies is set out in Note 20.

10. Investments in Securities

This account heading comprises the following:

The bank, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, held government bonds (pledged) with a
nominal value of € 45,000,000 and € 50,484,931 respectively (Note 23).
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        2004      2003

Trading Investment Total Trading Investment  Total

Bonds and other fixed-income securities:
Issued by public entities:

Government bonds 205,716 47,158,817 47,364,533 1 47,233,591  47,233,592
Securities provisions:

Capital losses (Note 24)  -  (52,678)  (52,678)  - (9,037)  (9,037)
    205,716 47,106,139 47,311,855 1  47,224,554 47,224,555

Issued by other entities:
Bonds and other securities:

Issued by resident entities 2,504,644 147,491,088 149,995,732 23,703 105,947,967 105,971,670
Issued by non-resident entities  39,189,023 164,163,565 203,352,588 43,093,876 85,244,551 128,338,427

41,693,667 311,654,653 353,348,320 43,117,579 191,192,518 234,310,097
Overdue investments and interest  - 93,391 93,391 - 93,391 93,391

    41,693,667 311,748,044 353,441,711 43,117,579 191,285,909 234,403,488
Securities provisions:

Capital losses (Note 24) - (173,130) (173,130) - (447,114) (447,114)
Matured securities (Note 24) - (93,391) (93,391) - (93,391) (93,391)

- (266,521) (266,521) - (540,505) (540,505)
    41,693,667 311,481,523 353,175,190 43,117,579 190,745,404 233,862,983
Shares and other variable income securities:

Shares   1,011,081 600,297 1,611,378 1,738,496 584,622 2,323,118
Securities provisions:

Capital losses (Note 24)  - (426,048) (426,048) - (421,789) (421,789)
    1,011,081 174,249 1,185,330 1,738,496 162,833 1,901,329



The reconciliation between the book and respective market value of the investment securities
portfolio is given in Note 28. The securities portfolio schedule is set out in Annex I.

11. Tangible and Intangible Assets

Entries to the bank's tangible fixed assets account headings for 2004 and 2003 are set out
below:
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      2004    

Balance as at 31.12.03      

Gross  Accrued   Depreciation Write-offs Net amount
amount depreciation Acquisitions Transfers for year (net) as at 31.12.04

Intangible assets
Incorporation expenses  1,215,902 (1,215,369)  - - (533) - -
Data processing systems  3,946,534 (3,779,495) 278,742 168,792 (289,106) - 325,467
Fixed assets in progress  136,181 - 124,887 (168,792) - (36,263) 56,013
   5,298,617 (4,994,864) 403,629 - (289,639) (36,263) 381,480
Tangible assets
Property:

For own use  13,093,384 (2,333,083) - - (168,766) - 10,591,535
Other properties 77,843 (77,843) - -  - -

Equipment:
Furniture and material  997,838 (920,545) 30,648 - (34,847) - 73,094
Transport material  391,645 (286,629) 70,552 - (64,791) (31,002) 79,775
IT equipment  1,333,374 (1,218,885) 70,505 - (75,806) - 109,188
Interior installations  1,992,609 (1,774,625) 40,947 - (67,938) - 190,993
Security equipment  240,087 (240,087) - - - - -
Machinery and tools 445,043 (407,398) 56,864 - (29,945) - 64,564

Works of art 48,847 - - - - - 48,847
Property leases:

Transport material  1,086,397 (467,154) 626,682 -  (364,193) (75,959) 805,773
   19,707,067 (7,726,249) 896,198 - (806,286) (106,961) 11,963,769

   25,005,684 (12,721,113) 1,299,827 - (1,095,925) (143,224) 12,345,249
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      2003    

Balance as at 31.12.02      

Gross  Accrued   Depreciation Write-offs Net amount
amount depreciation Acquisitions Transfers for year (net) as at 31.12.03

Intangible assets
Incorporation expenses  1,415,929 (1,364,964) - - (50,432) - 533
Data processing systems  4,320,413 (4,026,989) 62,498 18,760 (207,643) - 167,039
Fixed assets in progress  22,407 - 132,534 (18,760) - - 136,181

5,758,749 (5,391,953) 195,032 - (258,075) - 303,753
Tangible assets
Property:

For own use  13,273,575 (2,196,751) - - (168,764) (147,759) 10,760,301
Other properties  134,004 (119,687) - - (14,317) - -

Equipment:
Furniture and material  1,051,151 (957,206) 15,830 - (32,482) - 77,293
Transport material 487,255 (301,716) - 5,399 (81,447) (4,475) 105,016
IT equipment 1,516,843 (1,378,509) 81,222 - (105,067) - 114,489
Interior installations 2,192,386 (1,909,532) - - (64,870) - 217,984
Security equipment  240,336 (240,336) - - -  - -
Machinery and tools 456,058 (398,451) 2,693 - (22,655) - 37,645

Works of art  48,847 - - - - - 48,847
Property leases:      -  -

Transport material  734,152 (369,581) 596,504 (5,399) (278,436) (57,997) 619,243
20,134,607 (7,871,769) 696,249 - (768,038) (210,231) 11,980,818

   25,893,356 (13,263,722) 891,281 - (1,026,113) (210,231) 12,284,571



14. Other Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions and Loans and

Advances to Customers

Other Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

The following is a breakdown of the structure of this account heading by periods to maturity,
as at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

Information on the average annual interest rates on "other loans and advances to credit
institutions", as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out below:

Loans and Advances to Customers

This account heading comprises the following:
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   2004 2003

Loans and advances to credit institutions in Portugal
Term deposits

- Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. 10,172,014 10,772,033
- Other - 15,305,115

10,172,014 26,077,148

Other - 9,996,883
Certificates of deposit with Bank of Portugal - 424,292

   10,172,014 36,498,323

   2004 2003

Up to three months 10,172,014 10,772,033
Three months to one year - 15,729,407
Current accounts and sight deposit overdrafts 9,996,883
   10,172,014 36,498,323

   2004 2003

Term deposits 3.64% 2.38%
Other investments - 2.92%
Certificates of deposit with Bank of Portugal - 2.05%

   2004 2003

Domestic loans 
Current account 19,354,701 15,311,867
Sight deposit overdrafts 15,046,171 19,576,319 
Medium and long term loans 306,533,196 275,148,936 
Other loans and advances to residents 60,813,027 14,508,800 

Foreign loans 
Medium and long term loans 65,463,496 2,632,153

   467,210,591 327,178,075

Overdue loans and interest 8,174,658 8,441,638
   475,385,249 335,619,713

Provisions
For overdue loans (Note 24) (8,174,658) (8,343,415)
For doubtful loans (Note 24) (1,805,919) (1,400,000)

   (9,980,577) (9,743,415)

465,404,672 325,876,298
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The bank set up a provision for general credit risks totalling € 4,861,142 and € 3,514,963
as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, respectively (Note 24).

As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, these account headings included overdue loans of
€ 3,551,441, originated in Caixa Valores and deriving from securities trading operations in
1992 by a group of customers. The loan has been fully provisioned.

Caixa Valores took legal action against the group of customers in September 1994, accusing
them of responsibility for realising the referred to operations and claiming an amount of
€ 6,003,180 plus interest accruing since June 1993. As the action is still in progress, the
bank has not recorded any asset related with this situation.

The sector allocation of loans and advances to customers, as at 31 December 2004 and
2003, is set out below:

Loans to non-financial public companies, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, totalled
€ 10,392,853 and € 11,301,201 respectively.

This account heading, by period to maturity, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprised:
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2004 2003

Sector of activity  Amount  %  Amount %

Other, principally corporate activities and services  179,195,932 37.8 85,310,296 25.4
Land transport by oil or gas pipeline  98,166,342 20.7 62,486,079 18.6
Electricity gas and steam generation and distribution  56,695,429 11.9 37,489,405 11.2
Machinery and equipment leasing  50,210,979 10.6 51,261,126 15.3
Real estate activities  15,200,035 3.2 15,788,549 4.7
Post and Telecommunications  12,029,630 2.5 - -
Diverse associative activities  10,158,426 2.1 11,258,963 3.4
Manufacture of paper pulp, card and articles thereof  10,000,000 2.1 10,000,000 3.0
Water impounding, processing and distribution  8,700,107 1.8 13,389,191 4.0
Publishing, printing and copying of microfiches  7,164,465 1.5 7,771,015 2.3
Chemicals manufacture  2,360,201 0.5 2,887,105 0.9
Food and beverages industries  1,597,510 0.3 4,320,001 1.3
Machinery and equipment manufacture  1,501,527 0.3 1,619,342 0.5
Hotels and restaurants 1,201,781 0.3 155,723 -
Water transport 1,002,297 0.2 1,024,465 0.3
Other non-metallic mineral products manufacture  475,046 0.1 665,064 0.2
Basic metallurgical industries  300,000 0.1 900,000 0.3
Financial intermediation and auxiliary activities  208,368 - 3,950,090 1.0
Textiles manufacture  4,463 - 2,730,443 0.8
Other mining industries  - - 4,353,709 1.3
Wholesale activities  - - 3,408,188 1.0
Wood and cork industry and products thereof excluding furniture and basketwork  - - 661,778 0.2
Other  19,212,711 4.0 14,189,181 4.1

475,385,249 100 335,619,713 100
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   2004 2003

Up to three months 754,904 63,477
Three months to one year 93,698,202 10,984,477
One to five years 79,073,949 79,313,925
More than five years 259,282,660 201,928,009
Current account and current account overdrafts 34,400,876 34,888,187
   467,210,591 327,178,075

Overdue Loans 8,174,658 8,441,638

   475,385,249 335,619,713



16. Incorporation Expenses

The "incorporation expenses" account heading, as at 31 December 2003, shows a net balance
of € 532 essentially related with expenses incurred on changes to the bank's name and articles
of association (Note 11). The said expenses, as at 31 December 2004, had been fully amortised.

18. Amounts Owed to Credit Institutions and Customers

Amounts owed to Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

The structure of the "amounts owed to credit institutions at term or notice" account
heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, by periods to maturity, comprises:

Interest at the following average annual rates was paid on the "amounts owed to credit
institutions at term or notice" as at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

Amounts Owed to Customers

This account heading comprises the following:
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2004 2003

Payable on demand:
Sight deposits 
Credit institutions in Portugal 166,614 156,440
Credit institutions abroad 1,457 1,457

   168,071 157,897
Term or notice:

Credit institutions in Portugal – Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.
Interbank Money Market 509,500,000 420,000,000
Term deposits 189,450,000 84,310,902
Very short term deposits 2,716,393 -

Other resources 
Credit institutions in Portugal – Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. - 24,178

   701,666,393 504,335,080

2004 2003

Up to three months 518,016,393 423,885,080

Three months to one year 183,650,000 80,450,000 

   701,666,393 504,335,080

2004 2003

Interbank Money Market 2.23% 2.24%

Term deposits 2.23% 2.38%

Very short term deposits 2.55% -

2004 2003

Other

Payable on demand 56,091,354 47,551,182
 Term

Term deposits 31,089,885 17,643,365

Futures and options 397,360 564,039 

   31,487,245 18,207,404



The structure of the "amounts owed to customers at term" account heading as at 31
December 2004 and 2003 by period to maturity, comprises:

19. Issue of Bonds Maturing in Following Year

The nominal value of the bank's issues of bonds, maturing in the following year, was
€ 36,253,378 as at 31 December 2003 (Note 54).

20. Balances with Group Companies

The bank's financial statements include the following balances with sister companies,
expunged from the consolidation process as at 31 December 2004 and 2003:
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2004 2003

Up to three months 21,901,309 7,473,242

More than five years 9,188,576 10,170,123

Futures and options 397,360 564,039 

   31,487,245 18,207,404

   2004 2003

Assets:
Performing loans:

Caixa Desenvolvimento 57,000,000 11,800,000
Other assets:

Caixa Capital 20,164 19,186
Caixa Investments Ireland - 45,577

Supplementary capital payments:
Caixa Ireland Limited 39,083,397 39,083,397
Caixa Desenvolvimento 27,284,245 27,284,245

Prepayment and accrued income accounts:
Caixa Desenvolvimento 42,009 5,350

Liabilities:
Amounts owed to customers – payable on demand:

Caixa Desenvolvimento 927,306 6,444
Caixa Investments Ireland 903,000 469
Caixa Capital 85 -
Caixa Ireland Limited - 20,000

Amounts owed to customers - term:
Caixa Desenvolvimento 4,630,000 2,060,000
Caixa Capital 1,394,000 -
Caixa Investments Ireland 308,996 555,831
Caixa Ireland Limited 46,716 21,594

Accruals and deferred income accounts:
Caixa Desenvolvimento 2,900 114
Caixa Investments Ireland 268 506
Caixa Capital 79 -
Caixa Ireland Limited 40 20



23. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

The following is a summary of "contingent liabilities" and "commitments to third parties", as
at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

The "assets-backed guarantee" account heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 comprises
the nominal value of the government bonds pledged as follows (Note 10):

24. Provisions

The bank's provisions entries for 2004 and 2003 are set out below:
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   2004    2003

Contingent liabilities:

Guarantees and sureties 172,586,607 101,537,029

Asset-backed guarantees 45,000,000 50,484,931

   217,586,607 152,021,960
Commitments to third parties:

Revocable lines of credit 198,456,723 85,799,305

Securities subscriptions 75,874,336 92,042,251

Irrevocable lines of credit 1,612,955 -

Other irrevocable commitments 3,670,802 -

Other 2,202,057 2,193,306

   281,816,873 180,034,862

Guarantees Received 144,752,897 94,752,897

Liabilities for the provision of services:

Deposit and custody of securities 3,104,567,136 1,306,435,286

2004 2003

“SPGT” (Major Transactions Processing System) 42,000,000 42,000,000

Caixa Geral de Depósitos – Euronext 2,000,000 3,500,000

Investors’ Indemnity System (SII) 1,000,000 4,494,548

Euronext Lisboa – futures - 490,383

   45,000,000 50,484,931

      2004

   Balance as  Cancellations  Exchange Rate  Balance as
at 31.12.03 Increases and Recoveries Use Differences Transfers at 31.12.04

Provision for loans and advances

to customers (Note 14):

Overdue loans  8,343,415 351,609 (359,050) (43,500) (117,816) - 8,174,658

Doubtful loans 1,400,000  1,047,221  (641,302) - - - 1,805,919

Provision for investment

securities (Note 10):

Capital losses 877,940 1,217,892 (1,443,976) - - - 651,856

Matured securities 93,391  - - - - -  93,391

Provision for financial investments

investments:

Investments (Note 50)  619,617  - (619,617) - - -  -

Other financial

investments (Note 31)  1,579,184 2,688,702 -  - - -  4,267,886

Provision for general

credit risks (Note 14)  3,514,963 1,929,045 (582,866) -  -  - 4,861,142

For other risks and liabilities  3,076,006 967,660 (1,821,920) (3,811)  - -  2,217,935

   19,504,516  8,202,129 (5,468,731)  (47,311) (117,816) - 22,072,787
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The provision for risks and liabilities, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 was set up to cover
fiscal contingencies, judicial actions in progress and reductions in the value of assets
recognised in "other financial investments". 

An amount of € 490,503 of the provision for risks and liabilities was used in 2003, in respect
of a balance recognised in the "accruals and deferred income - tax recovery" heading.

Provisions adjustments for financial investments in 2003 include € 4,872,835 of provisions
replenishments on Caixa Desenvolvimento's alienation of its investments in Silger, SGPS, S.A.
and Silvageste, SGPS, S.A. to Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Grupo
CGD - Caixa Capital at their respective cost price.

25. Differences between Trading Account, Investment and Financial

Investment Securities

The "trading account securities" account heading includes securities for re-sale up to a
period of no more than six months. In addition, as at 31 December 2003, this heading
included securities which had been held for more than six months as at the said date, but
which were not transferred to the "investment securities" category owing to the fact that
the bank had hedged the associated interest rate by futures contracts whose revaluation
is recognised as a charge to net income. 

The "investment securities" heading includes securities held in the bank's own portfolio,
usually for more than six months. 

The "investments" account heading includes equity investments in companies in which the
interest in retaining the investment is linked with the bank's or its subsidiaries' activity and
which are simultaneously long term investments.
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      2003

   Balance as  Cancellations  Exchange Rate Other  Balance as 
at 31.12.02 Increases and Recoveries Use Differences (Note 31) Transfers at 31.12.03

Provision for loans and

advances to customers (Note 14):

Overdue loans  7,698,083 787,222  (18,812) - (330,910) -  207,832  8,343,415

Bad and doubtful debts 207,832 1,400,000 - - - -  (207,832)  1,400,000

Provision for investment

securities (Note 10):

Capital losses  5,089,043  1,810,636 (6,021,739) - - -  -  877,940

Matured securities  93,391 -  - -  -  -  - 93,391

Provision for financial

investments

Investments (Note 50)  5,028,666  463,786 (4,872,835) - - - - 619,617

Other financial

investments (Note 31) - 404,644  - - -  1,174,540 -  1,579,184

Provision for general credit

risks (Note 14) 3,512,153 503,530 (500,720) -  - - - 3,514,963

For other risks and liabilities  2,796,995 769,514 - (490,503) - - - 3,076,006

   24,426,163 6,139,332  (11,414,106) (490,503) (330,910) 1,174,540 - 19,504,516



27. Prepayments and Accrued Income Accounts

The following is a breakdown of the prepayments and accrued income accounts (assets), as
at 31 December 2004 and 2003:

The "stock exchange operations pending settlement" account heading, as at 31 December
2004 and 2003, comprises the value of the operations for the sale of securities for the year
and settled in the first days of the following year.

Accruals and deferred income (liabilities), as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

The "stock exchange operations pending settlement" account heading comprises the value
of the operations for the purchase of securities in the last few days of 2004 and 2003 and
settled in the first few days of the following year.
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   2004    2003

Deferred income

Investments in credit institutions 100,959 110,399

Lending 2,140,313 2,077,510

Investment securities 2,600,763 925,419

Off-balance sheet transactions (Notes 3.b) and 33) 390,642 1,349,527

Deferred expenses 103,430 128,882

Stock exchange operations pending settlement 61,851,407 3,377,441

OTC operations pending settlement  4,933,440 -

Tax reimbursements 657,900 657,900

Premiums on options purchases - 258,278

Revaluation of options - 896,470

Depreciation of premium/discount on swap operations  - 502

Other  159,037 344,576

   

   72,937,891 10,126,904

   2004    2003

Deferred costs 

Credit institutions 1,827,249 471,798

Customer deposits 1,196,676 865,346

Off-balance sheet transactions (Notes 3.b) and 33) 1,656,121 385,298

Provision for holiday and holiday subsidies 1,227,400 1,104,700

Provision for additional remuneration 1,500,000 1,250,000

Commissions payable 1,094,309 400,000

Pension fund (Note 49) 258,587 241,128

Other 531,162 333,052

Deferred income 

Investment securities 176,904 29,237

Off-balance sheet transactions (Notes 3.b) and 33) 1,196,774 -

Other 7,667 15,333

Stock exchange operations pending settlement 76,832,025 3,356,001

OTC operations pending settlement  4,925,755 -

Revaluation of options (Note 33) 846,036 1,693,680

Revaluation of cross-currency 

and interest rate swaps (Note 33)  263,865 472,485

Foreign exchange operations - 593,142

Revaluation of forward rates agreements - (11,171)

Other  567,750 199,795

   

   94,108,280 11,399,824



28. Outstanding Results from Investments

The difference between the book and nominal value of the investment securities acquired
for more or less than their redemption value, as at 31 December 2004, totalled € 1,628,108
and € 138,988 respectively as against € 133,532 and € 2,439,276 respectively as at 31
December 2003. The difference between investment securities acquired for less than their
redemption value, as at 31 December 2003 includes € 2,267,498 of zero coupon bonds.

The differences between the book and market value of the investment securities portfolio
(excluding matured securities), as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprise:

The book value of trading account securities as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 was
€ 615,829 and € 1,930,057 higher than their acquisition costs respectively.

31. Other Assets and Liabilities

The "other assets" account heading, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprises:
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2004

Listed Unlisted Total

Government bonds 47,158,817 - 47,158,817

Bonds – other issuers 265,686,113 45,968,540 311,654,653

Shares and other 

variable-income securities 592,999 7,298 600,297

Provision for capital losses (Note 24) (647,403) (4,453) (651,856)

Book value 312,790,526 45,971,385 358,761,911
Potential capital gains 1,862,806 - 1,862,806

Market value 314,653,332 45,971,385 360,624,717

2003

Listed Unlisted Total

Government bonds 47,233,591 - 47,233,591

Bonds – other issuers 131,977,235 59,215,283 191,192,518

Shares and other

variable-income securities 577,325  7,297 584,622

Provision for capital losses (Note 24) (874,532) (3,408) (877,940)

Book value 178,913,619 59,219,172 238,132,791
Potential capital gains 533,895 - 533,895

Market value 179,447,514 59,219,172 238,666,686

   2004    2003

Futures margin account:

Portugal  198,680 485,479

abroad 526,464 638,261

Miscellaneous debtors 964,482 2,822,879

Other financial investments: 73,416,937 73,416,937

IRC recovery:

2003 (Note 41) 545,947 -

2002 90,456 90,456

Other  179,941 317,310

   75,922,907 77,771,322
Provision for other financial investments

Trem II – Aluguer de Material Circulante, ACE (Note 24) (4,267,886) (1,579,184)

   71,655,021 76,192,138



The balance on the "other financial investments" account heading as at 31 December 2004
and 2003, is set out below:

In 2003, based on the contents of the Bank of Portugal's Circular Letter no. 31/2003/DSB of
17 April, the bank altered the form of accounting of payments made on account of its
investment in Agrupamento Complementar de Empresas TREM II - Aluguer de Material
Circulante, ACE (TREM II), pursuant to which the bank cancelled the balance of € 5,874,755
recognised in its "deferred costs" heading with the investment being recognised for the
amount of € 7,049,295 and set up a provision of € 1,174,540 (Note 24) for other financial
investments.

The "other liabilities" account heading as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out below:

The balance on the "creditors - securities operations" account heading as at 31 December 2004
and 2003, refers to the current accounts of brokerage operations customers.

33. Unmatured Forward Operations, as at Date of Balance Sheet 

Off-balance sheet account heading balances related with unmatured forward operations, as
at 31 December 2004 and 2003, comprised:
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Supplementary capital payments

Caixa Ireland Limited (Note 6) 39,083,397

Caixa Desenvolvimento (Note 6) 27,284,245

Other

TREM II – Aluguer de Material Circulante, ACE 7,049,295 

   73,416,937

   2004    2003

Creditors:
Suppliers 1,288,518 843,425
Creditors – securities operations 3,302,758 2,346,198
Miscellaneous creditors 12,694 220,639

Other liabilities 
IRC payable (Note 41) 2,816,090 3,014,166
Deduction of tax at source 2,185,889 805,303
VAT payable   248,430 401,114
Social security contributions 162,838 147,740
Deferred interest and dividends 99,439 99,629
Charges on securities operations 96 216

   10,116,752 7,878,430

   2004    2003

Foreign exchange operations
Trading

- Purchase - 2,950,805
- Sale - 3,602,230

Interest rate swaps (IRS) and cross 
currency swaps (CCIRS)  2,805,649,246 3,248,897,885
Futures (Trading)

Interest rates 19,843,321 33,790,000
Options - OTC 

Market value 
Purchased - 95,924,873
Sold - 74,976,609

Forward rate agreements (FRA) - 10,000,000
Interest rate guarantee contracts  
. Lending - Caps 165,746,380 98,484,217

Borrowing - Caps 165,746,380 98,484,217
Lending - Floors 150,201,318 66,336,291
Borrowing - Floors 150,201,318 66,336,291
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The bank performs derivative operations as a standard activity to provide for its customers'
requirements and reduce its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations.

The above referred to values comprise the reference value of the operations, reflecting the
bank's degree of involvement in each product, but do not translate underlying credit and
market risks. The bank controls the risks associated with derivatives trading through its
approval procedures for operations, definition of exposure limits by product and customer
and the daily monitoring of results.

The operations were valued in conformity with the criteria set out in Note 3. b), as at 31
December 2004 and 2003. Information on these account headings as at 31 December
2004, is set out below: 

The following is the operations' net book value:

Annual Report 2004

166 Financial Statements
Notes to the Individual Financial Statements

   Notional    Net Book Value    Market Value

Types of contracts Hedging  Trading  Total  Hedging  Trading  Total  Hedging Trading Total

On interest rates

OTC

On interest rates (IRS and CCIRS)

Purchases 47,699,716 1,355,124,907 1,402,824,623  (806,132) 7,108,200 6,302,068 (5,433,954)  7,108,200 1,674,246

Sales  47,699,716 1,355,124,907 1,402,824,623 (1,656,121)  (8,240,990) (9,897,111) - (8,240,990)  (8,240,990)

95,399,432 2,710,249,814 2,805,649,246 (2,462,253) (1,132,790) (3,595,043) (5,433,954)  (1,132,790)  (6,566,744)

Caps -  331,492,760 331,492,760 - 22,889 22,889 -  22,889 22,889

Floors -  300,402,636 300,402,636 - - - -  -  -

-  631,895,396 631,895,396 - 22,889 22,889 -  22,889  22,889

Stockmarket trading

Futures

Long positions  - 18,968,321 18,968,321 - - - - - -

Short positions - 875,000 875,000 - - - - - -

- 19,843,321 19,843,321 - - - - - -

95,399,432 3,361,988,531 3,457,387,963 (2,462,253) (1,109,901) (3,572,154) (5,433,954) (1,109,901)  (6,543,855)

   Hedging  Trading

Prepayments and accrued income – assets (Note 27)
Receivables – off-balance sheet operations 390,642 -

Accruals and deferred income – liabilities (Note 27)
Deferred costs – off-balance sheet operations (1,656,121) -
Deferred income – off-balance
sheet operations (1,196,774) -
Revaluation of options - (846,036)
Revaluation of interest rate swaps - (263,865)

   (2,462,253) (1,109,901)



The distribution of derivatives operations by period to maturity as at 31 December 2004 is
set out below:

The distribution of derivatives operations, by counterpart type, as at 31 December 2004, is
set out below:

34. Average Number of Workers

The average number of bank workers in 2004 and 2003, excluding the board of directors and
inspection bodies was 148 and 140, respectively and distributed as follows:

35. Board of Directors and Inspection

Remuneration paid to members of the board of directors and inspection bodies in 2004 and
2003 totalled € 836,403 and € 949,674 respectively.
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     > 3 months > 6 months > 1 Year
Types of contracts  <= 3 months <= 6 months <= 1 Year <= 5 Years > 5 Years Total

On interest rates

OTC

On interest rates (IRS and CCIRS )

Purchases 95,717,958 739,000,000 7,500,000 432,630,817 127,975,848 1,402,824,623

Sales  95,717,958 739,000,000 7,500,000 432,630,817  127,975,848  1,402,824,623

Caps  - - - 300,402,636  31,090,124 331,492,760

Floors  - - - 300,402,636  - 300,402,636

191,435,916 1,478,000,000 15,000,000  1,466,066,906 287,041,820  3,437,544,642

Stockmarket trading

Futures

Long positions 18,968,321 - - - - 18,968,321

Short positions 875,000 - - - - 875,000

19,843,321 - - - -  19,843,321

    211,279,237 1,478,000,000 15,000,000 1,466,066,906 287,041,820  3,457,387,963

   Notional Value  %

Contracts on interest rates

OTC with financial institutions

Purchases 976,130,879 28.23%

Sales 960,585,817 27.78%

OTC with customers

Purchases 742,641,442 21.48%

Sales 758,186,504 21.93%

Stock Exchange

Purchases 18,968,321 0.55%

Sales 875,000 0.03%

   3,457,387,963 100.00%

   2004 2003

Management 40 35

Technical 67 63

Administrative 41 42

   148 140



37. Assets and Liabilities Expressed in Foreign Currency 

The book value of assets and liabilities, expressed in foreign currency, as at 31 December
2004, totalled € 4,628,759 and € 4,282,408 respectively.

The book value of assets and liabilities, expressed in foreign currency, as at 31 December
2003, totalled € 9,317,571 and € 9,018,425 respectively.

38. Income by Business Type and Geographical Markets

The distribution of operating income by business areas in 2004, is set out below:

Interest and similar costs were split up over the various business areas on the basis of the
average value of the assets allocated to these segments.

All of the bank's operations are performed in Portugal.

39. Other Operating Income and Costs and Extraordinary Gains and Losses

The "other operating income" and "other operating costs" account headings, in 2004 and
2003 comprised the following:
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   Corporate Trading  Retail
   finance and sales Brokerage banking Other     Total   

Interest and similar income   5,836,949 11,968,512 227,146 7,485,423 - 25,518,030
Interest and similar costs   (3,860,071) (7,861,919) (149,510) (4,905,791) - (16,777,291)
   I. 1,976,878 4,106,593 77,636 2,579,632 - 8,740,739

Commissions (income)  21,920,684 234,028 6,830,356 7,287,101 - 36,272,169
Commissions (cost)  (1,469,704) (160,004) (1,259,175) - - (2,888,883)
   II.  20,450,980 74,024 5,571,181 7,287,101 - 33,383,286

Income from securities   -  875,000 - - 71,354  946,354
Profit generated by trading activities   2,406,065 56,520,530 49,057 -  - 58,975,652
Losses from trading activities III. (2,300,389)  (55,953,168)   27,090 1,305,890  1,821,919 4,849,114

Recoveries and cancellations in respect of value 
adjustments related to loans and provisions for
contingent liabilities and commitments  250,238  1,443,977  27,090  1,305,890  1,821,919  4,849,114
   IV. 250,238  1,443,977  27,090  1,305,890  1,821,919  4,849,114

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts,
overdue credit and other risks  (1,628,991) (1,218,025) (63,960) (1,625,567) (976,884) (5,513,427)
   V. (1,628,991) (1,218,025) (63,960) (1,625,567)  (976,884)       (5,513,427)

Other operating income  30,634 - 79,881 10,301  1,826,163  1,946,979
   VI. 30,634 -  79,881 10,301  1,826,163  1,946,979

Total  21,185,415 5,848,931 5,564,183 9,557,357 2,742,552  44,898,438
Other costs and income       (25,834,725)
Net income for year       19,063,713

Loans and advances to customers, net of provisions   194,431,231 - 8,658,122 255,428,108  6,887,211  465,404,672
Amounts owed to customers  20,839,650 -  4,358,067  62,380,882  -  87,578,599
Total net assets  337,227,607  321,864,002 36,745,438  261,023,772 119,201,723  1,076,062,542

   2004    2003

Other operating income 

Staff on loan - CGD Group 1,610,583 1,860,924

Reimbursement of expenses 138,606 235,864

Other 197,790 75,195

   1,946,979 2,171,983
Other operating costs 

Subscriptions and donations 51,656 48,400

Other 8,165 10,799

   59,821 59,199
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The following is a breakdown of the "extraordinary gains" and "extraordinary losses" account
headings, in 2004 and 2003:

41. Tax Burden

The difference between the imputed tax burden and the tax burden already paid and payable for
2004, 2003 and 2002 is set out below:

The bank pays tax under the IRC ("Tax on the Income of Collective Persons") Tax Code plus
the corresponding municipal surcharge levied thereon.

The bank's fiscal burden in 2002 comprised the autonomous IRC taxation on expense
account items and light passenger vehicles (Note 3.g)). The bank made a taxable profit in
2003, having fully offset its fiscal losses for 2002 and 2001 for the amount of € 4,691,458.

In 2004 and pursuant to a revision of the bank's tax return for 2000, the tax authorities
made an adjustment of € 590,507 to taxable income. The said corrections originated the
recognition of an extraordinary loss of € 44,560 (Note 39) and increase in fiscal losses of
€ 1,654,385 for 2001. The bank therefore submitted a substitute return for 2003 recording
a tax reimbursement of € 545,947 (Note 31).

In conformity with current legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by the
tax authorities for a period of four years. The bank's and its subsidiaries tax returns for 2001
to 2004 are therefore still subject to review and the possibility of corrections.

The board of directors considers that any correction is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the financial statements, as at 31 December 2004.
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   2004    2003

Extraordinary gains

Capital gains on the disposal of equity investments:

Euronext (Note 50) 43,001 225,389

Other 3,433 57,469

Gains related to previous years 45,670 34,968

Overestimate of income tax (Note 41) 11,408 218

Other 639 2,278

   104,151 320,322

Extraordinary losses

Losses related to previous years  

Additional payment of IRC for 2000 (Note 41) 44,560 -

Other 118,338 342,368

Fines and other fiscal penalties 28,309 -

Capital losses on the disposal of equity investments 21,709 12,251

   212,916 354,619

2004 2003 2002

Imputed tax burden 5,332,620 3,235,021 29,900

Tax burden paid (2,516,530) (3,223,613) (120,138)

Tax recovery  - -  90,456

Difference (Notes 31 and 39) 2,816,090 11,408 218



42. Incidence of Income Tax

Income tax accounted for a proportion of 21.68% of the bank's current and extraordinary income
for 2004 as against 15.26% in 2003.

43. Inclusion of the Bank’s Accounts in the Consolidated Accounts of Another

Institution

The bank's financial statements are consolidated with those of Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.
with registered office in Avenida João XXI, no. 63, Lisbon.

47. Group Company Results

The bank's income statement for 2004 and 2003, includes the following balances with
sister companies:

49. Pensions Liabilities

The bank does not have any retirement pensions liabilities to its employees, who are covered
by the national social security regime, owing to the fact that it is not a signatory to the
Collective Wage Bargaining Agreement for the Banking Sector.

The bank, however, at its own discretion, in 1987, set up the "Fundo de Pensões Caixa-Banco
de Investimento" (Fund) with the objective of providing its employees with additional old
age, disability and survivor's retirement pensions, pursuant to the terms of the contract. The
fund is managed by CGD Pensões - Sociedade Gestora de Fundos de Pensões, S.A. 

The bank pays a percentage of 3.5% of each employee's annual wages into the fund.
Pension costs, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, were € 270,309 and € 295,462
respectively.

The bank does not have any liabilities other than the above referred to contributions owing
to the fact that this is a defined contribution plan.
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   2004    2003

Income:
Interest and similar income:

Caixa Desenvolvimento 347,779 492,914

Caixa Capital 5 -

Income from securities

Caixa Ireland Limited 875,000 1,000,000

Commissions:

Caixa Investments Ireland 38,511 44,623

Caixa Ireland Limited 105 75

Caixa Capital 103 -

Caixa Desenvolvimento 1 65

Other operating income:

Caixa Capital 329,180 316,892

Caixa Desenvolvimento 266 114

Costs:
Interest and similar costs:

Caixa Desenvolvimento 46,095 13,359

Caixa Capital 23,094 -

Caixa Investments Ireland 17,335 34,019

Caixa Ireland Limited 534 617



50. Investments and Equity Holdings in Sister Companies

Investments

The "investments" account heading as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out below:

The provision for capital losses generated by financial investments as at 31 December 2003
is to provide for potential capital losses on financial investments made by Caixa
Desenvolvimento (recognised in the "equity investments in sister companies" account
heading), notably Solidal - Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. Caixa Desenvolvimento sold off its
investment in Solidal - Condutores Eléctricos, S.A. having replenished € 619,617 of provisions
for capital losses made on financial investments (Note 24).

Caixa Desenvolvimento sold off its equity investments in Silvageste, SGPS, S.A. and Silger,
SGPS, S.A. to the Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados - Grupo CGD -
Caixa Capital at its respective cost price. The trade originated the replenishment of provisions
for capital losses on financial investments made by the bank in 2002 in the said subsidiaries
for the overall amount of € 4,872,835 (Note 24).

A comparison between the book and market value of the bank's direct and indirect
investments as at 31 December 2004 is set out below:
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    2004  2003
   Equity  Book Book
   holding  value value

Euronext N.V. 0.13% 3,125,414 3,352,087

Corporacion Interamericana para 

el Financiamiento de Infraestructura 8.42% 2,936,642 3,167,063

6,062,056 6,519,150

Provisions for capital losses (Note 24)  - (619,617)

    6,062,056 5,899,533

    Book  Market   Capital loss
Entity   Value (*) Date Value (**) Total  Provisioning

Direct investments

Listed

Euronext N.V.  3,125,414 n.a. 3,564,519  -   -

Unlisted

Caixa Ireland Limited  39,096,107 30-11-2004 58,659,263 -   -

Caixa Desenvolvimento  29,784,245  31-12-2004 68,430,191 -   -

Caixa Capital  14,575,724 31-12-2004 30,431,529 -   -

CIFI   2,936,642  31-12-2003  4,364,455  -   -

Indirect investments:

Listed

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A.  3,150,099 n.a. 3,470,086 -   -

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A.  2,598,650 n.a. 2,517,442  (81,208)   -

Unlisted

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A.  5,000,000 31-12-2003 4,706,862 (293,138)   -

Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A.  2,899,995 31-12-2003 3,501,472 -   -

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A.  1,608,750 31-12-2003 2,403,784 -

Grupo Pestana Pousadas

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A.  1,500,000 30-11-2004 1,326,787 (173,213)   -

Finpro Infraestruturas, S.A.  80,000 31-12-2004 89,234 -  -

       (547,558) -

(*) includes supplementary capital payments by bank
In indirect investments, net of provisions already set up by subsidiaries.
(**) Determined under Bank of Portugal Official Notice 4/2002.
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These tables do not include Caixa Capital's venture capital investments nor indirect
investments in companies included in the bank's consolidation perimeter.

As these are unlisted shares which were acquired after 31 December 2001, the provision to
be set up by the bank comprises the full minimum provision under Official Notice 4/2002
(Note 3.e)). 

The principal financial investment account heading entries in 2003 and 2002 are set out
below:

Euronext N.V. (Euronext)

The bank sold 11,500 Euronext N.V. shares for the amount of € 269,675 on the stock
exchange, in 2004, realising capital gains of € 43,001 (Note 39). 

The bank sold 138,500 Euronext shares on the stock exchange for the amount of
€ 2,955,326, in 2003, generating capital gains of € 225,389 (Note 39).

Equity investments in sister companies

The "equity investments in sister companies" heading as at 31.December 2004 and 2003
comprised the following:

51. Cash and Deposits with Central Banks

This account heading comprises the following:

The "sight deposits with Bank of Portugal" account heading includes the deposits providing
for the demands of the "Minimum Reserve Requirements of the System of European Central
Banks" (SEBC). Interest is paid on these deposits which comprise 2% of the deposits and debt
securities with a maturity of up to two years, excluding deposits and government bonds
subject to SEBC minimum reserve requirements.

52. Liquid Assets with Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:
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Caixa Capital 14,575,724

Caixa Desenvolvimento 2,500,000

Caixa Ireland Limited 12,710

   17,088,434

2004 2003

Cash   1,846 1,846

Sight deposits with Bank of Portugal 2,658,082 10,274,261

   2,659,928 10,276,107

2004 2003

Sight deposits 
Institutions in Portugal 5,965,263 3,156,178
Institutions abroad 3,170,211 2,258,050

Amounts due for collection from credit institutions 929,975 10,965
   10,065,449 5,425,193
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Amounts due for collection from credit institutions comprise cheques drawn by
customers of other banks, sent for clearing and collected in the first few days of
the following year.

53. Treasury Stock

The bank owned 4,658,000 of its own shares at a cost price of € 5,999,453, as at 31
December 2004 and 2003.

54. Debt Securities

This account heading, as at 31 December 2003, fully comprised the issue value of
"BCF Utilities Europa 1999/2004" cash bonds which was reimbursed in 2004. The
redemption value of the "BCF Utilities Europa 1999/2004" bonds comprises their
nominal value plus a variable rate of interest, equivalent to a percentage of the
appreciation of the "BCF Utilities Europa" Index over the five years of their issue
applied to their nominal value and determined on the basis of 60 monthly observations.
The bonds guarantee a minimum increase in worth of 2.5% and project a maximum
redemption value of 40% of the initial capital. A bonus of 5% is paid on the initial
minimum and maximum return if any of the observations is equivalent to at least
150% of the value of the "BCF Utilities Europa Index" The risk attached to "BCF
Utilities Europa 1999/2004" bonds was hedged by an option acquired from an external
entity and deposits in credit institutions with a rate of return equivalent to that generated
by the bonds. 

Estimated liabilities to be paid on bonds with returns indexed to indices is calculated in
conformity with the options revaluations methods used by the bank (Note 3 b)) and
recognised in the "revaluation of options" account heading (Note 27).

55. Subscribed Capital

Subscribed capital comprises 81,250,000 shares with a nominal value of one euro each.

Information on the bank's equity structure, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, is set out
below:
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    2004  2003
No. shares % %

Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A. 68,348,445 84.1 84.1
Companhia de Seguros Fidelidade - Mundial, S.A. 7,959,630 9.8 9.8
Treasury stock (Note 53) 4,658,000 5.7 5.7
Other 283,925 0.4 0.4

81,250,000 100.0 100.0



56. Reserves, Retained Earnings and Profit for Year

Entries to the bank's reserves and retained earnings account headings for 2003 and 2004
are set out below:

Legal reserve

In conformity with Decree Law 298/92 of 31 December, the bank is required to set up a legal
reserve fund until equal to its share capital and annually transfer an amount of not less than
10% of net profits to the reserve. The reserve may only be used to cover accrued losses or
share capital increases.

Revaluation reserves

The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. The
increase of € 4,338,403, in the net value of the fixed assets was recognised in the
"revaluation reserves" account heading.

Revaluation reserves may only be used to cover accrued losses or share capital increases.

57. Comissions Earnings

This account heading comprises the following:
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2004 2003

Provision of services

Organisation of operations 13,756,905 549,094

Deposit and custody of securities 645,282 462,661

Other 6,702,434 8,320,417

Securities operations 6,195,221 4,816,883

Provision of guarantees 1,169,304 603,466

Foreign currency operations, interest and market value 493,754 325,124

Commitments to third parties – securities subscriptions 284,730 298,175

Other 7,024,539 6,783,552

   36,272,169 22,159,372

Reserves  Revaluation Retained Profit for  
Legal Free Total Reserves Earnings  Year

Balance as at 31 December 2002 19,896,410 9,328,907 29,225,317 4,338,403 12,330,105  11,387,718
Appropriation of profit for 2002:

Transfers to reserves and retained earnings 1,138,772  - 1,138,772 - 10,248,946 (11,387,718)

Profit for year  - - - - - 17,750,114

Balance as at 31 December 2003 21,035,182 9,328,907 30,364,089 4,338,403 22,579,051  17,750,114
Appropriation of profit for 2003

Transfers to reserves and retained earnings 1,775,012 -  1,775,012 -  15,975,102  (17,750,114)

Profit for year  -  -  - -  - 19,063,713

Balance as at 31 December 2004 22,810,194 9,328,907 32,139,101 4,338,403  38,554,153  19,063,713



58. Profits and Losses Generated by Financial Operations

These income statement account headings comprise the following:
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   2004 2003

   Profits Losses Profits Losses

Revaluation of spot foreign exchange position  647,442 331,060 220,123 181,316

Revaluation of forward foreign exchange position 2,358 76,607 1,280 567

Revaluation and capital gains or losses

on sales of trading account securities 6,710,796 4,816,713 12,326,617 10,546,255

Revaluation and capital gains or losses

on sales of investment account securities 509,159 743,611 94,138 359,556

Revaluation of swap operations 50,456,408 50,649,031 72,688,090 72,393,047

Revaluation of irrevocable 

commitments – options sold  82,000 - - -

Revaluation of futures contracts 489,076 1,695,254 2,935,613 3,501,245

Revaluation of forward rate 

agreements (FRA) 54,029 44,834 349,098 537,054

Revaluation of options contracts 21,293 70,119 55,472 99,367

Other  3,091 3,030 6,100 13,507

   58,975,652 58,430,259 88,676,531 87,631,914
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Report and Opinion 
of Sole Auditor

Consolidated Accounts

To the Shareholders of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

In conformity with current legislation and our instructions, we hereby submit, for your
consideration, our report and opinion on our activity and the consolidated accounting
documents of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. (bank) for the year ended 31 December
2004, which are the responsibility of the board of directors.

We have, with the frequency and to the extent considered adequate, monitored the
evolution of the bank's activity and that of the principal companies included in the consolidation,
the regularity of their accounting records and compliance with the legal and statutory
regulations in force, having been provided with all information and answers to our inquiries
by the board of directors and the bank's various departments and companies included in the
consolidation.

In performing our tasks, we examined the consolidated balance sheet, as at 31 December
2004, the consolidated income statements by type and function and consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and their corresponding notes. We also examined the
consolidated management report for 2004, prepared by the board of directors, pursuant to
which we have, on this date, issued the statutory audit certificate on the consolidated
accounts which contain no reservations.

In light of the above, we consider that the above referred to consolidated financial
statements and consolidated management report are in conformity with the applicable
accounting and statutory dispositions and may therefore be approved by the general meeting
of shareholders.

We also wish to express our gratitude to the bank's board of directors, its various departments
and subsidiary companies for their assistance.

Lisbon, 21 February 2005

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A.
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães

Report and Opinion of Sole Auditor
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Individual Accounts

To the Shareholders of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

In conformity with current legislation and our instructions, we hereby submit, for your
consideration, our report and opinion on our activity and the individual accounting
documents of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. (bank) for the year ended 31 December
2004, which are the responsibility of the board of directors.

We have, with the frequency and to the extent considered adequate, monitored the evolution
of the bank's activity, the regularity of its accounting records and compliance with the legal
and statutory regulations in force, having been provided with all information and answers
to our inquiries by the board of directors and the bank's various departments.

In performing our tasks, we examined the individual balance sheet, as at 31 December
2004, the individual income statements by type and function and individual cash flow
statements and their corresponding notes for the year then ended. We also examined the
management report for 2004, prepared by the board of directors and the proposals therein
included, pursuant to which we have, on this date, issued the statutory audit certificate
which includes an emphasis of matters on the effect of account consolidation.

The bank's individual financial statements have been prepared to comply with current
legislation, namely approval by the general shareholders' meeting, and the accounts
presentation requirements determined by the Bank of Portugal. The bank will be submitting
separate consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2004. These financial
statements provide the most adequate reflection of the bank's financial situation and results
generated by its operations.

In light of the above, we consider that the above referred to financial statements and
management report, in addition to the proposal therein contained, are in conformity with
the applicable accounting and statutory dispositions and may therefore be approved by the
general meeting of shareholders.

We also wish to express our gratitude to the bank's board of directors and its various
departments for their assistance.

Lisbon, 21 February 2005

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A.
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães
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Issue of Statutory 
Audit Certificate

Consolidated Accounts

Introduction

1. We have examined the attached consolidated financial statements of Caixa - Banco de
Investimento, S.A. (bank) and its subsidiary companies comprising its consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2004, showing a total balance sheet value of € 1,097,348,996 and
shareholders' equity of € 201,286,998 including net income for the year of € 21,551,685,
the consolidated income statements by type and function and consolidated cash flow statements
for the year then ended and corresponding notes.

Responsibilities

2. The bank's board of directors is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial
statements with a view to presenting a true and appropriate description of the financial
position of the companies included in the consolidation as a whole, the consolidated result
generated by their operations and consolidated cash flows, in addition to adopting
adequate accounting policies and criteria and maintaining appropriate in-house control
systems. It is our responsibility to express a professional, independent opinion  based on our
examination of the said financial statements.

Scope

3. Our examination was performed in conformity with the Technical Standards and
Revision/Audit Directives of the Order of Statutory Auditors, which require that the
examination be planned and executed with the objective of obtaining an acceptable degree
of assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements contain any materially
relevant distortions. The examination included samples of the supporting documents upon
which the amounts and information disclosed in the financial statements are based and an
assessment of estimates based on judgements and criteria defined by the bank's board of
directors and used for the preparation thereof. The examination also included the verification
of the consolidation operations and application of the equity accounting method and
whether the financial statements of the consolidated companies have been appropriately
examined; an appraisal of the adequacy of the accounting policies used, their uniform
application and disclosure, based on the circumstances, the verification of the applicability
of the going concern principle and whether the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements is adequate. We consider that our examination has provided us with an
acceptable basis upon which to base our opinion.

Issue of Statutory Audit Certificate
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Opinion

4. We consider that the consolidated financial statements referred to in paragraph 1 above,
provide a true and appropriate description, in all materially relevant aspects, of the consolidated
financial situation of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2004, the consolidated results of their operations and consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in Portugal
for the banking sector.

Lisbon, 21 February 2005

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A.
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães

Individual Accounts

Introduction

1. We have examined the attached financial statements of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.
(bank) comprising its individual balance sheet as at 31 December 2004, showing a total balance
sheet value of € 1,076,062,542 and shareholders' equity of € 175,345,370 including net
income for the year of € 19,063,713, the individual income statements by type and function
and individual cash flow statements for the year then ended and corresponding notes.

Responsibilities

2. The bank's board of directors is responsible for preparing the financial statements with a
view to presenting a true and appropriate description of the bank's financial position, the
result generated by its operations and cash flows, in addition to adopting adequate
accounting policies and criteria and maintaining an appropriate in-house control system. It
is our responsibility to express a professional, independent opinion based on our examination
of the said financial statements.

Scope

3. Our examination was performed in conformity with the Technical Standards and
Revision/Audit Directives of the Order of Statutory Auditors, which require that the examination
be planned and executed with the objective of obtaining an acceptable degree of assurance
as to whether the financial statements contain any materially relevant distortions. The
examination included samples of the supporting documents upon which the amounts and
information disclosed in the financial statements are based and an assessment of estimates
based on judgements and criteria defined by the bank's board of directors and used for the
preparation thereof. The examination also included an assessment of the adequacy of the
financial statements and their disclosure, based on the circumstances, the verification of the
applicability of the going concern principle and whether the overall presentation of the
financial statements is adequate. We consider that our examination has provided us with an
acceptable basis upon which to base our opinion.

Opinion

4. We consider that the financial statements referred to in paragraph 1 above, provide a true
and appropriate description, in all materially relevant aspects, for the objectives specified
in paragraph 5 below, of the financial situation of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. as at
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31 December 2004, the individual results of its operations and individual cash flows for the
year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in Portugal for
the banking sector.

Emphasis of Matters

5. The attached financial statements refer to the bank's individual activity and have been prepared
for the approval of the general shareholders' meeting to comply with the regulations on the
publishing of accounts determined by the Bank of Portugal. In accordance with the accounting
policies applicable to the bank's individual activity, its majority equity investments are
recognised at cost. The bank will be producing separate consolidated accounts which
provide a more adequate reflection of its financial situation, the results of its operations and
cash flows. The effects of the account consolidation as at 31 December 2004 consist of an
increase in assets, shareholders' equity (excluding the result for the year) and the result for
the year for the amounts of € 21,286,454, € 23,453,656, € 2,487,972, respectively and a
reduction of € 4,655,174 in liabilities.

6. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 have been submitted to
comply with Bank of Portugal regulations and accounts publication requirements. The issue
of the statutory audit certificate on the said financial statements, dated 20 February 2004,
included an emphasis of matters similar to the one described in paragraph 5.

Lisbon, 21 February 2005

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A.
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães
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